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Financial Highlights Bi &=

FINANCIAL SUMMARY B E
2013 2014 2015
—T—=F —E—NF —E-1%F
(RMB million) (RMB million)  (RMB million)
(AR¥BET) (AR%®BET) (AR¥EER)
Revenue A 32,517 28,495 21,072
Gross Profit EH 1,004 1,368 357
EBITDA' HRFTSE - BT -
WEREHEAEF 1,615 1,721 1,151
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRETERATIE T (EB) 249 245 (890)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERF/ (BE) 63 66 (936)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of AABEZFHEE
the Company FEMLER (1) 102 67 (767)
Basic earnings/(losses) per Share (RMB)  GRREARUz/(E18)
(ARETT) 0.03 0.02 (0.26)
Net Assets FEER 9,711 9,772 8,912
Total Assets BEE 23,751 23,743 22,364
Net Assets value per Share BRFEEBE(FRRIEE
(excluding non-controlling interests) B )
(RMB) (AR#T) 3.14 3.16 2.90
1 The Company defines EBITDA as profit for the year before finance 1 NATIE EBITDAME ZE BRI &%

costs-net, income tax expense, amortisation of intangible assets,
amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights, depreciation, non-
recurring items and share-based payments. Non-recurring items for

the year ended 31 December 2015 included RMB 521 million (2014:
RMB 89.9 million) as impairment of property, plant and equipment.
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AVERAGE SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT/
(LOSS) PER TONNE OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL

PRODUCTS

Average Selling Price per Tonne

Gross Profit/(Loss) per Tonne
H-section steel products
Strips and strip products
Billets
Cold rolled sheets and

galvanised sheets
Rebar
Steel pile sheet

Combined

Average Selling Price per Tonne
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HEF,(E8H)

2013 2014 2015

—E—=4F —ZF—JOF —E-HE

(RMB) (RMB) (RMB)

(AR¥5T) (AR¥TT) (AEB®T)

T HEEE 3,054 2,657 1,918
BWEER,(Ek)

H Y 8 2 G 152 174 64

A5 N A SRR E S 111 167 50

SR 29 10 (135)
EERTYE 52201

(154) (124) (196)

e 6 65 41

S R AE - 180 182

A 100 131 33
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B FIIHESE BHEEF|
RMB RMB
AR AR¥EETT
4,000 200
3,054
3,000
2,657 131
100
2,000 1,918 100
1,000
33
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
—T—=F —T—F —E—AHF —E—=F —E—NF —E—RF

Annual Report 2015 —F—FAE4EHR 3



Financial Highlights Bi &=

SALES VOLUME OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL Tt EN RS E R REREEE S >
PRODUCTS CLASSIFIED BY PRODUCTS HEE
2013 2014 2015
—E-=F —E-F —B-HfF
('000 tonnes) (‘000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
(Fmg) (Fmg) (Fmg)
H-section steel products H AU $f 72 S 3,084 3,062 3,278
Strips and strip products H5 i) K A5 S E 2 3,752 4,025 3,952
Billets FINEN 926 668 638
Cold rolled sheets and R ELR K 3% AR
galvanised sheets 316 503 398
Rebar SR 587 1,074 1,545
Steel pile sheet it A5 - 39 119
Combined e 8,665 9,371 9,930

Sales Volume of Self-manufactured Steel Products

BITEENHESERNHER

3.6% 6.8% 549  11.5% 40%  15.6%
10.7% N i 71% \ 0.4% 6.4% \‘
*‘ v 12%
35.6% /
33.0%
. H-section steel products H 7Y §fi] = . Cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /% 81 & §% £ 1z
. Strips and strip products #5 8 & # 8 48 &= @ . Rebar 247 i
. Billets 4 4% Steel pile sheet 1R %
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Corporate Information 2 5& %!

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun
(Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
(resigned as the Deputy General Manager and
Chief Financial Officer on 4 October 2015)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Han Jingyuan

Mr. Wang Tianyi

Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Lam Pak Kan

(appointed on 30 December 2015)
Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei

(resigned on 30 December 2015)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Pak Kan

(appointed on 30 December 2015)
Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei

(resigned on 30 December 2015)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre
23 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

LIST OF PRINCIPAL BANKERS (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDERS)

ABN AMRO

Agricultural Bank of China
Bank of Communications
China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank
China Minsheng Bank
Nanyang Commercial Bank
Natixis

Ping An Bank

Rabobank

Corporate Information 2 5& %!
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%E

In 2016, the Group will further enhance its competitiveness
by continuous improvement in production efficiency,
developing and increasing the number of high value-
added products, reducing production cost, cutting down

inventory, expanding market share, changing distribution

channel and optimising the utilisation of internal resources.
RZZ—RF  AEEGHEREEENE - %R

MEMIEER  REEXS  BERFE  HERMS

HHEE  REHER

BEHES -

REVIEW OF YEAR 2015

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2015, due to the slowdown in the growth of domestic economy
and the impact of real estate regulation and control in the Mainland
China, the demand for steel products remained weak. With the over-
capacity and the destocking problems which led to the continuous
drop in the steel price, the domestic pressure on environmental
protection, and the continuous decrease of the RMB exchange rate
against USD since the reform in RMB exchange policy in August
2015, the steel companies in the Mainland China experienced tough
challenges. This has created a price competition among the steel
companies in the Mainland China. In addition, the protectionist
trade policy of various countries also imposed great pressure to the
steel companies on export business. As a result, the average selling
price of self-manufactured steel products of the Group decreased
by approximately 27.8% for the year ended 31 December 2015 as
compared with last year, the impairment of certain properties, plants
and equipment amounted to approximately RMB 521 million and
the certain net exchange losses amounted to approximately RMB
268 million. Despite the difficult operation conditions in the steel
industry, the Group response to challenges through developing and
optimising products, adjusting product mix, production costs control
and strengthening risk control, etc. Therefore, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB 21.1 billion for the year ended 31
December 2015, representing a decrease of approximately 26.1%
as compared with last year. Loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB 767 million as compared with the
profit of approximately RMB 67 million for last year.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]
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Chairman’s Statement =E#R%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

With respect to the steel business, the Group continued to invest
substantially to and endeavored to enhance the competitiveness and
economic efficiency of its products. These efforts include improving
production facilities to enhance efficiency, expanding sales channels,
developing diverse and high-end products, increasing the share
of products with high additional value and reducing emission.
Apart from developing and optimising the new categories of the
existing products such as strips and section steel, the Group has
also developed products to suit for other countries such as the
American standards, the British standards, the Spanish standards
and the Singaporean standards so as to facilitate the penetration
into international market. The Group has also been investing in its
production facilities in order to reduce energy consumption in the
steel production process and satisfy emission requirements. The
self-generated electricity of the Group increased to approximately
50% in 2015 from approximately 40% in 2014. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group sold approximately 3.3 million
tonnes of self-produced H-section steel products and continued to
secure its leading position in the H-section steel market of Mainland
China.

RERIT )

RMHAEBM S - AEEFERBAE
BRUTBAREERNRE HRELE
@%'L%@%&%EE S AR S

HEHEEE  RAEZTEERER
Eéuu» DA = BT hn{&E 2 & b ) KRR BE
e BRAERELTRBEERNNES
AN 15!Jﬁu%§ﬂﬂ9ﬁlfﬂ—r C AREE TR [E
ﬁ%ﬁLmA@I%MEm AEAE -
B FREERFMERE  BHHARE
BRis e AEBENMERMERTHLAEE
BpEE o DURIEEEEMNEIBRET A8
FOHRERFEEREERE - AEEMNE %
BEHHIEA T —UFENLL0%IRFE
TE-RENHE0% - REE-_ZT—H
F+ZA=+—HLEFEARN AEEH
$HE BTTEER H A E R4 330 B MHE -
BERETPRHAEMENEEENE
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

With respect to the real estate business, the Group was dedicated
in promoting green structural development construction besides
developing traditional real estate projects. The third phase of the
Donghu Bay project in Tangshan City, Hebei Province of the Group
is expected to be completed in 2016. The residential and basement
projects of Xintiandi in Suzhou underwent roof sealing and were
completed during the year. The commercial and office projects
are expected to be completed in 2016. Moreover, the Meishu Hall
project located in Suzhou is undergoing foundation construction,
which is expected to be completed in 2016. The sale of the third
phase of the Donghu Bay project, the residential and basement
projects of Xintiandi in Suzhou, the commercial and office projects of
Xintiandi in Suzhou and the Meishu Hall project commenced in 2015,
which facilitated the stable development of the real estate business
of the Group and brought sustainable income. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the Group recorded revenue and operating profit
from real estate business of approximately RMB 461 million and
RMB 19 million respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue and
gross loss arising from trading of steel products and iron ore were
approximately RMB 1,358 million (2014: approximately RMB 3,105
million) and RMB 42 million (2014: gross profit approximately RMB
60 million) respectively.

The Group also engages in financing industry through its
subsidiaries, Oriental Fullhero Leasing Co. Ltd. (“Fullhero Leasing”),
Oriental Evertrust Finance Leasing Co. Ltd. (“Oriental Evertrust”),
Tianjin Oriental Huitong Microcredit Co. Ltd. (“Oriental Huitong”) and
Beijing Jinxi Investment Holding Co. Ltd. (“Beijing Jinxi Investment”).
The Group will conduct post-loan inspection to each existing project
in order to reduce risks. As at 31 December 2015, Fullhero Leasing,
Oriental Evertrust, Oriental Huitong and Beijing Jinxi Investment
provided loans, net of provision, amounting to RMB 400 million to
independent third parties at interest rates ranged from 12.0% to
24.0% per annum.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]
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Chairman’s Statement =E#R%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

In order to diversify its business, the Group has also set up Oriental
Jingyuan Science Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd. and XTAL Inc. which
are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company to develop core
technologies for semiconductor chip design and manufacturing
process optimisation/equipment. This will bring a great potential
development for the Group.

Since the Group introduced the world’s largest steel corporation
ArcelorMittal as its strategic shareholder in 2008, collaboration
between the Group and ArcelorMittal has continued to work closely.
ArcelorMittal has appointed experienced executives to the Board of
the Group to participate in decision making for the Group’s business
development and provide technology and professional advice.

On 6 November 2013, the Company was informed by Wellbeing
Holdings Limited, Chingford Holdings Limited and Mr. Han Jingyuan
(together, the “Plaintiffs”) that a Writ of Summons has been issued
by the Plaintiffs against ArcelorMittal, pursuant to which, the Plaintiffs
sought an order that ArcelorMittal procure ArcelorMittal Holdings
AG (formerly known as Mittal Steel Holdings AG) (“AM Holdings
AG”) to sell a sufficient number of shares of the Company such that
the Company’s 25% minimum public float requirement pursuant to
Rule 8.08 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock
Exchange”) would be restored.

The Company was informed that the Plaintiffs and AM Holdings
AG had reached an out of court settlement and the above Writ of
Summons have been formally dismissed on 15 July 2015.

RERIT )

REAREEBZ T REE KR
TRARRMEFRFEEER)BERAF
RXTAL Inc. 9 BARFIFEZEMRBR
A ARBEYEERA R RYEETF
Bt/ BEZ LM EEEHAE
EREREANERES -

AEBEH _ZZENF I AZKEANE
2 ArcelorMittal BRESARERE - B
HEINREZRAE o ArcelorMittal NMEZ
KEFRITERABNALAEEBESZR 2
HASEEEKERAR  BIRERMNR
EHEEER -

RZZE—=F+—AXHB ARaEE
Wellbeing Holdings Limited * Chingford
Holdings Limited N 3&#8UR 504 (5258 [ R
HADREEA - [RE A M ArcelorMittal
BHEMSRK Bt REABREE
fE &5 % 23k ArcelorMittal {2 {# ArcelorMittal
Holdings AG (Fi1## Mittal Steel Holdings
AG) ([ AM Holdings AG |) £ & B SIE £ 1Y
KRR ARG AR IE AR R RIZER RS B
ERGMABERABI(BARRMES W
AT TR BI) 5 8.08 &7 7E 89 25%
IR ARIFRE ZHRIE °

RArEWER - [REAEAM Holdings

AGEZRREIMIE - B L ERLHRE
R-E—RFE A+ R R EBHRGEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products

Sales Volume

In 2015, the total sales volume was 9,930,000 tonnes (2014:
9,371,000 tonnes), representing an increase of approximately 6.0%.

The sales volume breakdown during the year was as follows:

E 3 {E)
HEBTEENMBEER 2 HEDT
HEE

T -RFHAHEEEA9,930,000ME( =
T —PU4:9,371,000lF) » $2N0476.0% °

REBFEHEEHAMT :

2015 2014

—Z-1%§ —E-mF Changes in

Sales volume Sales volume Sales volume

HEE HEE HESE(

Increase/

('000 tonnes) (000 tonnes) (decrease)

(Fm) (Fug) 2,/ (i)

H-section steel products HAHE @ 3,278 33.0% 3,062 32.7% 7.1%

Strips and strip products AR ER 3,952 39.8% 4,025 42.9% (1.8%)

Billets S 638 6.4% 668 7.1% (4.5%)

Cold rolled sheets and RERREFR

galvanised sheets 398 4.0% 503 5.4% (20.9%)

Rebar B 1,545 15.6% 1,074 11.5% 43.9%

Steel pile sheet HiRE 119 1.2% 39 0.4% 205.1%

Total At 9,930 100% 9,371 100% 6.0%
During the year of 2015, the Group’s production capacity is 11 NRZ_E—RFEFEAN NEBERFERE

million tonnes per annum.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEEz &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products
(continued)

Revenue
Revenue in 2015 was RMB 19,046 million (2014: RMB 24,894

million), representing a decrease of approximately 23.5%.

The sales breakdown and average selling price by product (excluding

&
!

¥EOE®)

HEBTEENMBER ZHED T @)

WA
—Z-RFRABARKE190.461ETT(=
T—UF - ARME248.94187T) © TR
23.5% °

FREMNFEERANR FOHEEE(T

value added tax) during the year were as follows: SERINT -
2015 2014 Changes
—2-1f —T-mE g1
Average Average Average
selling selling selling
Revenue price Revenue price Revenue price
¥4 1 15
KA HEEE WA HEEE WA HEEBE
(RMB million) (RMB/tonne) (RMB million) (RMB/tonne) Increase/(decrease)
(N\RBEER) (AR%T/H) (AREEER) (ARET/B) g/ (a)
H-section steel products HAY S & 6,534 1,994 8,480 2,769 (22.9%) (28.0%)
Strips and strip products R E 6,896 1,745 10,184 2,530 (32.3%) (31.0%)
Billets ST 1,121 1,757 1,563 2,341 (28.3%) (24.9%)
Cold rolled sheets and RO RIEFER
galvanised shests 1,127 2,826 1,877 3,734 (40.0%) (24.3%)
Rebar 24 3,035 1,965 2,655 2,472 14.3% (20.5%)
Steel pile sheet HRE 333 2,794 135 3,512 146.7% (20.4%)
Total/combined At/ A 19,046 1,918 24,894 2,657 (23.5%) (27.8%)

The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the slowdown of the
investment in steel related industries and the imbalance between the
demand and the supply of the steel production capacity in Mainland
China which led to a decrease in the Group’s average selling price by
27.8% to RMB 1,918 per tonne in 2015 from RMB 2,657 per tonne
in 2014.

W AT B 3 R 2 A B K B S S AR R T
HI1% & h AR B S A RE e sk 1 - B
FAEENFHHEEEER-T—NF
K FMEAREE 2,657 T N RE27.8% E-F
—RFREMEAR1,9187T °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products
(continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit
The consolidated gross profit in 2015 was RMB 328 million (2014:
RMB 1,228 million), representing a decrease of approximately

73.3%.

Average unit cost per tonne, gross profit per tonne and gross profit
margin during the year were as follows:

EEENWR DT

¥EOE®)

HEBTAEENMBER ZHES @)

HEKRAREF]

—ﬂEE’JAf%%%‘J%AEMSZSF
71( —POF - AR¥12.28187T) &
%’973.3%0

REBFESWEHRAEE  BHEE
FIREFEMOT :

2015 2014
—E-TF —mE
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Average profit/(loss) profit/(loss) Average  profit/(loss)  profit/(loss)
unit cost  per tonne margin unit cost per tonne margin
¥y SWEFR/ R/ ¥ SEEN/ ER/
BAEE (EB) (EBE HKLAEE €2 ) (EB)%
(RMB/tonne) (RMB) (RMB/tonne) (RMB)
(\R¥7/H) (AR%7T) (A\RET/M)  (ARETL)
H-section steel products HEHE @ 1,930 64 3.2% 2,595 174 6.3%
Strips and strip products R ER 1,695 50 2.9% 2,363 167 6.6%
Billets S 1,892 (135) (7.7%) 2,331 10 0.4%
Cold rolled sheets and RELR RIF R
galvanised sheets 3,022 (196) (6.9%) 3,858 (124) (3.3%)
Rebar 2 1,924 4 2.1% 2,407 65 2.6%
Steel pile sheet iR 2,612 182 6.5% 3,332 180 5.1%
Total/combined Bt/ fra 1,885 33 1.7% 2,526 131 4.9%
In 2015, gross profit per tonne of the Group’s products decreased MN-ZTE—RF KEBEDHTWEEF
to RMB 33 from RMB 131 in 2014, reflecting a decrease of 74.8%. A-E—TNFENAREI1ITTRLZEAR
In 2015, gross profit margin decreased to 1.7% from 4.9% in 33T WA T48% c R_E—FHEF -
2014, The decrease in gross profit margin was primarily due to EANEH-_Z—UFN49%BIPE-F
the magnitude of decrease in the average selling price of the steel —FHEN17% c EFXRFLFERZRAA
products of the Group, was higher than the magnitude of the “TE-AFEAEEREESNFTHHEE

decrease in the iron ore price, one of the major raw materials for
production of steel products, in 2015.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]

BEETHRMEBEBEARNEENESERETE
EM R —EEAMER THRMIEE -



Management Discussion and Analysis EEEz &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EF AR 1))

Property Development [ EE

In 2015, the Group had completed GFA of 39,691 m2. The status of MNZZE—RHF AEECDBITEEMmME

the completed GFA by project is set out as follows: 39,691 F K - M TASHEBEND R
TREEHEBEBR -
No. City Property project Phase of project Total GFA
FFa W MEEE HEMER REEEE
(m?)
(FH5%)
1 Suzhou Xintiandi Residential and basement 39,691
M e FEERET=

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue from real estate HE_Z—AF+_A=+—HIt#HF
business of the Group amounted to approximately RMB 461 million. B AEEFHEEBFRANDARK
The GFA of properties delivered was 51,880 m2. The average selling AB1ET  ERXRNWENEEBMER
price of properties delivered was approximately RMB 8,900 per m2. 51,880 F K - ERXMENFHEE
REFFRHOARKESQ00TT °

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had the following projects RZE—RAF+-_A=+—8 ' ~%£E
under construction with a GFA of approximately 233,000 m?: ETNIERER EENREEEBRY
233,000 F 75K :

GFA under Estimate time

No. City Property project Phase of project Construction of completion
R H® Y E L= HE R EENEEEE FE T TRERS
(m?)
(FFF7K)
1 Tangshan Donghu Bay Phase 3 85,250  December 2016
FE L ROHE = —E-RF+=A
2 Suzhou Xintiandi Commercial and office 65,670 October 2016
#RM R RERRAE —E—RFT+A
3 Suzhou Meishu Hall Foundation construction 82,455  December 2016
#RM EEEE BEET —E-RF+=A
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Development (continued)

The above projects are expected to be completed during 2016
and will contribute stable revenue and profits to our Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In order to sustain a stable financial status, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity and financial resources.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
of approximately RMB 7.4 billion (2014: RMB 7.3 billion).

As at 31 December 2015, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.1
(2014: 1.2) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided
by total assets, was 60.1% (2014: 58.8%).

As at 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB 2,338 million (2014:
approximately RMB 849 million).

After considering its cash and cash equivalents as well as the
banking facilities currently available to the Group, it is believed that
the Group has sufficient capital to fund its future business operations
and for general business expansion and development.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
repurchased a total of US$160,190,000 and US$96,217,000 in
principal amount of the 2015 Senior Notes and the 2017 Senior
Notes respectively. The 2015 Senior Notes was matured and fully
repaid by the Company on 18 August 2015. As at 31 December
2015, the outstanding principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes
was US$111,368,000.

As at 31 December 2015, borrowings of RMB 2,196 million of the
Group bore fixed interest rates ranged from 1.4% to 7.7% per annum
and borrowings of RMB 1,206 million of the Group bore floating rates
ranged from 3.4% to 6.6% per annum. The Group’s exposure to
changes in market interest rates was considered to be limited. The
Group did not use any derivatives to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes current and non-current borrowings, other long-
term payables and borrowings from related parties. The Group
regards its non-current borrowings, non-current portion of other
long-term payables, non-current portion of borrowings from related
parties and its equity attributable to owners of the Company as its
total capital. As at 31 December 2015, the debt-to-capital ratio of the
Group was 45.4% (2014: 77.3%).

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2015
amounted to RMB 424 million (2014: RMB 482 million). The interest
coverage (divide (loss)/profit for the year before finance cost — net
and income tax expenses by total interest expenses) was negative
1.1 times (2014: positive 1.1 times).

M E )
N

HE_Z—AFt+_A=+—HItH
M ARBEDHERAE LRSS LE
160,190,000 7T % 96,217,000 7T Z
T hFEEEBRE-T—LFEL
ZE RN _ZT—AFN\A+NH  =F
—AFELEARBEIBAYHARGZE
EE - -R=_T—AF+=-A=+—8"
T tFEEAEBREERACBESR
111,368,000 T °

RZZTE—RAF+-A=+—H x&£H
B FERENF1.4% ZE7.7% O EE FIEE
RRARKE21.96187T - MAKENHFF
ENF3.4%ZE6.6%HF BT EBRBA
R 12.06 87T - NEEHMHFRE L
MERKASBER AKEHEE_F
—hRFER-_FT-—MNFEF+_A=+—HL
FREWEERITE TEEREFIRRE -

REBRBEBEEEA L RERENRK
Mo R EBEHBERNABRER - M
EHMBTERERD MRIERBER - Ef
REENERER L@ S ER - NEBE
HIERBER  HRBEMERIGER
Bl - @A EFERBEG KB
RARR I AEENERGEATEE
WBER - RZE—RAF+_HA=+—
B AEENEBEEEEARN Y X E45.4%
(ZZ—MUF : 77.3%) °

—F-AFEHMNEX B REAREHE
HARB424BT(ZZE—HF : ARK
4.82187T) « M S & FIEE(FNER B 75 0%
RARFEHRERMN 2 FE(ER), &
RN B ) AR 1B (2T
FoE1ARE) e
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total commitments of
RMB 863 million (2014: RMB 1,098 million). It is estimated the
commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and
unutilised banking facilities.

Guarantee and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s contingent liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB 11 million (2014: RMB 13 million),
which was the provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in favor of
a third party.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the net book value of the Group’s
inventories amounting to approximately RMB 62 million (2014:
approximately RMB 112 million), notes receivable amounting to
approximately RMB 1,426 million (2014: approximately RMB 804
million) and restricted bank balances amounting to approximately
RMB 1,774 million (2014: approximately RMB 1,625 million) had
been pledged as security for the Group’s notes payable issuing,
banking borrowings and letter of credit issuing.

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Group’s inventories (2014:
RMB 17 million), notes receivable (2014: RMB 10 million) and
restricted bank balances (2014: RMB 2 million) were withheld by and
in custody of the courts.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Exchange Risks

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers and
the Group’s senior notes, which is denominated and settled in USD.
Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to the macro-economic
performance of different countries and fund flows between countries
arising from trade or capital commitments. In view of the continuous
decrease of the RMB exchange rate against USD since the reform in
RMB exchange policy in 2015, during the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts
s0 as to reduce the impact of the volatility of the RMB exchange rate
against USD. The Group also reviewed and rearranged its monetary
assets to mitigate the impact from the change of RMB to USD
exchange rate.

I[ron Ore Swaps

In view of the continuous decreasing trend of iron ore price in 2015,
the Group has been cautious in entering into iron ore swap contracts
SO as to reduce the potential negative impact of the iron ore swap
contracts.

Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Save as disclosed below in this report, there are no events to cause
material impact on the Group from the balance sheet date to the date
of this annual report.

On 25 January 2016, the Company commenced the offer to
repurchase for cash and consent solicitation relating to any and all of
its outstanding 2017 Senior Notes.

M E )
PE & & fg

1N BE R\ B 5 TEE o B B 9 AN 6% [ B A A0
REEXEBRZAR - AEEXTEHE
PEAERERRLE  KZHEZXHHUAA
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Z i g M FE R B A AR O AR RE
EmkARENEAEREYUAEXTAHE
KigEE - EXFHZTRBERZBLE
RIFIAKE HHE ARG A RE K 2
BEenPMEE - EXA_T—OFA
REERPRAER  ARBLETE
XBBETH BEZE_T—0F+=A
=t—RALEFE AXEEBFTLETI
BEBMEH  UWREARBLETES
NEEE -  AEETEEZNEHNH
REEBEENRBARB L XTES
HHELHNTE

HiEOES
EN_T-DFHBEOERE NENS
2 RTREEBLIEHAONETER
T8 AEECREIIVEABRBOLERE
# o

REARR S,
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Post Balance Sheet Events (continued)

The offer expired on 22 February 2016. A principal amount of
US$32,212,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes had been repurchased
and cancelled by the Company. Consents from holders with respect
to principal amount of US$68,107,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes had
been obtained. As such, the Company entered into a supplemental
indenture embodying the proposed amendments (“Supplemental
Indenture”) on 24 February 2016 and the Supplemental Indenture
becomes effective on 26 February 2016.

Following the completion of the repurchase, the outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is
US$79,156,000.

ACCREDITATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2015, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel
Group Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company is awarded
the “12th Five-Year Advanced Energy-Saving Enterprise”, the
“National Outstanding Contributor to Air Pollution Abatement”,
“The Most Influential Enterprise with Potential Growth” and so on,
and awarded the “Recognition Award of the 2nd Session of the
Hebei Industrial Award”. Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Dafang
Heavy Industry Science and Technology Company Limited, another
subsidiary of the Company, was named by China Association of
Small and Medium Enterprises as the “Outstanding Innovative
Enterprise of China SMEs”.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company plans to distribute not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividend after its listing. However, the actual
amount of dividend and as a percentage to profit will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s future
operation and earnings, capital requirement and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
laws, the distributable profit of the PRC respective subsidiaries of the
Company should not be higher than its net profit, after appropriation
to the statutory reserve as determined by the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintained close contact with its investors during
the year of 2015. The Company not only made timely disclosures
of the Company’s information through the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for increasing
the transparency of the Company, but also held meetings with
investors, updating them on the Group’s business development and
industrial trend.

This helped to promote investors’ understanding of the Group while
allowing us to understand more about the opinions and expectations
of investors. In future, the Group will further its effort to maintain close
contact and effective interactive communication with investors.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 11,700 and temporary staff of approximately 2,400.
The staff cost included basic salaries and benefits. Staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance plans, pension
scheme, unemployment insurance plan, maternity insurance plan
and the fair value of the share options, etc.. Effective from July 2008,
the Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance scheme and
contributed 1.5% of the workers’ wages to the Social Insurance
Bureau. According to the Group’s remuneration policy, employees’
package is based on productivity and/or sales performance, and is
consistent with the Group’s quality control and cost control targets.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

It is expected that in 2016, the prices of steel and iron ore will remain
at the current level as the prices has dropped to a considerably low
level by the end of 2015 which are unlikely to further decrease. With
the Chinese government’s regulation policy of the steel industry
and the slowdown in the growth of the overall economy, there will
be no material change in the market and business environment of
steel industry in the Mainland China. The overall steel industry will
still face tough challenges. On the other hand, while the Chinese
government is actively promoting the concept of “The Belt and
Road”, certain prices of steel products have showed a sign of
increase in the beginning of 2016. The Group also reduced inventory
to a low level in 2015, reviewed and rearranged its monetary assets
to mitigate the impact from the change of RMB to USD exchange
rate and expected to have sufficient impairment provisions been
made for relevant properties, plants and equipment during 2015.
It is expected that these factors which had a significant impact on
the financial performance in 2015 would not likely to have a material
impact to the financial performance in 2016. Under such backdrop,
the Group commences the “year of management” activities in
order to maintain its competitiveness by continuous improvement
in production efficiency, developing and increasing the number of
high value-added products, reducing production cost, cutting down
inventory, expanding market share, changing distribution channel
and optimising the utilisation of internal resources.

In 2016, the Group will continue to focus on the development of
certain high-end steel products including high-strength and high
and low temperature repercussive H-section steel products, to fully
develop products which suit standards of other countries including
the American standards, the British standards, the European
standards and the Russian standards, to consistently improve the
quality and passing rate of products, to increase the market share of
high value-added products and to further optimise production costs
including the proportion of self-generated electricity, this will enhance
the core competitiveness of the Group. In addition, the Group will
adopt a new distribution model by increasing the proportion of direct
sales to 20% for H-section steel products, setting up more direct
sales office for section steel and developing international market with
electronic commercial platform to construct an international sales
network. The Group will continue to keep an eye on state projects
which will consume large volume of steel, collect more information
about market shortages and product information to guide its new
product development. In addition, it will strengthen the control of
operating risks and production procedure to enhance the function
of risk control department, to improve the risk resistance capacity of
the Group and to maintain a stable operation.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Since its listing in 2004, the Group has continued to expand
its business, diversify its steel product categories and business
portfolio. During the last twelve years (since being listed), the Group’s
overall crude steel production capacity has reached 11.0 million
tonnes per annum from 3.1 million tonnes per annum at the time
of the listing. The steel products include H-section steel products,
steel pile sheet products, strips and strip products, billets, cold rolled
sheets and galvanised sheets and rebar. The Group is constantly
developing products of different series and specifications to meet
market needs. Moreover, the H-section steel products of the Group
maintain its leading position in China. The Group has been gradually
diversifying its business. In addition to expanding its supply chain
through upstream and downstream integration, the Group has also
expanded its property and other businesses. The Group will strive
to take full advantage of the current solid financial condition and
efficient management to intensify the continuous development of the
Group and to maximise the Shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to extend its heartfelt gratitude to all of its
staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and to its
shareholders for their continuous support and trust in the Company.

By order of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Jingyuan, aged 59, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (appointed on 13 November 2003), and also
serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Han
graduated from the People’s University in 1994 with a degree in
management. Mr. Han began his career in Metallurgy in 1984 when
he was employed as a deputy mine manager and mine manager of
Han’erzhuang Iron Mine. Mr. Han has in-depth industry knowledge
and 30 years of extensive operational and managerial experience
in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Han was awarded the honorary
title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top Ten Man”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur
of Hebei Province”, “Excellent Privately-owned Enterprises
Entrepreneur in Hebei Province” and “Economic Top Ten Men of
Honesty and Credibility in China” etc.. Mr. Han is the Vice Chairman
of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Tong San
Chamber of Commerce and the Vice Chairman of Tangshan Charity
Federation. Mr. Han was also the 9" and 11" representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC. Mr. Han is the director
and the controlling shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Han Jingyuan is the
father of Mr. Han Li, the Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 52, is an Executive Director (appointed on 23
December 2003), Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhu graduated in 2001 from a
graduate programme of the Communist Party School in Hebei
Province with a diploma in management. Prior to working in the
steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked for 10 years as deputy director of
Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer Factory which was based in Qianxi
County, Hebei Province. Mr. Zhu joined Jinxi Iron Factory in 1992
and later served as deputy director. Mr. Zhu has had 22 years of
working experience in the iron and steel industry.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shen Xiaoling, aged 55, is an Executive Director (appointed on
1 July 2005) of the Company and also serves as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a diploma in management
from the Hebei Province Communist Party School in 2001. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Shen was the head of China Construction
Bank Luanxian Sub-branch. Mr. Shen also had 5 years experience
acting as the Head of China Construction Bank Qianxi Sub-branch
and more than 6 years of experience as the deputy head of Bank
of China Qianxi Sub-branch. Mr. Shen has been the deputy general
manager of Jinxi Limited since January 2002.

Mr. Shen resigned as the Deputy General Manager and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 4 October 2015.

Mr. Zhu Hao, aged 49, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 21 November 2007). Mr. Zhu graduated at Tianjin
Nankai University and obtained his Master degree in accounting from
the University of New South Wales in Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior
economist in China.

Mr. Han Li, aged 28, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 7 February 2012). Mr. Han joined the Group in 2009
as the assistant to the Financial Controller of the Company. He is
currently the executive assistant to Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and also serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He assists the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company managing the daily operations
of the Group. Currently, Mr. Han is the 12" representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC and 17" representative
of People’s Congress of the Communist Youth League of Ching;
he was awarded {PEmEELIFHRERAY (Enterprise Brand
Special Contribution Character) and Fz&FRE 2012 FEZZE N A
¥ — BT BEIRIR GBI T RBIFTIR T (The Harmonious China 2012
Influential People’s Award in Energy Saving). Mr. Han is the son of
Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
the substantial shareholders (within the meaning of the Part XV of
the SFO) (holding approximately 45.04% of the issued shares of the
Company) of the Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ondra Otradovec, aged 47, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company (re-appointed on 16 January 2015). Mr. Otradovec
graduated from State University of New York in Stony Brook with
a Bachelor degree in Finance. Mr. Otradovec is the Global Head of
Mergers & Acquisitions at ArcelorMittal (a substantial shareholder
of the Company). Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec has been responsible
for Mergers & Acquisitions at ArcelorMittal and has closely been
involved in a large number of acquisitions, mergers and divestments
undertaken by the company. Mr. Otradovec was also involved in the
acquisition of Hunan Valin Steel Tube & Wire Company and since
18 November 2005 has served as a director of Hunan Valin Iron
and Steel Company Limited (a company listed in Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Previously, he worked at HSBC Investment Bank, and
was responsible for corporate finance work in emerging markets.
During this period, he worked with Mittal Steel on the acquisition
of Nova Hut in Czech Republic and other steel companies. Mr.
Otradovec acted as a Non-executive Director of the Company from
2 January 2009 to 15 July 2013.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis, aged 51, is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 27 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, corporate internal control and governance,
acquisition and financial advisory, corporate restructuring and
liquidation, family trust and wealth management. He is currently
an Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and chairman
of the audit committee, member of remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company, Digital China Holdings
Limited, Wai Kee Holdings Limited, Integrated Waste Solutions
Group Holdings Limited and Greenheart Group Limited, the shares
of these 5 companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Wong was
once the INED of Lightscape Technologies Inc., a company with
its shares traded on the OTC Bulletin Board in the United States of
America, the INED of Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Sys Solutions Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange,
INED and audit committee chairman of eForce Holdings Limited
and China Environmental Technology Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Yardway Group Limited) whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and INED (appointed on 1 April
2016) of GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is the managing
director of Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited and a director of Union Alpha
CAAP Certified Public Accountants Limited, both are professional
accounting firms, and a Founding Director and member of Francis
M. C. Wong Charitable Foundation Limited, a charitable institution.
Previously, Mr. Wong worked for KPMG, an international accounting
firm for 6 years and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited for 2 years. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a certified tax adviser of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, and a fellow member of the Society of
Chinese Accountants & Auditors. Mr. Wong holds a master degree
in management (B 218 1) conferred by Guangzhou Jinan
University (BN ZEKE), the PRC.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Tianyi, aged 69, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 7 February 2012). He is
currently the executive vice president of The Chinese Society For
Metals. Mr. Wang has over 42 years of extensive experience in
the steel industry. Mr. Wang studied metallurgical machinery in 1t
FIMEERT (Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering) (now
known as 3t R EHE AEZ: University of Science and Technology of
Beijing) from 1965 and graduated in 1970. He then worked at HB S
3l #5155 R & {T A 7] (Handan Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited) (“Handan IS Group”) from 1970 to 1995 and held various
management and professional positions, included the position of a
technician, deputy factory manager and executive deputy general
manager. From 1995 to 2008, Mr. Wang re-designated and worked
at EILMEEBE AR E (T2 5] (Tangshan Iron and Steel Group
Company Limited) (“Tangshan IS Group”) as the chairman and
managing director. From 2005 to 2011, he was also the deputy
chairman and managing director of & i R/E RSB A BRETA
7] (Shougang Jingtang Iron and Steel Company Limited). From July
2008 to August 2011, he acted as the vice chairman of JA 1t $
EBEERET AR (Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company Limited)
(“HBIS Group”). HBIS Group was established after the merger of
Tangshan IS Group and Handan IS Group on 30 June 2008.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Zhou Guoping, aged 69, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 1 December 2012). Mr.
Zhou graduated from China University of Political Science and Law
(former known as The Peking College of Political Science and Law)
in 1969. Mr. Zhou started his career since 1970, he had been acted
as the Deputy Director of Public Security Bureau of Jilin City, Jilin
Province of China (FEIEMEE MM AL BEIHE), and the
Deputy Director of the State Security Bureau in Jiin City (4K
BxR%Z 2 BEIBE). He had also been in charge of the Jilin City
Forestry Security Bureau (MM MZERLEE). Mr. Zhou was the
Deputy Director of Municipal Justice Bureau of Changchun City,
Jilin Province of China (Bl & #& K& Al REIHEK), and the
Deputy Director of Public Security Bureau of Changchun City (&
HMALZBEIBE) and the Deputy Secretary of Politics and Law
Committee of Changchun City (&M ESAZREIE ) from 1994
to December 1997. During the period, Mr. Zhou was awarded the
title of Police Commissioner, Class Il (Deputy Bureau Level) (— A%
LT (BIBAR)). Since December 1997, Mr. Zhou was appointed
as the Deputy Director and the Secretary of Committee for Discipline
Inspection of Beijing Traffic Management Bureau (1t R AL A 8
EEREIRRFLEZER) til his retirement in 2006.

Mr. Zhou Guoping resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Lifeng, aged 39, is the general manager of Hebei Jinxi
Iron and Steel Group Company Limited. Mr. Yu began his career
in 1995 when he was employed as the sales supervisor of Han’s
erzhuang Iron Mine, and joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Yu has been
awarded the honorary title of Entrepreneur under the Spotlight (&%
BT E5), Workers’ Model in Qianxi Country (38 FaS445 BN1R &),
Ten Outstanding Youths in Tangshan City (BILT+XEFSF),
Success New Entrepreneur of Hebei Province (;al L& BIZETHE ).
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EZRSRERASHBEEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Yu Jianshui, aged 48, is a general manager of Hebei Jinxi Iron
and Steel Group Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited. Mr. Yu
was graduated at Hebei Polytechnic University in steel metallurgy
and obtained a MBA from University of Northern Virginia in June
2009. He joined the Group after graduation until May 2005 and
was employed as the deputy general executive manager of Shanxi
Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai Iron and Steel Company in May 2005.
He then re-joined the Group in April 2006. He has been awarded
County Technological Selected Talent (BRI AA ), Ten
Outstanding Youths in the County (& 1+ A £ H F ), Outstanding
Youth in Post of Tangshan City (& [T & Frfz8EF ), Workers’
Model in Hebei Province (i 3L & 25 B 156 ), The First Class Honour
of Technological Improvement in Tangshan City (1L RIS E S
—%1%), The Third Class Honour of Technological Improvement in
Hebei Province (JAJ b & By 26 = & 48),

Mr. Lam Pak Kan, aged 36, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s
degree of Business Administration in Accounting in 2001. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charterholder. Mr. Lam has
over 15 years of experience auditing and financial management in
accounting firm, asset management company and listed companies.

Mr. Lam Pak Kan was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company on 30 December 2015.

Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei, aged 40, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Au Yeung is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member and Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Au
Yeung holds a bachelor degree in professional accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and bachelor degree in laws
from the University of London. Mr. Au Yeung has over 17 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.

Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei resigned as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company on 30 December 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ &E88BE

The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the continued development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) with the best long term interest of the
Group and value enhancement for all shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) as our ultimate goal. The Company also believes
that sound corporate governance practices benefit the Group’s
employees and the community in which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied the
Principles and Code Provisions with the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2015, except for the deviation with explanation disclosed
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

During the year under review, the Board comprised the following
Directors and the composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager
and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
(resigned as the Deputy General Manager
and Chief Financial Officer on 4 October 2015)
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar
(resigned on 1 January 2015)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(resigned on 1 April 2016)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and Shareholders as well as to provide a balanced composition
in the Board so that there is a strong independent element on the
Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 24 to 29.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

= Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

“  Approval of dividends;

= Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;

=  Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance;

= Monitoring the performance of the management;

= Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Except for Mr. Han Li, who is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgments.

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, fourteen
Board meetings were held and the principal business transacted
included approving interim and annual results and reports,
assessing business development and business performance and
implementation. The attendance record of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2015 is set out as follows:

BEER(EERD®

BREBHEERBHURSEENR FIN &
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Number of Board Meeting

Board Attended/Eligible Attended
EERERLE

BEER BEREERH

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRUREA 9/14

Mr. Zhu Jun KESE 13/14

Mr. Shen Xiaoling VLIS S A 14/14

Mr. Zhu Hao KRGk E 14/14

Mr. Han Li RN E 11/14

Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 5t 4 10/14
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015) (R=ZF—AF— A+ NHEBEZZ(T)

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis HIRAEAE 12/14

Mr. Wang Tianyi TREHE 8/14

Mr. Zhou Guoping R S 11/14
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (RZF— VF/N A —HEHE)

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes

of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director.

A.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Board has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions and
monitor the daily operation of the Group.

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes
that there is no immediate need to separate the roles of
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
because the role of chief executive officer/general manager of
the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are performed by
other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
light of the future development of the operating activities or
businesses of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors of whom Mr. Wong Man
Chung, Francis has appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters in compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

B.

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Following the resignation of Mr. Zhou Guoping (“Mr. Zhou”)
on 1 April 2016, the number of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company will fall below the minimum number
required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Company no longer fulfils the requirement on
the minimum number of independent non-executive directors
for the formation of audit committee stipulated under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

The Company is endeavouring to identify suitable candidate
to fill the vacancy of an Independent Non-executive Director
and the member of the Audit Committee of the Company as
soon as practicable, with the relevant appointment(s) to be
made within three months from the effective date of Mr. Zhou’s
resignation as required under Rules 3.11 and 3.23 of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to the retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of the Directors to retire in each
year and the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall not be taken into account
in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation. The Company will
consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with the Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

All the Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. Currently, Mr. Han Jingyuan,
Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Han
Li being the Executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years. Mr. Ondra Otradovec being the Non-
executive Director is appointed for a fixed term of two years.
All Independent Non-executive Directors, including, Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Gouping
(resigned on 1 April 2016) are appointed for a fixed term of one
year. All the Directors are still subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

Except for the change in the Board as mentioned above,
during the year under review, no other Director was appointed
to fill any causal vacancy or otherwise.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

All Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

E.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover potential
legal actions against Directors and Officers.

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary

Each newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Group conducts its business to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant for the year ended
31 December 2015. The Company will arrange internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
provided reading materials on corporate governance matters
and update on the Listing Rules to all Directors for their
reference and studying. Besides, Mr. Ondra Otradovec and
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis also attended other seminars
and training sessions arranged by other professional firms/
institutions. Record of training each Director has received
for the year ended 31 December 2015 were kept by the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.  Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary

(continued)

The individual training record of each Director received for the

year ended 31 December 2015 is summarised as below:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development

Programme in 2015

Directors

B

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Director

Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(re-appointed on
16 January 2015)

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping

(resigned on 1 April 2016)

Reading Regulatory
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During the year under review, Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei, the

Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company
(resigned on 30 December 2015), undertook 38 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

G.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own

code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and

all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year

under review.

Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board

has established the following committees whose authorities

and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(7)

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has been established since 2005 with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee (which were available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company) have included those specific duties as set
out in the Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary. Pursuant to
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget, and to
consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response. The Audit
Committee should meet at least twice each year and
when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.

Board Committees (continued)

(1)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit
Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee during the year under
review and Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping
(resigned on 1 April 2016) as the members of the Audit
Committee, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

Audit Committee (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, two meetings of
Audit Committee were held. The attendance record for
each member is set out as follows:

Audit
Committee members

ERZEEENE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis \mXREAE

Mr. Wang Tianyi FRESE

Mr. Zhou Guoping BRI
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=F

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 and has also discussed the
internal control, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

(@)

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) has been established
since 2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which were available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company) have included the duties
which are set out in the Code Provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were amended on 23 March 2012 in order to
comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, (i) to
determine, with delegated responsibility from the
Board, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors; (iii) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; (iv) to review and approve the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and (v) to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

(2)  Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Wong Man Chung,
Francis, as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan and the remaining
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
namely, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping
(resigned on 1 April 2016) as the members of the
Remuneration Committee in compliance with the Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, three meetings
of Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follow:

Remuneration
Committee members

FHEEERE

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXCRGE
Mr. Han Jingyuan RRAUR B4
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRERE
Mr. Zhou Guoping BRIt

(resigned on 1 April 2016)

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the Note 46
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.

Board Committees (continued)

&

)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The biographies of members of the senior management
team at the date of this annual report are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Information” in this annual report. Pursuant
to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
emoluments of the senior management (excluding
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
within the following bands:

AEEATEARE1,000,0007C
(D1ETE1295215T)

RMB¥1 - RMB¥1,000,000
(approximately HK$1 to HK$1,029,621)
RMB¥1,000,001 - RMBY¥2,000,000
(approximately HK$1,229,522 to HK$2,459,042)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company
(“Nomination Committee”) has been established on 23
March 2012 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee (which
were available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company) have included the duties which are
set out in the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to
(i) review the Board composition, develop and formulate
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of directors; (i) make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of directors;
(iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and (iv) recommend the measurable
objectives for achieving diversity of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

S

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee will taking into consideration
a candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise and
knowledge, the requirements applicable to the Company
and the structure and composition of the Board,
identify, review and nominate with diligence and care
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before
making recommendations to the Board for their final
appointment.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan, as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee and the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou
Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016) as the members of
the Nomination Committee in compliance with Code
Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, two meetings
of Nomination Committee were held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follows:

Nomination
Committee members

REZEEENE

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRI A

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BIOREE

Mr. Wang Tianyi FRERE

Mr. Zhou Guoping BRIt
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=ZF
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 30 August 2013 with a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development of the Group. The Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy annually. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board’s composition
(including the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) which has been disclosed on pages 24 to 29 in this
annual report and considered the current Board’s composition is
appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Internal Controls

The Board recognises that constant changes taking place in the
business environment call for periodical reviews of the system of
internal controls. Well-managed internal controls enable effective
and efficient operations, ensure the reliability of internal and external
reporting and assist in the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board recognises that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is primarily
responsible for designing and implementing the policies and
procedures of the internal controls, which the Board and the Audit
Committee oversee the actions of senior management and monitor
the effectiveness of the controls previously established.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Internal Controls (continued)

The Company’s internal audit function is performed by the internal
audit department of the Group which reports to the Chief Operating
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer and has direct access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Chief Operating Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer report directly to the Chief Executive
Officer. The internal audit functions include (i) reviewing and reporting
on internal and operational controls; (i) follow-up on the suggestions
made by external auditors; (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews on
different operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of concern
identified by senior management.

However, internal control can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against errors or deliberate attempt to defraud
the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee devote to
closely monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group. Periodical meetings will be held and
guidance notes and training will be issued and provided to the senior
management where appropriate, to ensure an efficient and effective
system of internal control is in place.

In December 2014, the Company had engaged a professional firm
to conduct a review on the system of internal control regarding the
procedures on identifying and reporting on notifiable transactions
and connected transactions under the Chapter 14 and 14A of the
Listing Rules respectively. The Company took appropriate actions
to address the findings identified by the professional firm during its
review in 2015. Afterwards, the professional firm conducted a follow-
up review in assessing whether those appropriate actions were
taken by the Company and issued a follow-up review report to the
Company in December 2015, confirming the Group has adopted the
relevant policies and procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditor

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report, the external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim
review and taxation services) provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms of the same international network for the year
ended 31 December 2015 were approximately RMB 4.13 million and
RMB 0.14 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report, PricewaterhouseCoopers and its member firms of the same
international network provided non-audit services mainly on interim
review and taxation services. These non-audit services are engaged
only as they are more effective or economical than those available
from other service providers and will not constitute adverse impact
on the independence of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of
annual fees to external auditor for non-audit services and for audit
services in 2015 have been scrutinised by the Audit Committee.

Risk Management

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results of operation
may be affected by risk and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. The factors set out below are those that the Company
believes could result in the Group’s financial conditions or results
of operations differing materially from expected or historical results.
There may be other risks in addition to those mentioned below which
are unknown to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

The Group’s results are affected by trends in the industry in which
it operates. Income from the operations is dependent upon the
conditions in global iron and steel market and the real estate
business in the PRC. Therefore there can be no assurance that
changes in these conditions will not adversely affect the Group’s
financial conditions and results of operations.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Market Risk

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the Mainland China. The Group operates in
highly competitive and rapidly changing market. The intensification
of price competition by existing competitors, product innovation or
technical advancement could adversely affect the Group’s financial
conditions and results operations.

Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

Credit risk arises from a number of areas. These include the
possibility that a counter-party in a transaction may default during
the settlement process. It also arises from lending, settlement,
treasury, transaction and other activities undertaken by the Group.
During the year under review, the Group entered into certain iron
ore swap contracts so as to reduce the impact of the volatility of the
iron ore price on the Group. The Group uses a combination of iron
ore derivatives to achieve the above purpose. The day-to-day credit
management is performed by the management of the respective
subsidiaries with reference to the creditworthiness, the type and
value of collateral available, the length of business relationship with
the counter-parties and the receipt of bank acceptance notes from
customers.

Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers
and the Group’s senior notes, which is denominated and settled
in USD. Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to the macro-
economic performance of different countries and fund flows between
countries arising from trade or capital commitments. In view of the
continuous decrease of the RMB exchange rate against USD since
the reform in RMB exchange policy in 2015, during the year ended
31 December 2015, the Group has entered into certain foreign
currency forward contracts so as to reduce the impact of the volatility
of the RMB exchange rate against USD. The Group also reviewed
and rearranged its monetary assets to mitigate the impact from the
change of RMB to USD exchange rate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. The written requisition must state the
purposes of the SGM, signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed
by one or more of those Shareholders. If the requisition is in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested. Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal office
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less
than six weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition. If the written request
is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to include
the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s)
concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined
by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM
or the statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post to the Hong Kong office.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland China. Any change in the policy and
procedure in the Mainland China may have adverse effects on the
Group’s operation and results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Shareholders of the Company. A Shareholders Communication
Policy was adopted on 23 March 2012 to ensure that Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company. The policy is
posed on the Company’s website. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its Shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the Shareholders of the Company and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), chairman or members of the committees
and senior management of the Group and where applicable
are available to answer questions at the general meeting of the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The rights of the Shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a
poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
Shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at general
meeting will be voted by poll. The poll voting results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.

Under the Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance record of the 2015 AGM held on 27 May 2015 for
each of the individual Director was as follows:

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 52 [H % B A FR 2 7]
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued) BERREZEE )

Board Attendance of

BER HFE 8%
2015 AGM
—E-1F

REBFAE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Han Jingyuan BHURSTE 1/1

Mr. Zhu Jun KERE 0/

Mr. Shen Xiaoling M3zt 0/1

Mr. Zhu Hao RS 1/1

Mr. Han Li BNEE 0/

Non-executive Director

FHTES
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 74 0/1
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015) (R=F—AF—H+ANAEBEZT)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXRAE 1/1

Mr. Wang Tianyi TREXE 0/1

Mr. Zhou Guoping ABFEE 0/1
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=F—NFH—HEHE)

The Company will continue to enhance communication and RARHEEILEBERR 2 ENERK
relationship with its Shareholders. Enquiries from the Shareholders of R ARBIRR 2 ERGSERIEF
the Company are dealt with in an informative and timely manner. EERIE o
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The Board presents their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company’s principal
activities are investment holding and trading of steel products and
iron ore. The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
sales of iron and steel products, trading of steel products and iron
ore and real estate business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Approximately 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and
contribution to results are derived from the PRC and mainly from
the production and sales of iron and steel products and real estate
business for the year ended 31 December 2015 and are set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2015 and its consolidated balance sheet as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on page 86 to 89. The balance
sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2015 is set out in Note 45
to the consolidated the financial statements.

At a Board meeting held on 31 March 2016, the Board did not
recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, an analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 8
to 11 and pages 12 to 283 of this annual report respectively. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
can be found in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s environment, society and
governance, relationship with employees, customers and suppliers
and compliance with laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained on pages 80 to 81 of the
Directors’ Report of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 25 May 2016 to Friday, 27 May 2016 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares may be
registered, for the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The record date for the annual general meeting shall
be 27 May 2016. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 24 May 2016.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, is set out on page 240.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital

during the year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 December 2015, the Company’s accumulated losses

amounted to RMB 812 million (2014: RMB 923 million) and the
Company did not have distributable reserves.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to
RMB 4,340 million (2014: RMB 5,123 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would

oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(resigned on 1 April 2016)

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company and the Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Han Li and Mr.
Wang Tianyi will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Directors’ fee specified in each of the existing service
contracts of Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Han Li and Mr. Wang Tianyi is
HK$400,000, HK$400,000 and HK$400,000 respectively. The
basis of determining the Directors’ fee was based on the mutual
negotiation between level of the Directors with reference to the
range of prevailing directors’ fee for directors of listed companies in
Hong Kong. Other than Mr. Han Li is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Zhu Jun and
Mr. Wang Tianyi do not have any relationships with any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 24 to 30 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years. The Non-executive Director has
service contract with the Company for a fixed term of two years. The
Independent Non-executive Directors have service contracts with
the Company for a fixed term of one year. All the service contracts
with the Executive Directors and the Non-executive Director may be
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Apart from the Director service contracts, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr.
Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and Mr. Han Li also have other service
contracts with the Company and its subsidiaries. The emoluments
specified in other service contracts with them are determined by
the remuneration committee of the Company with reference to
their respective qualification and experience, responsibilities to be
undertaken, and the prevailing market level of remuneration of similar
position.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, subject to the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, every Director shall be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses
and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors
of the Group.

BORROWINGS WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to the covenants of the 2015 Senior Notes and 2017
Senior Notes of the Company, there are specific performance
obligations imposed on the Company’s controlling shareholders
which require that each of Mr. Han Jingyuan and ArcelorMittal
should directly or indirectly retain at least 20% of the total voting
power of the voting stock of the Company. As at 31 December
2015, the outstanding aggregate principal of the 2015 Senior Notes
and the 2017 Senior Notes amounted to nil and US$111,368,000
respectively. 2015 Senior Notes was fully redeemed on 18 August
2015 and the 2017 Senior Notes will be matured on 17 November
2017.
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BORROWINGS WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (continued)

On 25 January 2016, the Company commenced the offer to
repurchase for cash and consent solicitation relating to any and
all of its outstanding 2017 Senior Notes.

The offer expired on 22 February 2016. A principal amount of
US$32,212,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes had been repurchased
and cancelled by the Company. Consents from holders with
respect to principal amount of US$68,107,000 of the 2017
Senior Notes had been obtained. As such, the Company
entered into a supplemental indenture embodying the proposed
amendments (“Supplemental Indenture”) on 24 February 2016
and the Supplemental Indenture becomes effective on 26
February 2016.

Following the completion of the repurchase, the outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is
US$79,156,000 and the related specific performance obligations
were removed.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the interest and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENBENESERARE®
SECURITIES (continued)
Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company: AN B FARRE R (D B e RS
Interests in
underlying Percentage
shares of the

pursuant to Company’s

Interests in Shares share issued share
RipER options capital
Corporate Personal RIBHAE {5R27  Long/Short
Interest Interest EHRERS BRITRA position
ARER BARR MR MBS B/ %A
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 1)
SRR (1) 1,317,502,849 - - 44.94% Long (#F)
- 2800000 28,500,000 1.07% Long (F)
Mr. Zhu Jun
RERE - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long ()
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
BRI - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long (#F)
Mr. Zhu Hao
ERE - - 7,800,000 0.27% Long (#F)
Mr. Han Li
BHEE - - 5,400,000 0.18% Long (1)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(re-appointed on 16 January 2015)
Ondra Otradovec %4
(R=FE—RFE—H+ AEBEEH) - - - - -
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
BENTRRE - - 6,600,000 0.23% Long (&)
Mr. Wang Tianyi
FRESRHE - - 2,000,000 0.07% Long (47)

Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
BT EE(R=F—NFA—AEFF) - - - - -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

(continued)

Note:

1. At 31 December 2015, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned
63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings Limited
(“Wellbeing Holdings”) and held 16.09% of the issued share capital
of Wellbeing Holdings on trust for the benefit of certain employees
of the subsidiary of the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially
owned 1,255,849,124 Shares, representing approximately
42.84% of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Han also
beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of Chingford
Holdings Limited (“Chingford Holdings”) which beneficially owned
61,653,725 Shares, representing approximately 2.10% of the

issued share capital of the Company.

At 31 December 2015, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owns
2,800,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.10% of the

issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled
Share Option Scheme” below, at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors, chief executives and their associates of the
Company had any interest and short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and Senior Notes of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted three share option schemes approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 17 May
2006 (“2006 Share Option Scheme”), approved by the Shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 20 December 2010 (“2010
Share Option Scheme”) and approved by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 15 May 2013 (“2013 Share Option
Scheme”) respectively (collectively referred to as “Share Option
Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who are regarded as valuable human resources
of the Group or who have contributed to the growth and success
of the Group with their performance and other factors (e.g. their
years of service with the Company and/or work experience and/or
knowledge in the industry etc.) to contribute further to the Company.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise
of an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Schemes.
The Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting of
an option on a case by case basis taking into account of the relevant
factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers appropriate.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the Share Option
Schemes to each eligible participant within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders
approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years from their respective dates of adoption.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant.

The consideration payable on acceptance of the options granted to
an grantee under the respective Share Option Schemes is HK$1.00.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Schemes upon exercising of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised is 242,670,000 Shares, representing
approximately 8.28% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2015.

Pursuant to the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2006
Share Option Scheme are 290,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.91% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2015. Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option
Scheme includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive
and whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-
time or part-time) of any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether
on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid). Details of the share options outstanding
under 2006 Share Option Scheme were as follows:
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENBRESTE e
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of  the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options
immediately ~ outstanding  yearended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise before the at 31 December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2015 2015 2015 2015 the Company
REZ
REE  -%-If R

R -F-1f t-F  ZE-1%
ZE-%F t=F  =t-Bt 128 ERERE
2 -A-B  Zt-BL EEREFE/ Zt-8  RBERLAF
R¥BAMH ATEH  EERET H8/&N0 AN REHBRE
RFR  AOEHE TEE SRUME  EREHE MBREHE  BREZR  BERESE  BAEMM
HKS HKS$
BT BT

Mr. Han Jingyuan 2009224 20092124 139 124 2900000 - - 2800000 0.10%
BHRRE to

ES

2019/2/23

20101126 201012720 300 300 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.20%

to

N
==

2016/5/16

Mr. Zhu Jun 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

ey
==

2019/2/23

Mr. Shen Xeoling 20002024 2000/2/24 139 124 2600000 - - 2600000 0.09%
MR o

oy
==d

2019/2/23

Mr. Zhu Hao 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
RERE o

=
==

2019/2/23
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options during the lapsed during  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  year ended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise hefore the at 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2015 2015 2015 2015 the Company
REZ
AEZ  -%-1f R

B ZE-IF tZh Z%B-if
“%-if tZA  Zt-At tZB  RERERE
B -A-B  Zt-BL EEABAE/  Zt-B  RfALE
RFHAH AIRK  EERRT HE/KM AN RAKRE
R¥E  AfEHE ke SRUNE RREME OBRREEE  RREZE  BRRER  HNAEMM

HKS$ HKS$
A7 B
Mr. Han Li 2009/12/29 20103/29 284 217 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 0.06%
Bk o
S
201912128
Mr. Wong Man 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
Chung, Francis to
EY G z
20192/23
Employees 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 0.04%
[E8 o
S
2019/2/23
Employees 2009/12/29 201013/29 284 277 140,050,000 - (250000000 115,050,000 3.92%
ES to (Note 1)
3 (Bit1)
201912128
Qther Participants 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,600,000 - 2,600,000) - -
HtipEE fo (Note 1)
[ (#it1)
2019/2/23
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENBRESTE e
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No.of the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  yearended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise before the at 31 December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2015 2015 2015 2015 the Company
L
MEE -%-1F i

R ZE-1% tZF  Z%-1%
“E-FE t=F  =t-Bt TZF  ERERE
P33 -A-B  Zt-BL EEREFE/ Zt-8  RBEAAF
R¥EAMH ATEH  EERET HE/&H AERN REHBE
R¥E  UTEHE TFE SRAFE BRERE NEREBE  BREXE  BREZE  HNESM

HKS HKS

BT BT
Other Participants 2009511 2000511 150 149 2,000,000 - (2,000,000 - -
HpaE fo (Note 1)

3 (1)
2019/5/10

Total
At 166,150,000 - (29600000 136,550,000 4.66%

Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2015, 29,600,000 options il REE-_ZT—RF+-_A=+—H
were lapsed. 1EFE A - 29,600,00017 B8 A% #E 2
KK -
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the Company can issue
options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme are 146,486,250 Shares, representing approximately 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015.
Eligible participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme includes
all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and whether
independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of any company in the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an employment
or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid
or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors to have
contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest. Details of the share
options outstanding under 2010 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

RZE-%1%

Closing

price

per Share

immediately

Exercisable Exercise before the

Date of grant period price  date of grant

R -A-A

RTAAN

R¥R  WARHEE k8 SRYTE

HK$ HKS

BT BN

Mr. Han Jingyuan 20110328 2011/04/27 3.08 3.08
BHERE fo
Y
2021/03/27

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]

options
outstanding
at 1 January

R{TEN
FREHE

9,800,000

DR R B IRER &)

BBE-_T—ZTFEREE - ARFA]
BTERE UEREBE-_Z-—ZTFE
RIEAE S TREMNEBREEITSE
e AT 25 1T 89 IR 17 48 20 = 146,486,250 AR
BH HARAR_ZE—RF+=A
=+ —HHBEBITRENS% - —F—F
FHERESINAERZAERELRR
ARRES(ERIITESIIFNTES
RERESEL) AEBAEMKE AT
FAEBEMAKE RRIFERAERD
ERAEENEES(ERI2BIFRE)
(T EEREAN A AR BN
ERREXFH)INESRAHUAEET
AIKE ARSI ANEBERKERRFEA
BRAEZN W ERELEBOERA
T ZE-TFHEREFTE THRITE
HIBARIERT BT ¢

No. of Approximate
options shareholding
No.of exercised/ percentage of
options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying
granted lapsed during options  Shares for
during the theyear  outstanding the options
year ended ended at  inthe share
31 December 31 December 31 December capital of
2015 2015 2015  the Company

REz

%-1f

REZ t=f

Z8-1fF  Zt-BE R-%B-EF

= EER TZh BRERE
=t-Hi Bfife/ Zt-B  REMERAT
EERRT 2/ 5HM ARN  RAGRE
MEREHE RRERR BREER  BOREMM
- - 9,800,000 0.33%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2015 2015 2015 2015  the Company
REZE
Z5-1f
i3 E =

“%-1f  =t-fAb R-Z-1f
R=Z-%F t2f EERM T2 BRERE
2 -f-B  Zt-AL BT/ ZT-B  REALTF
RFAAH RGN FERRT  HE/KHN ATEN  RANRE

BB OEHE TEE SRUFE EREHE NBRERE BEREZE  BREHE  BYEM
HKS$ HKS$

ey B

Mr. Han Jingyuan 201200330 2012/06/30 203 201 9800000 - - 9800000 0.33%
ByARE o

ey
==t

20201219

Mr. Zhu Jun 2010/12/24 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE fo

S

202012119

20120330 2012/03/30 208 201 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

E2

202012119

Mr. Shen Xaoing 201012024 2010/12/24 3182 317 2600000 - - 2600000 0.09%
Ry o

oy
==

20201219

2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

ES

202012119
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at1January 31December 31 December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2015 2015 2015 2015 the Company
REE
2-1f
ez t=A

“E-1fF  =t-HE R-E-1f
RZE-1F +=R EER 1= BRERE
25 -f-B  Zt-At B/ =t-8  RBEALE
R¥BaH ATEN  EEAET  HE/&HN ATEN  RAKRE
R¥E  ATEHE FE SHRAWE BREHE NEREZE  BREXE  RREEE  HAESM
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Mr. Zhu Hao 2010/112/24 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

ES

20201219

20120330 2012/03/30 203 201 2,600,000 -

to

ES

2020112119

2,600,000 0.09%

Mr. HanLi 20101224 2010/12/24 3182 317 1200000 -
Bhik 0

~
T

2020112119

1,200,000 0.04%

201200330 2012/03/30 208 201 2,600,000 -

to

ES

20201219

2,600,000 0.09%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
BXREL

Mr. Wang Tianyi
IRERL

Employees

8

Date of grant

RFH

201012/24

2012/03/30

2012/03/30

201012724

Exercisable

period

TR

201012124

to

ey
==t

20201219

2012/03/30

to

S

202012119

2012/03/30

to

E2

20201219

201012124

to

ay
==

20201219

Closing

price

per Share

immediately

Exercise  before the
price  date of grant
b3

RTHAM

ik SRYHE
HKS HKS$
AR AR
3182 317
208 201
208 201
3182 317

No. of
options
outstanding
at 1 January
2015

R=%-EF
-B-H
RATEN

BREHE

2,300,000

2,300,000

2,000,000

22,200,000

No. of
options
granted

during the
year ended
31 December
2015

REE
“E-1E
=R
=t+-AL
FEART
MEREHR

No. of
options
exercised/
cancelled/
lapsed during
the year
ended

31 December
2015

REZE
2-1%
=
=t-Ai
FER
BT/
i/ KM
FlEHE

(4,800,000)
(Note 2)
(fit2)

LRGSR BRER &)

No. of
options
outstanding
at

31 December
2015

WoE-1%
=8
=t-f
RTEH
BREHR

2,300,000

2,300,000

2,000,000

17,400,000

Approximate
shareholding
percentage of
the underlying
Shares for

the options

in the share
capital of

the Company

BRERE
RtERLE
RAfRE
fnEat

0.08%

0.08%

0.07%

0.59%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Date of grant
iails
Employee 2011/01/14
[E8
Employees 2012/03/30
[E8
Other Participants 2010/12/24
Hfppa%
2012/03/30
Total
it

Exercisable
period

7R

2012/03/30

to

ES

2020112119

201012/24

to

~
T

2020112119

2012/03/30

to

ey
==t

20201219

Closing

price

per Share
immediately

Exercise  before the
price  date of grant

28

RFRzMN

€  SRUFE
HKS$ HK$

BT BT

320 315

203 201

3182 317
203 201

DR R B IRER &)

Note 2: 20,750,000 options were lapsed during the year ended 31

December 2015.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 52 [F 2 B A FR 2 7]

No. of Approximate
options shareholding
No.of  exercised/ percentage of
options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying
No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for
options during the theyear  outstanding  the options
outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share
at1January 31 December 31December 31 December capital of
2015 2015 2015 2015  the Company
REE
Z5-1f
ez t=A
Z2-1%  Zt-HLE RoR-EF
R=B-1% t=f EER t2A ERERE
-B-8  =t-Bt Bfift/  Zt-B RHEALRF
RORH  EERERT  EE/ RN AMIEH  RAHRE
BREHE NEWEHE  BREER  BREZE  HOBEAM
800,000 - (800,000) - -
(Note 2)
(#it2)
48,470,000 - (7,350,000 41,120,000 140%
(Note 2)
(Bit2)
4,600,000 - (4,600,000) - -
(Note 2)
(#it2)
5,200,000 - (3,200,000) 2,000,000 0.07%
(Note 2)
(fit2)
126,870,000 - (20,750,000 106,120,000 3.62%
#Hit2: REE-ZE-—AF+=ZA=+—8

IEEE R 20,750,000 10 B #E S
REH o
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme are 146,571,250 Shares, representing 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2015. Eligible participants of the 2013 Share Option Scheme
includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and
whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time
or parttime) of any company in the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an
employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors
to have contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest. As at 31
December 2015, no options were granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme.

The accounting policy for equity-settled share option is stated in the
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or were the Company or any of
its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Company’s Directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

LRGSR BRER &)

BIBE-_T—=FBREE - ARF]A]
BITHRE  UWERBE_Z—=FERK
RIS TR EHOM B BRERITHER
Al T EITHAR (D B85 146,571,250 %
B HERARTRZZE—AF+=
A=1+—HBE#ETRANE% - —FT—=
FHERESINAGERZHAERIERR
AERES(ERIITIENITRERE
BB~ AEEEMAKE QAR HAEE
FAKEARHEERA RN EMNELE
WEIE B (Bm i ecR) (TmikiE
A AR EESIUNE M ARRE SR
FINREERREAEEERKE AT
K AEBERKE R RIIFERA BT
FREBELEMOERAL - RZF
—hAF+-A=+—08 BERE_-F
— =R B L IR -

AR E B S AT BRI A #
IEHRERM T2 25

ESRBRODESFHNER

Bk L XS - RF REMERE - 5%
BEENESARFSENERBIRD
TNAEN FREREBBEARRFR
EEMEA BB REFMERE
A RITEEARFERN  MARRK
HAEER AR - [/ XK B AR MM B
NEBER AR R BUEARRRIE
= RESENRBIRHTN\ERNT
LR BEATEMEAB B AZSER -

EXEH
B £ SCPR I ER S Ko & OF B 755 ¥R AR BT 7E 43
PR BRI R S5 45 B B SR S EL AL AAT Y

BARNREALERRRASENBER
BRI EREREL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
are as follows:

Number of
Name shares held
£ RO &R
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG 1,377,491,891
(“AM Holdings AG”) (Note 1)
(T AM Holdings AG J) (f&3£ 1)
Wellbeing Holdings 1,255,849,124

Note:

(1) At 31 December 2015, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs. Usha
Mittal beneficially own 39.39% of the issued share capital of
ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds the entire equity interest in
AM Holdings AG, which beneficially owns 1,377,491,891 Shares,
representing approximately 46.99% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Saved as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities sections, at 31 December 2015, no person,
other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 52 [H % B A FR 2 7]

FERR

N—_ZE—RAF+_A=+—H8 BREX
NARBES KB EAIE 86 IEMFE
MR BT - FRAT(RRRE
FERFETHABRINRARR RN K
RN EEERIOAB T

Percentage

of the Company’s
issued share Long/Short
capital Position

HAELATE
BITRABDL BORE
46.99% Long (%)
42.84% Long (&f)

it

(1) WR-ZE—AF+-F=+—8 Lakshmi
Niwas Mittal 754 F1 Usha Mittal A K & #3%
A ArcelorMittal 2 25 77A% 28 39.39% -
ifi ArcelorMittal fEi# # 5 AM Holdings
AG & B HE2S - AM Holdings AG &
A 1,377,491,891 B AL 1 - 4915 A
NRIEEITIRANY) 46.99% 4 ©

BREXREERBEFNERMARE —E
FTEE@E R —RAF+=_A=+—
H: REARAIZBRESRBEKROE
336 IRFTFER R R M - BIEA LR
NRAERHEEITHABRINRAEARF
Bin AR DR R SAR -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had conducted a review of the related
party transactions of the Group and is satisfied that all connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions have been
properly reported and complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into and/or
are ongoing for which relevant announcements and independent
shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been made and obtained
by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and disclosed in the Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Company where applicable.

Continuing connected transactions

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Longba Charging Company Limited
(“Longba Charging”), an associate of a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company, for the purchase of lime products and
related products from Longba Charging by Jinxi Limited and/or its
subsidiaries for the three years ending 31 December 2015. The
annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2015
was RMB 180 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB 62.6 million
(excluding VAT).

On 29 January 2016, Jinxi Limited entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Longba Charging for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31 December
2018. The annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the renewal framework agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 will not
exceed RMB 130 million, RMB 130 million and RMB 130 million
respectively.

BREXS

RERN - RRFBETRE NilZF%
5 BIEWFTAERBERS RS
HERSGHEERE i&&&wtm%ﬁﬂll
FUAEZHERTE - IR ETHREIE 14A
ENHRTE ETHAEFGREMRITE
E)VEAEEETHTIRSEERL
)Sz/iz#—ir,a;_ﬁ CMARFEIEL AR
AERESEBYREMANREE) RR
RAREHMBEREMF 43P E TR0

HWA) °

RZFE—ZF+ZA=Z++tH - 2FAH
HHEBRSGETENEREERREE
FREH] ARERBAREFERRED
EA) BEAMER SKEMNEA
RERBEMNBEARERMBEBEER
AN —HOERBEE_T—RFT=A
—t—HI=F -ZRFEE_ZF—H
FH+_A=+—HLEFENFELRA
ARB18EIL LR SGREBEZT
—RAF+-A=+—HLFENBBET
SREN) BAREK 6,260 87T ©

RZZFE-—RF-—AZTNB - EEHE
HEEFENCDRIT —DETER RS
H-E—R"F—HA—BARABEZ—N
FH+—A=+—BER RBP=F-8&
FIHEZR A TT%%L E’JT BREIHE
EZT—RF- —tFRZF-N
¢+_H:+*H¢:¢E’U¢EL5E71
ARARE13ET - ARE1IEITRA
R#¥1.318T °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Pingguan County Jinyin Charging Company Limited
(“Pingguan County Jinyin”), a company established in the PRC
and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
an associate of a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company, for the purchase of lime products and related products
from Pingquan County Jinyin by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries
for the three years ending 31 December 2015. The annual cap for
this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB
7.5 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was nil.

On 29 January 2016, Jinxi Limited entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Pingquan County Jinyin for a further term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31
December 2018. The annual cap for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated under the renewal framework agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 will not exceed RMB 7.5 million, RMB 7.5 million and RMB 7.5
million respectively.

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Han’erzhuang Village Wang Zhihong
Iron Ore Mill (“Qianxi Iron Ore Mill”), an associate of a substantial
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, in which Jinxi Limited
and/or its subsidiaries would purchase iron powder from Qianxi
Iron Ore Mill at prevailing market prices for the three years ending
31 December 2015. The annual cap for this transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was RMB 182 million. The total amount of
the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
nil (excluding VAT). Following the expiry of the framework agreement
on 31 December 2015, Jinxi Limited did not renew the framework
agreement with Qianxi Iron Ore Mill.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 52 [H % B A FR 2 7]

BEXS#)
FHEER S 4

RZZFE—=—F+-_A=-++H " ZAH
BETRFEREMERAB(FRE
ER ] —ERFPBERINAR  BEARD
ANEEIFEEEHNBRATIRARRNE
RAIFERENHEA)  BLEAME
k/SENBARATFREEZREER
REGMEBERT L —HIERBZE
—E-RE+-A=+—HBIt=F - %
REGEBFE_E—RAF+-_A=+—81
FEMNFELRAARKETS08T o Lt
RERBE-_E—HF+-_A=+—8H
IFFEMBEAE -

R-ZE—RE—AZ+hAB 27
Y RBEERDFT —DETELED
FOBAIE-REF-A—BRARE=Z
—N\F+ZA=+—HE® ' BH#E=
F o BRIERW = TRETHRERE
REGBE_FT—RF - ZE—LF K=
E-NF+_A=+—HLE=ZFNEFE
FRABIABARE 7508 T - ARKET750
BLTRARKETS08TT

RZF—=—F+=-_A=++tH " EAH
HEBHBEREMT SAEEM(E
FREER | ARRMB AT EERRH
HEA) BEAMER SKEMNBEA
AR — MR TS E M B P R R B 85
A —iEERE_T—AF+=A
=t+t—HE=F - ZRHEBE-FT—H
FH+_A=+—HIEFENFELRAE
ARKA182ETL s FURHGREBEZT
—AF+_A=+—RHLEFENBECT
EREW)AT - BEXRHBER=-ZT—H
FH+-A=+—R0%|H%& - EriHEn
EBIBUE R T BB ER T -



Directors’ Report EER#%

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 2 January 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Tangshan Jinxin Enterprise Group Limited (formerly
known as Qianxi County Jinxin Mining Company Limited) (“Jinxin
Mining”), a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
for the purchase of iron powder and related products from Jinxin
Mining and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries
for the three years ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for
this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB 140
million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction incurred by Jinxi
Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2015
was nil.

On 4 June 2014, the Company entered into the iron and steel
framework agreement with Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd. (“Oriental
Sheet Piling”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of ArcelorMittal, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, in which the Company and/
or its subsidiaries would sell steel products to Oriental Sheet Piling
and/or its subsidiaries at prevailing market prices for the three years
ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB 139 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB 105.6 million (excluding VAT) (Note 43(b)).

BEXS#E)
BEBEIS®)

R-Z—WMFE—A-H ZANEEE
LW EEXEEERAR(ABERE
EBEEERAR) ([EE%£] K
NEIMB AR EERE)  FEMME
N/SEMB AR A EREER,SE
B ARBEEMMMBEER Y —%H
ERBHFE_T—"F+_A=+—H
F=F - ZRPBE_ZFT—HF+=A
=+—HIEFELERAARE14ETT -
HEARE R ENBRREEN LR
SREE_ZT—RF+-_A=+—H1t
FEMBEBAT -

RZE—OFASANAB s ARA HE
Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd. ([ Oriental
Sheet Pilingl) * A" 2 & £ 2 R &
ArcelorMittal B a2 BB KT B A F])
BRI BBEARR R SEWEB R RIE—
A% T 5 (& 17 Oriental Sheet Piling &, s H
B B8~ 7] 45 5 #4322 on B0 o S AE 22 170
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 31 October 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi Dong Fang Shen Huo Environmental
Protection Technology Product Company Limited (“Dong Fang Shen
Huo”), a company established in the PRC and currently owned as
to 81% by Mr. Wang Qinghong who is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Yu Lifeng, the general manager and director of Jinxi Limited, and
is a deemed connected person of the Company, for the purchase
of energy-saving products from Dong Fang Shen Huo and/or its
subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for the three years
ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB 80 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB 18.0 million (excluding VAT).

On 4 December 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi Xin Ding Da Trading Company Limited (“Xin
Ding Da”), a company established in the PRC and wholly owned by
Mr. Zhang Xin who is the nephew of Mr. Zhang Yuhai, a director of
Tianjin Juli Trade Company Limited (“Juli Trade”), Hebei Jinxi Iron and
Steel Group Special Steel Company Limited (“Jinxi Special Steel”)
and Qianxi Xinhaiyuan Trade Company Limited (“Xinhaiyuan”), and
is a deemed connected person of the Company, for the purchase of
iron powder and coke and related products from Xin Ding Da and/
or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for the three
years ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB 70 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB 33.9 million (excluding VAT).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 4 December 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi Jin Zhao Lai Iron Ore Mine (“Jin Zhao Lai”),
a company established in the PRC and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Yugui who is the brother of Mr. Zhang Yuhai, a director of Juli Trade,
Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, and is a deemed connected
person of the Company, for the purchase of iron powder and related
products from Xin Ding Da and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited
and/or its subsidiaries for the three years ending 31 December 2016.
The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB 60 million. The total amount of the aforesaid
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2015 was nil (excluding
VAT).

On 5 January 2015, Jinxi Special Steel entered into a tenancy
agreement with Qianxi County Jinxi Wantong Ductile Iron Pipe
Limited (“Jinxi Wantong”), a company established in the PRC and
wholly owned by Xin Ding Da which is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Xin, who is the nephew of Mr. Zhang Yuhai, a director of Juli Trade,
Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, and is a deemed connected
person of the Company, for leasing of the production facilities of
Jinxi Wantong for the three years commencing on 26 November
2014 and expiring on 25 November 2017 by Jinxi Special Steel. The
annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2015
was RMB 204 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2015 was 177.8 million (excluding
VAT).

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (c) according to the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter confirming nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages
75 to 79 of this annual report were not in compliance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE

The Group has committed to perform its corporate responsibility
for environmental protection and strictly comply with the national
regulations by continue investment in its production facilities
to reduce emissions and energy consumption during the steel
production process so as to minimise the impact of the production
process on the environment. The Group has also recognised the
local laws and regulations which are applicable to the Group’s
business to ensure the operation of the Group complies with all the
relevant local laws, regulations and standards.

Except for the installation of electrostatic precipitators and bag
precipitators at the production facilities, all the operating production
facilities are equipped with environmental control facilities in
order to reduce exhaust emission and meet the relevant national
standard. Production and domestic wastewater of the Company
will be recycled and subsequently used in the closed water loop. In
addition, measures for filtration and reuse are adopted to reduce
the production of waste mineral oil. For the waste mineral oil which
cannot be reused, we engage the experts with relevant qualification
and processing capacity to carry out the harmless treatment of
waste mineral oil for us as required by the state environmental
regulations. Smelting slag and solid waste produced during other
smelting process of iron making will be sold to other cement factories
or used as raw material in other production process. After the above
comprehensive treatment measures, the impact on the environment
shall be reduced.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 52 [H % B A FR 2 7]
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the employees of the Group are valuable
assets. The Group offered competitive remuneration to attract and
retain the talented employees. Regular review on remuneration of
employees is made in order to retain outstanding employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Our relationships with major customers are contract-based. The
Group cherished the mutually beneficial relationships with our
customers. We will provide the best value to our clients to establish
and consolidate the Group’s reputation in the industry. Also, we
believe that maintaining long term relationship with the suppliers is
essential to the Group’s success. The Group will keep strengthening
the partnership with clients and suppliers, aiming to realize a triple-
win result.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has implemented policies
and procedures which related to our industry designed to ensure
compliance with the most relevant laws and regulations, but there
can be no assurance that the Group’s employees or agents will
not violate such laws and regulations or the Group’s policies and
procedures.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Trading in the shares of the Company had been suspended from
29 April 2014 when the public float of the Company fell below 25%.
The Stock Exchange indicated that the Company is required to
suspend trading in the shares of the Company until the minimum
public float is restored. Details of public float status of the Company
have been disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 30
December 2013, 11 April 2014, 5 May 2014, 30 May 2014, 6 July
2014, 20 August 2014, 26 August 2014, 5 September 2014, 16
October 2014, 21 November 2014, 16 December 2014, 13 February
2015, 18 March 2015, 16 April 2015, 15 May 2015, 29 May 2015,
15 June 2015, 17 July 2015, 14 August 2015, 14 September 2015,
6 October 2015, 6 November 2015, 7 December 2015, 7 January
2016, 5 February 2016 and 4 March 2016.

The Company will make further announcement to inform its
Shareholders and potential investors for the development as and
when appropriate pursuant to the Listing Rules and/or the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Apart from the repurchase of a total of principal amount of
US$160,190,000 and US$96,217,000 of the 2015 Senior Notes
and the 2017 Senior Notes respectively, neither the Company, nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2015.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 Jy 52 [H % B A FR 2 7]
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 31 March 2016

* For identification purposes only
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #Z% B Eh ik &

_
pwc

To the Shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 86 to 239, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

FRLT K Bt T o » AR BOK 7 K
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

it : +852 2289 8888 » fHH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 4t E&&X

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABIERN ESEINARE ([ARY ) T RAERL)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Investment in an associate

Available-for-sale financial assets

LLoan receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amount due from a related party

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Properties under development
and held for sale
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Prepaid current income tax
Loan receivables
Notes receivable —
bank acceptance notes
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Long-term bank deposits due
within one year
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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As at 31 December 2015
RZE-—FF+=-A=+—H

Note
F=E

18
43(c)
29

14
16
17

18
43(c)

19

17

20

21
21
21

22
22
23

As at 31 December

W+=—BA=+—8
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—WOF
140,422 136,386
8,260,356 8,820,830
6,990 7,431
79,464 8,673
8,836 =
109,605 121,243
400,000 -
23,000 33,000
= 171,749
377,949 342,238
9,406,622 9,641,550
1,313,712 1,317,963
2,494,024 3,169,253
1,004,526 961,342
1,395,156 1,914,820
5,828 6,994
38,128 4,099
= 290,000
2,452,299 3,909,346
10,233 =
131,951 =
- 52,000
1,773,697 1,626,978
2,337,547 849,063
12,957,101 14,101,858
22,363,723 23,743,408
311,853 311,853
2,192,131 2,192,131
1,670,302 1,630,006
4,340,142 5,123,067
8,514,428 9,257,057
397,734 514,789
8,912,162 9,771,846




Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued) EHEEEEBR ©) .

(Alllamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FERBAINARB(ARE]) TTAEN) RZZE-—RF+-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
Note 2015 2014
BfaE —E-RF —T—mE
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings PRI 26 743,891 1,510,519
Other long-term payables Hoth R BRI TR 27 1,181,343 26,129
Deferred revenue PRIEYA 28 86,317 59,284
Amounts due to related parties FET AR 5 k18 43(c) 51,859 247,119
2,063,410 1,843,051
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FENE SRR 24 5,641,030 2,719,253
Accruals, advances and TBREA - TERGUE
other current liabilities FEMRBEE 25 2,846,169 2,466,507
Amounts due to related parties FE{~t RBES 5 FkIE 43(c) 83,044 104,596
Current income tax liabilities EHFRSHAaE 102,795 170,142
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTE 3,616 4,689
Other long-term payables E AR FUR
— current portion —mehE D 27 48,441 -
Borrowings (PRI 26 2,658,484 6,658,752
Dividends payable FERTAR B 4,572 4,672
11,388,151 12,128,511
Total liabilities HWEE 13,451,561 13,971,562
Total equity and liabilities EEREEES 22,363,723 23,743,408

SEO3E 239 A MM E AR F M SRR ER

The notes on pages 93 to 239 are an integral part of these financial E
— {3 o

statements.

FB6E239E MiRE EMEE N =T —
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2016 and were signed on its FZA=T—HEEEZRWATHUTE
behalf. ERBRE -

The financial statements on pages 86 to 239 were approved by

Han Jingyuan Zhu Hao
BHE K&

Chairman Director
FiE EFE
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Consolidated Income Statement &6t FE &R

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

Note 2015 2014
B aE —T-RHF —ZTNF
Revenue g A 5 21,071,538 28,495,498
Cost of sales SHE KA 32 (20,714,679) (27,127,740)
Gross profit ER 356,859 1,367,758
Other income HAUgA 31 22,555 26,352
Distribution costs SoN =W 32 (100,767) (100,093)
Administrative expenses 1THER 32 (421,648) (432,859)
Other expenses HihEH 32 (20,000) (35,661)
Losses from derivative financial TESBI A EE
instruments 37 (5,040) (333,156)
Other (losses)/gains — net Hith (B518) MWas — 58 30 (299,046) 37,098
Operating (loss)/profit & (B58R),RF (467,087) 529,439
Finance income TSI A 34 122,129 138,536
Finance costs BT RK AR 34 (543,965)  (422,895)
Finance costs — net BTSN — 358 (421,836)  (284,359)
Share of result of an associate Y i) /N (745) -
(Loss)/Profit before income tax RETEHE AT (B5HE) %R (889,668) 245,080
Income tax expense Frigti & A 35 (46,349)  (178,600)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(BE) GER (936,017) 66,480
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: (BR),BRRBR
Owners of the Company RARERPFEE (766,503) 66,715
Non-controlling interests JEFE S M R (169,514) (235)
(936,017) 66,480
(Losses)/Earnings per share for (loss)/ FRAXRAFERIFEE
profit attributable to owners of the s (E8), SBANER
Company during the year (F8|), k=
(expressed in RMB per share) (BElRAR®T)
— Basic (losses)/earnings per share —FREN(EE) Wz 38 RMB (0.26) RMB 0.02
— Diluted (losses)/earnings per share —FiERmE(BER) e 38 RMB (0.26) RMB 0.02

The notes on pages 93 to 239 are an integral part of these financial FF03E 2390 8 HMI st Az E B SRk F e
statements. — =y o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income & #t4r & W= &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+T—-HLEE

Note 2015 2014
FisE —E-RF —T—mE
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE (BB 85R (936,017) 66,480
Other comprehensive income: HiiRE W ¢
Item that may be reclassified R E R EE Bmk
subsequently to profit or loss H)IE B
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHHESREE
financial assets AR EEKE 15 3,979 20,708
Transfer of fair value gains previously REERHHEEE
credited to reserve to income B ERBSTRTETA
statement upon disposal of FEEHN AR BERE
available-for-sale financial assets EEWREK 15 (8,754) (28,307)
(4,775) (7,599)
Total comprehensive FEFEWEET
income for the year (940,792) 58,881
Attributable to: BER :
Owners of the Company AARERFEE (771,278) 59,116
Non-controlling interests Rl 1 (169,514) (235)
(940,792) 58,881

The notes on pages 93 to 239 are an integral part of these financial FEOBE239E MMt AZ SIS TRIR M
statements. —&btn o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &6tz & 8%

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

Balance at 1 January 2014

Comprehensive income

Profit or loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale
financial assets

Transfer of fair value gains previously
credited to reserve to income
statement upon disposal of
avalable-for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Employee share options scheme:

- Value of employee services
Profit appropriation to

statutory reserves
Establishment of a subsioliary
Dividends to non-controling Interests

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2014

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

R-%-DE-A-ANER

Faki

ERERNZER

Afptral

Ui SHAE
WAAEENE

RBHESHEENER
RERRARBRAA
BEXEBERER

Rakanat

RERRRENRS
[ERERE

- RRMRHNEE
EERRIEA
BHAE
RU-FHERA
TGRS

REERBENRASH

RZE-ME+ZA=1-A

WEe

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RFT-A=T—BLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAFERIAERE

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controling Total
Note captal  premium  reserves  eamings Total  interests equity
JEFRIE
fiz Bx BRORE AtEE ke a3t B ERA
311,868 2192131 1587224 500999 9191204 519698 9,710,902
- - - 66715 66,715 (235 66480
15 - - 20,708 - 20,708 - 20,708
15 - - (28307) - (28807) - (28307)
- - (7599 66,715 50,116 (235 58,881
- - 6,737 - 6,737 - 6,737
23 - - 4364 (43644) - - -
10 - - - - - 34 34
_ - - - - 4,708) (4,708)
- - 50381 (43,644) 6,737 (4,674) 2,063
311853 2,192,131 1630006 5123067 9257057 514789 9,771,846

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [F 42 B A FR 2 7]



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) & #f & )% @)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

&
!

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAERREERL

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity

FiaM
firzt kx  RiEE EtRE ERkE a5t B:  EHeH
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE-15-F-BMEE 311,853 2,192,131 1,630,006 5,123,067 9,257,057 514,789 9,771,846

Comprehensive income GakE

Profit orloss for the year EEEREER - - - (766,503) (766,503)  (169,514)  (936,017)

Other comprehensive income Hfti s
Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale ~ FHESREAENA L

financial assets [EEkE 15 - - 3979 - 3979 - 3979
Transfer of fair value gains previously ~ RAAHES BARE 1 ER

credited to reserve to income BETARRRALER

statement upon disposal of eyl

avallable-for-sale financial assets 15 - - (8,754) - (8,754) - (8,754)
Total comprehensive income GAlEAT - - (4,775  (766,503)  (771,278)  (169,514)  (940,792)
Transactions with owners RERREENRS
Proft appropriation to AR AL

statutory reserves BHAE 28 - - 1642 (16429 - - -
Establishment of a subsiciary Fu-RAHBA 10 - - - - - 500 500
Changes in ownership interests B EIRNEA T

in a subsidiary without change BERHBARN

of control faks 10) - - 28649 - 2649 51959 80,608
Total transactions with owners ~ EERHEEZNRZ A3 - - 450711 (16422 28,649 52,459 81,108
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=8-1f+-A=t-A

e 311,853 2,192,131 1,670,302 4,340,142 8,514,428 397,734 8,912,162

The notes on pages 93 to 239 are an integral part of these financial SE03E 230 H HyMf ik A X B Sk AR EE
statements. — R o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 5§43 &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

(=B

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Return of income tax prepaid in previous year

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investment in an associate

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Investment losses from derivative financial instruments

Investment income from available-for-sale
financial assets

Investment income from loan receivables

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of mining rights

Decrease/(Increase) in deposits of procurement of
derivative financial instruments

Increase in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

(Increase)/Decrease in loan receivables

Decrease in long-term bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Capital injection by non-controlling interests
Proceeds from sale and leaseback transaction
Decrease in amounts due to related parties
Decrease/(Increase) in restricted bank balances

pledged as security for current bank borrowings

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The notes on pages 93 to 239 are an integral part of these financial FO3FE 239 E MM iE A2 FH MK LS

— (3

statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-F Rt -A=t-ALEE

Note
HisE

RECETHNASTHE
EfBRENRS 40
BEIFI 2
BERFIE
BRAEH
REBEFEENOATEH

ELRRERPNRLFR

REREEENRSRE

BEWE  BEKEE

BE-MBEAT 11
HEWE  BERIENASGHE 40
fTESRIAZREER 37
At SREE JRERA

REREREZRARE K
HEHTESREE

B 15
{1 & R « PSSR
BEfTESRIARSRD,/(20)

BAnBEFEEAREHEA

BERCERMAEEN 20

FEE (hn),/ R

REBRITETRD
BRRERBNSEFE
REMEZTHNATRE

BRAE5R

[BEER

QT g Pl )

AR T A 10

ERREERAMEHE 27

FEIRERE 7 SR ORR 43

{ERRBFITIEHANERA

RBHIRTER D,/ ()
RRBERBNSEFE
RERRESBMEN/ (RD) 38

HBEXZBNTE

IR IAEEED 21
FRAERATEED 21
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BX

Year ended 31 December

HETZA=1T-HLFE

2015 2014
—§-5fF  ~3-mE
5,438,287 1,089,158
75,622 80,106
(491,187) (465,789)
(183,437) (248,892)
- 179,668
4,839,285 584,251
(120,269) (370,229)
(9,581) -
181 1,001
(11,609) (333,156)
9,981 -
20,006 45,491
15,617 49,166
150 -
32,356 (59,472)
(130,756) -
(110,000) 57,500
52,000 -
(251,924) (609,699)
8,701,231 8,689,176
(13,505,816) (8,268,968)
= (36,250)

500 34
1,200,000 -
(49,100) (78,900)
524,001 (400,096)
(3,129,094) (95,004)
1,458,267 (120,452)
30,217 1,383
849,063 968,132
2,337,547 849,063




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation
(“Reorganisation”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 2 March 2004. As
announced by the Company, trading in the shares of the
Company had been suspended from 29 April 2014 when the
public float of the Company fell below 25%.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of iron and steel
products, trading of steel products and iron ore and real
estate business. The Group has manufacturing plants in Hebei
Province and Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and sells mainly to customers located in the
PRC. The Group engages in real estate business in the PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 31 March
2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

—fRER

FERTEEZEEBERAR(AR
ADR-_ZFZF=F+—A=HAKTNK
—EEESH(EE) RREBRE
—HN\—FRAPEE B REEMAIL
RERRERAERF]

RN B) R % EE Hb 4k A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

AARBMDE_EZENF=A_—HE
EREABMAERSMAERAR LM ° #
WARBIAAER  ARBZARE
BRER-ZT—MFMA=+1HT K
ERR25% * AARRMNDEBZBRE
B

oo ==

BH-°

ot

ARAREMBRBIATRBEAARSE
M o ASREE BN FRE K HE S
Em - WEERNMEABBOESULE
WEE - AEBEREARIME
(TFBEDTitERERERELE
B - WERSHEURFENTFHE
THE - ARERTBEEEEHESR
% o

BRBEBIN - RAGFHBEREAA
RETIT25 - AEHMBHRREL
HEFER(EEFRDR-_F—NF=
HA=+—BH#tAERZ -

EESHBERRE

REARE U BRRFANTIESS
BRER T - BRRBEAIN - HF
BEREMEIINMEFERNEHE
%0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

¢

94

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”) issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of certain available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets at fair value through
profit of loss and derivative financial instruments, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [F 42 B A FR 2 7]

2. EREMBEBEE)

2.1

P

AEBHE G B HRERTHRR
BAAEGMAE([FA G
NE BB BERELM
BHEEN([BEMBEREE
A HwmE - AU BHRREK
BESLKAERE  WHET
BRARBEIIKNAHRLES
BMEE - BoABEEMAERR
B ABERZEREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The following new and amended standards,
and interpretations have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2015:

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs — 2010-2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8,
‘Operating segments’, HKAS 24, ‘Related
party disclosures’.

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs — 2011-2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 13,
‘Fair value measurement’.

Amendments and interpretations as
mentioned above are not expected to have
a material effect on the Group’s operating
results, financial position or comprehensive
income.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

21 REEEE)

211 S BERBENE L

(a)

REEE KM I
AT R EAERT 2R

THFEI REEFT
HAMRECER
SER-_ZFT—1F
—A—BR®BzH
BT B RRAA

7B 0% @S %A
—E—TFFE-FT
——FREFENR
ENEBEEBYIE
s AR E 857 [ 48
N REBEE
#8524 5k [ RARSE 5
R | HEET o

&5 0% @RS A
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‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEEFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and QA1 EHBERBENE
disclosures (continued) (#&)
(@ New and amended standards adopted (@) AEBES MBI
by the Group (continued) A REETEA
(&
The following new and amended standards, TEFET REAEE]
and interpretations have been adopted by EARREDEAR
the Group for the first time for the financial EBR -_T—AF
year beginning on 1 January 2015 but not —A—HARBRNY
currently relevant or do not have material BFEEE R
impact to the Group (although they may {2 B R A& B &
affect the accounting for future transactions B S AREEE
and events): EATE(HRAE

T HBRKR
S RFAM T
) -

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

RT5 BB 2 BN F
EHBEAREN
Amendment to HKAS 19 Defined benefits 1 July 2014
BB ERIE 195 AERT FERRA —ZE-—MFE+HA—H
HKFRS 3 Business combinations 1 July 2014
BB ELERSE 357 E%aot —ZE-—MFE+HA—H
HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment 1 July 2014
BREGTERFE 1658 M= - BB ERE —E-ME+A—H
HKAS 38 Intangible assets 1 July 2014
R GFTHERIZE 385K B EE —E—MNE+HA—H
HKAS 40 Investment property 1 July 2014
BB ERIZE 405 REWE —ZE-MFE+HA—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 [REEE(E)

211 B BRERBENE L

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued) (#&)

(b) New and amended standards have b) EEBER=-Z
been issued but are not effective for the —HEF—-HF—H#&
financial year beginning after 1 January B R 2 Bt B B i
2015 and have not been early adopted AREXH BRER

BB 2 35T | 4%
& RT 2R

Amendment to HKAS 1
BEGETERIFE 1 RASET
Amendment to HKFRS 10

FBWHREERFE 105RAER]

Amendment to HKFRS 11

BRI EERE 11 RAER]

Amendment to HKFRS 12

FREWHREERFE 125RAER]

HKFRS 14
BAMBHREERFE 1457
Amendment to HKAS 16
EBEEIERIE 16 5 HEE]
Amendment to HKAS 27
EBGTERE 27 SRAEE]
Amendment to HKAS 28
EBEEIERIE 28 SR HEET
Amendment to HKAS 38
BAELETERIZE 38 RAIEET
Amendment to HKAS 41
BAGETERE 41 5RAERT
HKFRS 9

AU BHRELERF IR
HKFRS 15

BB REENFE 1555
HKFRS 16
BRI ELERFE 1657

Disclosure initiative

R &

Consolidated financial
statements

aHE BT

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

WEEE & N AR 2 S5 R

Disclosure of interests in other
entities

BENHMERE En

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

ETIRLRP

Property, plant and equipment

e & ]

Separate financial statements

LSRRG e

Investments in associates

REEE QR Z®RE

Intangible assets

EWEE

Agriculture: bearer plants

B AEHEY

Financial instruments

SRTHE

Revenue from contracts with
customers

B & REERKRA

Leases

HE

Annual Report 2015 —F—AAE4EH

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

RIS BBz &
HFEEMBERNER

1 January 2016
—FE-RF—HA—H
1 January 2016

—ET—R"F—H—H
1 January 2016
—E-RF—HA—H
1 January 2016
—E—R"F—H—H
1 January 2016
—ZE—R"F—HA—H
1 January 2016
—E—RF—H—H
1 January 2016
—E—R"F—H—H
1 January 2016
—E—R"F—HA—H
1 January 2016
=% —H—H
1 January 2016
—E—R"F—H—H
1 January 2018
—T-N\&—H—H
1 January 2018
—T-N\&—H—H
1 January 2019
—E-h&F—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

¢

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(EF)

A1 EHBERBEENE b

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued) (#&)

(b) New and amended standards have () EEMHMER=-ZF
been issued but are not effective for the el el =
financial year beginning after 1 January B R 2 Bt B B i
2015 and have not been early adopted REH BRER
(continued) BB 2 55T & &

BRT2ER (&)
Apart from the above, the HKICPA has br Lt BN BB
issued the annual improvements project e AEE B
which addresses several issues in the 2012- FEXEEB N
2014 reporting cycle, and includes changes REE_-_ZT——F

to the following standards. The Group has

ET—NFHE

not applied the following revised HKFRSs HAHEP A — L =1

published in the annual improvements KB E T ERIH

project. B o NEE MK
FER T3 R FE R
ZI8 B R EMA K
BRI BB MG WmE
28

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

RT3 BB 2B
FEHBRER
HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and 1 July 2016
discontinued operations
BEMBHREEAESRE FHELENERDEERE —ET-RFLH—H
R RTE
HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures 1 July 2016
B MEERNE 7  SHIE: BE —E—RE+H—H
HKAS 19 Employee benefits 1 July 2016
BEEERE 195 EERAH —ET—RFLH—H
HKAS 34 Interim financial reporting 1 July 2016
BB G ERIE 34 5% R ERR T AN o =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

()

New and amended standards have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning after 1 January
2015 and have not been early adopted
(continued)

The Group will apply the new standards,
amendments and interpretations described
above when they become effective. The
Group is in the process of making an
assessment on the impact of these new
standards, amendments and interpretations
and yet to assess the full impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial
position when they become effective.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation during the financial year, as
a result, there are changes to presentation
and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

2. ERENBEBEE)

21 REEEE)

QA1 B BERBENEt
(%)

(b) EEMER=-ZF
—BFE—HF—H#%
B R 2 B B E
REKR BRER
AR ZH AT R&
BRT2ER (4&)

AEBBR L
R AR BF] K2
BEMKREMAEMH
ZA EF k2
o AEEIERFE
ZEHMAIER - &
AkREZYE
BRRERF AR E
EREHAEE L
REXE NP BN
NZEHEE -

(c) #&ELDA KB (F622

)

BEoh - RIEFHEBCA R
&Py (F622F)E9
BEE ST RZE] 2
BEERBBREEER -
At - AHMBHREET
BRZERRBEEELS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-F Rt -A=t-ALEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured

entity) over which the Group has control. The

Group controls an entity when the Group is

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from

its involvement with the entity and has the ability

to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date

on which control is transferred to the Group. They

are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

(a)

Changes in ownership interests in

subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests

that do not result in loss of control are

accounted for as equity transactions — that

is, as transactions with the owners in their

capacity as owners. The difference between

fair value of any consideration paid and the

relevant share acquired of the carrying value

of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded

in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to

non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [F 42 B A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

2.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

BEESHEERE(E)

22 MERE (&)

2.21 §4t8RE (&)

(b)

HEKE AR

EARSEREEIE
B MR ERRZ M
RE R IR R LT
BERZAAEEE
#atE - ARREE
R ER o
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RAE - RELEHS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B8N

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

BE-F Rt -A=t-ALEE

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at

cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct

attributable costs of investment. The results of

subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in

subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends

from these investments if the dividend exceeds the

total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in

the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying

amount of the investment in the separate financial

statements exceeds the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements of the investee’s

net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group

has significant influence but not control, generally

accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and

50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are

accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, the investment is initially

recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased

or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the

profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.

The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill,

if any, identified on acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

e

(BRBEERIN - FELEHUARET TABN) BE-_E—AF+-A=1+—HIEE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Associates (continued) 2.3 HERR(E)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of result of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4  Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-

maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the management committee (Note

5(b)) that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

2.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

(BRA A -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘Other
gains/(losses) — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

BEESHEERE(E)

2.5 HNEIAE (4F)

(b)

R KGR (E)

B8 i SRR R 2 B S e
%E%éﬁﬂﬁ%(@%
PR ] R BIER - PR E A
PEE 5 W ek I B HRIG N A B
FIER T Ef ez (8
18)—FE ] WIIRR -

LAGNEE DB AL R 4R \*E%%
AHMERF BB E
ZRnBEESEHERE
SFEHR A ETE 2 &
REBMEMESEREE
BEZETUAD - B
B AN ) 2 [E L E R
SEBRBRAER - MH
kA A2 B &R EE M
fra R -

FEBMEENRER
(PR AR EEFER
HEPFF ABaR2E
m) ZERERERGER
AR RN BEREBN
—BMD - FEBEMEE
(Pl 2 F8 4 Al g &
) 2B ERNEAM
REdkEATIRR -

Annual Report 2015 —F—AAE4EH

’' 3
v

105

¢




¢

a
v

106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(i)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

BEESHEERE(E)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 M - WEKZME

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings,
machinery, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, leasehold
improvements and finance leased machinery are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

BIEET  BERME - HAR
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B ° 2 PR B I
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FREE - B e RIRE
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FER IO o

ME - BERRENITETIR
PR LA fh 51 A 62 8 4 B AS E X
RERED BEFGREER
8o

Estimated useful life {517 5 FA EE
Buildings 10-20 years g5 10-20 4
Machinery 5-10 years HESERE 5-104F
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years PN RN 3-104
Vehicles 4-10 years = 4-10%F
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years HEWERE 2-5%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

& =W FE R EE &) {5 A F Hf
R ERE HREERN AR
(ans@Ef ) °

Annual Report 2015 —F—AAE4EH

107



a
y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

¢
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2.7

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at historical cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes the costs of construction, acquisition and
borrowing. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
available for intended use. When the assets concerned
are ready for their intended use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned.
There is no individual land ownership right. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums
paid for such right and the improvements related to the
land are treated as prepayment for operating lease and
recorded as leasehold land and land use rights, which
are amortised over the lease periods using the straight-
line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Investment property

The property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the entities in the Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition, investment property is carried at
depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
the transfer does not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that
property for measurement or disclosure purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software costs recognised as assets
are amortised using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of 3 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 3 & Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

(BRA BB -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Unpatented technology

Acquired unpatented technology costs recognised
as assets are amortised using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful life of 8 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life-for example,
goodwill are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading because
the financial assets do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months, otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘loan receivables’, ‘trade receivables’, ‘notes
receivable — bank acceptance notes’, ‘other
receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’
in the balance sheet (Notes 2.17 and 2.18
respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

e

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued) 211 ©RMEE (&)

2111 DE(E)

2.11.1 Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

() AHEENERE
E

Available-for-sale financial assets are non- AEENSRmE
derivatives that are either designated in this ERFTETA:
category or not classified in any of the other 5 7€ A It 38 Bl gk I
categories. They are included in non-current moHEBE AEME
assets unless the investment matures or HAE R - 1% 5 B 1
management intends to dispose of it within RIERBDEENRA -
12 months of the end of the reporting period. WA BIERERE
SEEERERNW
HEHREE 1218 A

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Available-
for-sale assets of the Group include investments
in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, which are
measured at cost less provision for impairment, if
any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the derivative financial instruments are
presented in the consolidated income statement
as a separate item in the period in which they
arise. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of other financial instruments in financial
assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss category are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “Other income” or “Other
expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included
in the consolidated income statement as ‘Other
gains/(losses) — net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHBEEE(E)
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POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding

212 @MEERME(Z)
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L B R N B U B R Bl T
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HEEZTREERER
MZRBEIR 2 HEt KRR E

future credit losses that have not been incurred) MRE(TNBEIE®ARESE
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective ZARKREEESE) BANE

interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

2.13 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on

the date a derivative contract is entered into and are

subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The

method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends

on whether the derivative is designed as a hedging

instrument, and if so, the nature of item being hedged.

For derivative financial instruments do not qualify for

hedge accounting, changes in fair value are recognised

immediately in the consolidated income statement as a

separate item.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

¢

118

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and the net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Properties under development and held for sale

Properties under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of
land use rights, construction costs and borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period. Upon
completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

Properties under development and held for sale
(continued)

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle.

Trade, notes and other receivables

Trade and notes receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, notes and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade, notes and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Borrowing costs (continued)

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges in respect of finance lease and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that
are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest
rate differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred
on foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are
estimated based on interest rates on similar borrowings
in the entity’s functional currency/forward currency rates
at the inception of the borrowings.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would
have been incurred had the entity borrowed in its
functional currency. The total amount of foreign
exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences
incurred on a cumulative basis at the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except to the extent that it relates

to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.23 SHANIRIERTSH (&)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEFEH

Inside basis differences AER AR EE
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the BEFSHRAREAE
liability method, on temporary differences arising BEMBENTHEEEE
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and & AT 7 2k B9 AR T (B
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial EEANEREBER -
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities A - WIEEREHAE
are not recognised if they arise from the initial B R R R E A R
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is EER - BLEFTSRKE
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition ER S (TEEEBEG)
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than R EES B BN E
a business combination that at the time of the R MERSETTES
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable ETSKERRE A E - AINE
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined LA o IRIEFTSTHERAE
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted HERAAMAERNELD &
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet W WIEB BREMSH
date and are expected to apply when the related BESENIELERSEHE
deferred income tax asset is realised or the BEEREREEEAN
deferred income tax liability is settled. BR (AN MEE °
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only BEFSIREETILA A
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable BETE R 2R B AR A a1 T 3k
profit will be available against which the temporary It BT B B RS = KB W AR
differences can be utilised. 7o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

QOutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liabilities where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits 2.24 EEFRA

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
Hong Kong employees make monthly contributions to
the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation,
subject to a cap per person per month and any excess
contributions are voluntary (if any).

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group has arranged for its PRC employees
to join the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees payable
under the plan as set out in Note 33. The assets of this
plan are held separately from those of the Group in an
independent fund managed by the PRC government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plan are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to stay).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement
period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 52 [H 42 B A B 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B #& R R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF T -_A=tT—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.28 Revenue recognition

(@) Sales of goods

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until
all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

(c)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
when the risks and rewards of the properties
are transferred to the purchasers, which is
when the construction of relevant properties
has been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to
the sales agreement and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated balance sheet under current
liabilities.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is
probable that the contract will be profitable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses
by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting period.
When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When
the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included
in contract revenue to the extent that may have
been agreed with the customer and are capable
of being reliably measured. The Group uses the
‘percentage-of-completion’ method to determine
the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to the
end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred
in the year in connection with future activity on
a contract are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (continued)

(d)

(e)

U]

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Lease income
Lease income from operating leases is recognised

in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Leases 229 HHE

132

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance
lease, any excess or deficit of sales proceeds over the
carrying amount is deferred and amortised over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

(BRA BB -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Contingent liabilities

2.31

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

POLICIES (continued)

2.32 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

2.33 Financial guarantee contracts

BE-F A5t -A=t-ALEE

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing

the profit attributable to owners of the Company,

by weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used

in determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account the after income tax effect of

interest and other financing costs associated with

dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted

average number of shares assumed to have been

issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive

potential ordinary shares.

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require

the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the

holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails

to make payments when due, in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees

are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies

on behalf of third parties to secure loans.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

(BRA BB -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.33 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for the
future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required
1o settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history
of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. Any increase in the liability relating to
guarantees is reported in the consolidated income
statement within other operating expenses.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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136

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBEBRERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEABREZXE)
(a) Market risk (a) THEER
()  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk ) ReERERAIALE

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant float interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s interest rate
risk mainly arises from Senior Notes and
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Senior Notes and loan
receivables issued at fixed rates exposed
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
maximum exposures to the interest rate risk
have been disclosed in Notes 19 and 26
respectively.

The Group has not used any derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UKEREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBEABEZRE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (@) TWEHEERRE)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (i)  SNERERR
The major foreign exchange risk exposure ENEEN e =
arises from the Group’s importing and AEEEOREAD
exporting activities and the Group’s EBEAE B MG
borrowings, which are mostly denominated ;o HPREHMHH
in United States Dollars (the “US$”). The ET(ERT]DE
Group also has certain bank deposits, B AEBBHET
financial assets and financial liabilities that AN ST E A ERAT
are denominated in foreign currencies, G- eREER
mainly US$ and HK$, which are exposed cRmadE 2
to foreign currency translation risk. The BEEEETLD

foreign exchange risk is reduced where
the Group is in a position of receiving and
paying the same currency. The Group also
used foreign currency forward contract to
hedge its exposure to foreign exchange
risk for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The maximum exposures to the foreign
exchange risks are disclosed in Notes 17,
21, 24 and 26 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis

The following table summarised the impact
of increases/decreases of cash flow interest
rate and foreign exchange rate on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The sensitivity analysis for the cash flow
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk is
based on the assumption that:

(@ Interest rate had been 15% lower/
higher from the year end rates with
all other variables held constant (for
example, 11.5% or 8.5% instead of
10%);

(b) RMB had weakened/strengthened by
10% against US$ and HK$ (pegged
with US$) with all other variables held
constant.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UKEREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBEABEZRE)
(@) Market risk (continued) (@) TWEHEERRE)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) SREELTHE ()

Cash flow interest rate risk
BERETIZRR
-15% +15%
Carrying
Amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity
REE Al B Al ER

31 December 2015 “E-RE+-A=1-H
Financial assets at floating REBFEFEN
interest rates SREE
Cash and cash equivalents B RAEEEN 2,337,547  (5977)  (6977) 5977 59717
Restricted bank balances XBHIRITER 1,773,697  (4,497)  (4,497) 4497 4497

Financial liabilities at floating &S EIFI=:T B/

interest rates SREE
Bank and other borrowings BITREAAET (1,206,280) 17,608 17,608  (17,608) (17,608)
Amounts due to related parties e AR (134,903) 401 401 (401) (401)
Total increase/(decrease) Aim/ (BD) 7535 7535 (7,535 (7,535
Foreign exchange risk
SME R
-10% +10%
Carrying

amount Profit  Equity Profit  Equity

BEE A i Al i
31 December 2015 “E-RF+ZA=1-H
Monetary assets EMEE
Cash and cash equivalents BERESZEN 2,337,547 66,246 66,246  (66,246)  (66,246)
Restricted bank balances RRFIRTES 1,773,697 4769 4769  (4769)  (4,769)
Trade receivables JEUE ZEED 1,004,526 28,818 28,818  (28,818) (28,819
Deposits and other receivables 154 R E i EUER S 715,667 175 175 (175) (175)
Monetary liabilities EBEs
Trade payables ERESER (5,641,030)  (5280) (5280) 5280 5,280
Other payables HipEfERR (644,466) (662) (662) 662 662
Borrowings &3 (3,402,375) (179,836) (179,836) 179,836 179,836
Total (decrease)/increase A1t (FD) /& (85,770)  (85,770) 85,770 85,770
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

31 December 2014

Financial assets at floating
interest rates

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted bank balances

Financial liabilities at floating
interest rates

Bank and other borrowings

Amounts due to related parties

Total increase/(decrease)

31 December 2014

Monetary assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balances
Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables

Monetary liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Borrowings

Total (decrease)/increase

~g-MmEt=A=1-A

EFBNETEN
THEE

B RRESEY
SRHRITAS
EFBNETEN
THER

RITREMER
FE B 508

Bt/ (HD)

=¥-MEt=A=t-A

EMEE
ReRReEEY
SRBIRTER
ECEET

e R RN

Lt
EREREHR
RRAERR

fBR

BL(HD)/ M
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RFT-A=T—BLEE

3. HBEBRER(E)
3.1 MKREBRREZEE)
(@) TEERE)
(i) BUREANHEE)

Cash flow interest rate risk

BenerxmER
-15% +15%

Carrying
amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
L Tl B A s
849063 (2299 (2299 2299 2,29
1626978  (4,185) (4,155 4,156 4,155
(1,838844) 60462 60462 (60,462 (60,462)
(351,715) 37 37 (37) (37)
54045 54,045 (64,045  (54,045)

Foreign exchange risk
HNERIR
-10% +10%

Carrying
amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE et 30 il #a
849,063 37517 37,517 (87,617) (37,517)
1,626,978 3,699 369 (3699 (3,699
91,342 15841 15841  (15841) (15841)
697,731 4,531 4,531 (4,531)  (4,531)
(2,719,253)  (29,306) (29,306) 29,306 29,306

(390205  (121)  (121) 12 121
8169271) (721236 (721236) 721236 721,236

(689,075) (689,075 689,075 689,075




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

Profit represents consolidated profit post
tax; equity represents total equity, including
non-controlling interests.

Other payables include payables for
purchase of property, plant and equipment,
customer deposits and employee deposits
as stated in Note 25.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, long-
term bank deposits, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan receivables
and amounts due from related parties represent
the Group’s maximum exposure credit risk in
relation to financial assets. The Group does not
have significant credit risks arising from off-balance
sheet items. The Group’s credit policy for the
sales of products is mainly delivery either on cash
or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with
maturity dates within six months. For bank and
financial institutions, the Group has policies that
deposits are placed with reputable banks. Credit
quality of financial assets is further disclosed in
Notes 13, 19 and 43(c) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

3. BXERRERE(Z)

31 HBREBEZE)

(a)

(b)

SR (&)
(i) SPRELINTHEE)

5 FIHE B 1 A b
W R
Attt BEEEH
MRS o

H Al & R B IR
BEME BER
R 2 AT AR AR
EFReLEEE
& (BRHIEE25) o

FERR

ANEB I EE RKEFNE
Rk - RHERRSEE
Y- BRHRITES K
HIRITIE R BB 55K
RREE  BERHEME
URBRTK -« FEUR BT 3k R e Uk
Ba s 7 IR BREE A
SENEREEREER
% 77 T R B = BB 7K o
AEEWEAEERGBE
SNBEEANEREER
R AEEERBEENRE
ERRTEARKERE S
o 2 B B 7 7S 8 A AR SR
TERREZRFERE -
HRIBITT RS BEE - K
SENBIREBERFH
REEFEEMERT  2@E
ENEEE RS RIENT
13+ 1970143(c) N —

= o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBEBRERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEABREZXE)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBESER
The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by REENRDE S RERSE
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents, BEFRTREERESE
together with adequate banking facilities. BY  UNREHETEE

RREES o

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREAEESREEN
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on DT - IREEBZE X
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the HE R FIRHEAR - < 5t
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed BED 28R BIR A
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash Bl o 3R A3 FE A & RE A= LY
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their TFHRITBFIREGRE o ¥
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is A2 & A R EIBRRYRREE
not significant. AFRTEIK - ZEH

BENHIRMERER °
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BHERREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEBEBRRZEGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) FBELRAR(E)

Between  Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
iyear 2years bSyears  Syears Total
1688 122§ 2E5% SENL a3t

At 31 December 2015 R=B-1F
t=A=t-A

Borrowings B3k 2,658,484 743,891 - - 3.402,375
Interests payable on borrowings () EZERFIS() 80,933 45,837 - - 126,770
Trade payables ERESER 5,641,030 - - - 5,641,030
Other payables HinERERR 644,466 - - - 644,466
Amounts due to related parties JEft Ry 7B 83,044 - - 51,859 134,903
Interests payable on amounts due T (S B 1 TR A

to related parties () FERFIE () 2,672 - - - 2,672
Finance lease liabilties HANERR 48441 49800 1105414 - 1,203,655
Interest payments on finance REREREZFISTUE

lease liabilties (i) 75,549 74,653 62,555 - 212,757
Derivative financial instruments fiESmIA 3,616 - - - 3,616
Guarantee for bank borrowings BEZFNRTER

of a third party HAER 10,960 - - - 10960

9,249,195 914,181 1,167,969 51,859 11,383,204
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2014 R=B-mF
t=A=t+-A
Borrowings EES
Interests payable on borrowings (i) [ER RIS ()
Trade payables ERESER
Other payables H RS
Amounts due to related parties TE(S R A 5 0R
Interests payable on amounts due FETERM 3 0R
to related parties (j RIERFIS ()
Derivative financial instruments {TESBMIA
Guarantee for bank borrowings BEZHNRTER
of a third party HAER

(i) The interest on borrowings is calculated
based on borrowings held as at 31
December 2015 and 2014 without taking
into account extension or refinancing of the
borrowings in future. Floating-rate interest is
estimated using current interest rate as at 31
December 2015 and 2014 respectively.

(i)  The interest on finance lease is calculated
based on remaining balance of finance lease
liability and the interest rate implicit in the
lease as at 31 December 2015.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]

3. H¥RKREE(E)
3.1 BBEBEZE)
(c) RBELER(E)
Between  Between

Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1R 1225 2355  B&ENE At
6,568,752 100,000 1,510,519 - 8,169,271
321,69 108,956 83,731 - 514382
2,719,253 2,719,253
390,205 390,205
104,596 195,260 - 51,859 351,715
10,037 10,037
4,689 4,689
12,960 12,960
10,122,187 404,216 1,594,250 51,859 12,172,512

ERANER-—_T—RAFR=-F
—mE+-A=+—BEEH
ERETE - FEEARKTEHK
BENEEMER - ZBANES R
RE-_ZE-—AFR-ZFT—NF
T A=+ BHWMERFRG

s

;%_o
RZE—RE+_A=+—
’ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬂgﬁﬁTﬂﬁ

MERRAHRKBEER S NA
iHHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the
debt-to-capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
debt divided by the total capital. Total debt includes
current and non-current borrowings, other long-term
payables and borrowings from related parties. Total
capital includes non-current borrowings, non-current
portion of other long-term payables, non-current
portion of borrowings from related parties and its equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

Total debt BIAMRER
Total capital BER
Debt-to-capital ratio ERELERE YN

As at 31 December 2015, the ratio declined due to
repayment and repurchase of certain senior notes of the
Company.

BE-_Z-—R&E+-A=1—RBItFE

3. BXERRERE(Z)

3.2

B EREE

AEENEREERER 2K
BASBERSEREEEEE
BEZET  URKRRERE
W FSREEMESREE
BFE - W RENEARE
BAREE S

REFIHABELER A&
BRI RE g AR FRERAK
B MBRRBEES %
TR BB ERIKET ©

AEERRBEREEARL X
EREARRN - ZLLERRER
RERABER - BRERE
ERBEERBER  Hitk
HREMNER BT ER - &
BABREIERBER  HitR
HIFE N BR FOE R BN AR 1 - BREE
FERIERERE 1D K 57 A
RAERFAE R ©

2015 2014
—E-RF T
4,761,290 8,516,608
10,491,521 11,014,695
45.38% 77.32%

R-_Z—aF+-_HA=+—8"
e REEE R EE T AR EH
BT B -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HHBERERE(Z)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 An{EEMHET
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at TREBGHEEZDMIZARE
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have Bt ENESBIT A - TAEER
been defined as follows: ATEWT ¢
J Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o HREEENE ERERT
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). HRE(REHAE) (F—
&) o
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within e RBRBENRE-—RHRE
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, G BESNXBERRER
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, B (BB ) sk fE# (Bl
derived from prices) (level 2). REERE)BAER(F
—f) e
e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o  WIHREAIBEMISER
on observable market data (that is, unobservable MEENEEXABHNR
inputs) (level 3). AEB R (BN Al 8122 /) )

ABR(E=4) »

The following table presents the Group’s assets and THREINAEBER-_Z—HF

liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December +—A=+—HERZ-_ZE—NF

2015 and 31 December 2014. +—A=t+t—BEAAEE
ENEERAE -

Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
E—H HE-H E=R st

At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1F
+=A=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BAREEFTEEEE
through profit or loss SABRERCEHEE
— Money market funds (Note 20) — BT ES
(P43E20) 38,392 - - 38,392
— Financial investment products —SRREER
(Note 20) (B5E20) = - 93,559 93559
— Trading derivatives —-BEfETA 6,914 3,319 - 10,233
45,306 3,319 93,559 142,184
Liabilities &
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA
— Trading derivatives —-BEMETA 3,616 = - 3616
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UKEREREE)
3.3  Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREEMHTE)
Level 1 Level2  Level 3 Total
F—HK FIH F=H o
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZ2—mE
+=A=+-H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE
— Equity securities (Note 15) —RAFES (FiFE15) 11,638 - - 11,638
Liabilities =i
Derivative financial instruments PTHEERTA
— Trading derivatives —-BEBEM4ETH 4,689 = - 4689
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there BE_T—AFKE_T—NF
are no transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy +ZA=+—HILFE: &8
used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, TEARBEFEREAAR
and also no changes in the classification of financial BEERBAREELESE 8
assets as a result of a change in the purpose or use of MEREEZEEEQREE
those assets. AmSEemEEMNDE -
3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices 331 RAREFEAABE
(Level 1) (B—#)
The Group’s trading fund investments, classified AEENESRE(DHE
as level 1 financial assets, are the money market BRE—HREMEE) IR
funds acquired from certain financial institution ETEREEEENEK
whereby the Group is expecting to earn short-term mEEE Bl AE
gain from the funds. The fair values of the trading B B EE S REE
funds are determined based on the quoted market Wi - RS ARERATY
prices at the balance sheet date. REE AT mMEBETE °
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(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BXRRERE(E)
3.3  Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 RAREEMGTE)

SB1HEAREBEIFEAAEE

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices

148

(Level 1) (continued)

The Group’s derivative financial instruments,
classified as level 1 financial assets, are the Iron
ore swap contracts and rebar future contracts
entered into by the Group and certain financial
institutions. The fair values are determined based
on the prices on the Singapore Futures Exchange
and the Shanghai Futures Exchange at the balance
sheet date.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments,
classified as level 1 financial liabilities, are the
rebar futures contracts entered into by the Group
and certain financial institutions. The fair value is
determined based on the prices on the Shanghai
Futures Exchange at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Valuation techniques used to derive fair

values (Level 2)

The Group’s derivative financial instruments,
classified as level 2 financial assets, are the foreign
currency forward contracts entered into by the
Group and certain financial institutions. The fair
values are determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting
value discounted back to present value.

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31
December 2015 comprised contracts with notional

(-8 (&)

AEETESMIA(D
BRE-BEREE)R
AEEEE T REER
Yz BiEAEHE KRR
MMPEAHN - AAEE
TR E R INRHE R
SR LB 5

BIFERE

AEETESMITA(D
BRE-REBEBE)
AEEEE TS REER
VHBHEBELH - &
REEDNREER LBH
BERXZANERETE °

332 ARFTEQARBEZMEE

KI5 (B=%)

AEBUTEEMIA(D
BRE_NEREE)R
AEEEE T REER
M ZHNERBEH o RN
BRZEHMEZANER
SMNERHIEH 2 AR B
B EXZEEMBERLDR
B-

R—_ZE—HF+ = A
=+—H  INEREIAL

principal amounts totalling US$ 94.8 million BIERER S B%59,480
(equivalent to approximately RMB 615.6 million). BET(HERDARE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Group’s financial investment products,
classified as level 3 financial assets are issued
by banks. Buyers of these products entrust the
bank to make investment mainly in money market
or bond market. Principals and returns of such
products are not guaranteed. These products
cannot be traded but can only be redeemed from
the issuing bank. The fair values are determined
using discounted cash flow model, the main
inputs are the expected yield rates which are an
unobservable data.

Quantitative information about fair value
measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

Fair value
at 31 December Valuation
2015 Technique

R-Z-51fF
+=A=+-A
ZAREE  HERD
Financial investment product 20,000 Discounted
invested in bond market cash flow
RENMEFTHZ ERMREER HHBTR
Financial investment product 73,559 Discounted
invested both in money cash flow
market and bond market

RENERMEREFT S ERREER HHBDR

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortised cost

The fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities
of the Group are disclosed in the relevant notes of these
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

B ERERE (Z)
3.3 AREEMET(E)
333 FHEARTIEHER AR

ZARBEE(F=H)

AEEEREEER(D
BRE=-NEREE)R
RITET - ZFEMZE
FERARITEBNEED
BRESFTHETRE
ZEEMNAE REHT
RPER - ZFEMTAIR
7 BEARBITRITE
B - A EETIERRR
RenBRAEE T8
WABE AL HX
(TR -

DRABEFERANEE

THBEEmABB(E=
R) 2 EBEHR

Range (weighted

Unobservable input average)

FARRGARE HE (hnE¥3)

Expected yield rate 0% - 3.9% (1.95%)

AR

Expected yieldrate  2.0% - 4.2 % (3.1%)

EEIE RS

3.4

BHERATEZEMEER
BEZAREE

AEENEBEREENRAR

MARBERERZEMHHR
RABREPMEE ©
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150

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting judgements
and estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition as
at the balance sheet date and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.

(b)  Provision for properties under development and held for
sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development and held for sale according to their
net realisable value based on the realisability of these
properties, taking into account costs to completion
based on past experience and net sales value based
on prevailing market conditions. Provision is made
when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be realised. The
provision assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 52 [H 42 B A B 2 7]
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amount of a CGU
(cash-generating unit) has been determined based on
higher of value-in-use and fair value less costs to sell.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group determined that
there was an impairment indication relating to two
production lines of a subsidiary which manufactures
galvanised sheets and cold rolled sheets. These
production lines were identified as CGUs separately.

The Group measured the value-in-use and fair value less
costs to sell by discounting the future estimated cash
flow deriving from the property, plant and equipment.
These calculations required the Group to estimate the
expected future cash flows from the CGUs and also to
apply a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows (Note 7).

BE-_Z-R&E+-A=1—HItFE

4. BREHEERAMRE)

ME - BB RRERE

BEEAERTAEHLED
BREEET TS T IAKE
B - A5 B B & AR B Y EE2.10
Fl @RI DE - B
ERBENRE  REELE
R CREEEB) HTRE S
BEREEREERA R BE
B E R ATE RS E B -

R-FB—RFt+-_HAH=1+—
B AKEEEE —HHMNBA
A R R B A EE SR AR S %
BREERODBRBEDR
RELERDEBEIARAS
LR -

AEEEBERENE  BFE
RENRKMGEARERE
AL ARG EEREERS
REEREERAE - ZFH
TARBRAEBAHRERAE
ELBUMNARARARRERE
TR > TEBERAEE K
FREZENFERE  UitEZE

RAEREMNREIEET)
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152

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@

Useful life of the property, plant and equipment

Useful life is the period over which an asset is expected
to be available for use by an entity. The depreciable
amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis
over its useful life (Note 2.6).

The following factors are considered in determining the
useful life of an asset:

(i) Expected usage of the asset

(i)  Expected physical wear and tear

(iiy ~ Technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset

(iv)  Legal or similar limits on the use of the asset

The useful life of an asset is reviewed at each financial
year-end and, if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change will be accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with HKAS 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors’.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

(BRA BB -

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(€)

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©)

Impairment of loans, receivables and prepayments

The Group follows the accounting policy stated in Note
2.12 and assessed loans, receivables and prepayments
for impairment whenever there is objective evidence
that the present value of estimated future cash flows
measurable decreases and is lower than the carrying
amount of the loans, receivables and prepayments. The
process for estimating the amount of an impairment loss
results either in a single amount or in a range of possible
amounts. In the latter case, the Group recognises
an impairment loss equal to the best estimate within
the range taking into account all relevant information
available before the financial statements are issued
about conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period.

Impairment of the Group’s assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to
determine whether the Group’s assets are impaired.
As stated in HKAS 36, the net asset value of an
entity that exceeds its market capitalisation is an
impairment indicator which would require an estimate
of the recoverable amount to be performed. As at 31
December 2015, the Group’s market capitalisation
amounted to RMB 2,683 million approximately, which
is lower than the Group’s net assets value of RMB
8,912 million. The Group shall assess whether its assets
are impaired. This assessment requires significant
judgments and estimations. In making these judgments
and estimations, the Group evaluates and considers
both qualitative and quantitative factors that will affect
the value-in-use of an asset or a CGU such as the
extent of the difference between the net assets value
and market capitalisation, composition of the Group’s
assets, results and timing of previous impairment tests.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF T -_A=tT—HLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BERESTEFTREHEE)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(h)  Impairment of the Group’s assets (continued) h) AEBEEREGE)
The Group has performed the impairment test according AEBRBERBZF%ERFE 36
to HKAS 36 and determines that except for certain SREITRERR - WETERE
property, plant and equipment, no other asset or CGU Tz - WERZEI - Wk
have been impaired. The impairment assessment of HtWEESREELESEUER
property, plant and equipment is analysed in Note 7. B> BEKKENRE
FHERMIEET 24T o
5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. HEERDHER
(@ Sales (@ SHERE
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and REBFENERE R IHEH
sale of iron and steel products, trading of steel products HES HNEERREELE
and iron ore and real estate business. Sales recognised SURERWEEEK HE_Z
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were —RER-_ZT—NFE+_A
as follows: =T HIEEFEEERNE
EREAT :
2015 2014

—E-RF —ZT—uF

Gross sales less discounts, SHE @RRRITH -

returns and sales taxes REREER
— Strips and strip products — 7 8l e 7 o) 2 2 6,896,144 10,184,737
— H-section steel products — H AV 2 S 6,651,590 9,076,978
— Rebar — W24 3,279,491 3,008,807
— Iron ore —EEA 893,138 2,045,054
— Cold rolled sheets and — R ELIR R S R

galvanised sheets 1,126,699 1,876,837
— Billets — iR 1,224,383 1,672,317
— Real estate —EiE 460,672 238,928
— Steel pile sheet — S iRIE 333,246 135,202
— Others —HAth 206,175 258,638

21,071,538 28,495,498
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5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Segment information

The chief decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee, which comprises all executive
directors and top management. The chief decision-
maker reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources.

Based on these reports, the chief decision-maker
considers the business from a business perspective.
From a business perspective, the chief decision-maker
assesses the performance of the iron and steel and the
real estate segments.

(i) Iron and steel — Manufacture and sale of iron and
steel products and trading of steel products and
iron ore; and

(i) Real estate — Development and sale of properties.

The chief decision-maker assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and operating profit. This measurement is consistent
with that in the annual financial statements.
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(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued)

The segment information provided to the chief decision-

maker for the reportable segments for the year was as

follows:

Segment revenue

Segment operating (loss)/profit
Finance (costs)/income - net
Share of result of an associate

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other income statement items
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of property,

plant and equipment

Capital expenditure

Segment revenue

Segment operating profit
Finance (costs)/income - net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other income statement items
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of property,

plant and equipment

Capital expenditure

pi L ON

AREE (BR)/ B
B3 () /WA — 5
Eih—EBEARRE

BRFRS A B R
FEHER

FRER
HiFBRER

e R
nE - BERRERE

L UNZET

pi L ON

A EEE R
813 (R A) A — %8

FRPT S AT A
FISHER

FRRA

HitFBRER
REREH
nEx - BERRERE

BRRxX

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

)

5. WEHERIBES(E)
b) AEER(E)
RERBEDERETERR
RANDRERZSIT

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-E2-AFt+-A=t-HLEFE

Iron and steel Real estate Total
E i EiE a3t
20,610,866 460,672 21,071,538
(485,915) 18,828 (467,087)
(422,206) 370 (421,836)
(745) - (745)
(889,668)
(46,349)
(936,017)

1,095,965 2,092 1,098,057
521,019 - 521,019
980,688 133 980,821

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-NFE+-A=+—HIFE

Iron and steel Real estate Total
i) EiE At
28,256,570 238,928 28,495,498
506,810 22,629 529,439
(285,619) 1,260 (284,359
245,080

(178,600

66,480

1,093,777 813 1,094,590
89,944 - 89,944
822,221 351 822,572
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5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Segment information (continued)

Segment assets are those operating assets that are
employed by a segment in its operating activities.
Segment assets are determined after deducting related
allowance that is reported as direct offsets in the balance
sheet. Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold
land and land use rights, property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets, prepayments,

5. WEHERIBES(E)

(b)

DEER (&)

DEBETI DR RN EL LR
BNKEEE - DEEENR
NEERBERTEREBHEZR
MARBR R RETE - D RFEE
TERFRHEEL MR LR
B ME- BELRE RE
W BIVEE  BISFE-

deposits and other receivables, long-term bank deposits e MEMERER - —FA
due within one year, inventories, trade receivables, BHARREBIRIT R - 7 & -

amounts due from related parties, notes receivable,
restricted bank balances and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities are those operating liabilities that
result from the operating activities of a segment.
Segment liabilities consist primarily of other long-term
payables, deferred revenue, amounts due to related
parties, trade payables and accruals, advances and
other current liabilities.

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2015 were as follows:

FEWE 7 BR 3K - B MR B 5 3R
B BKRRE - XRHRTE
HEAE MIREEHEY -

DEBET DR E BB
EYWREREFE - 2BEEE
ZEBEMRIEEMNERR B
FEWA - FEATRARE T 50R - &
NESRFARTRRER &
WHRAREMREEE -

R=F-—HEE+-A=+-H
A WAEREEDT

Iron and steel Real estate  Elimination Total
i) EHE i a3t
Total assets BEE 20,137,987 1,596,049 (438,179) 21,295,857
Segment assets for reportable HED D NEE
segments 21,295,857
Unallocated: KOE:
Deferred income tax assets EEFMEHEE 377,949
Available-for-sale financial assets HESHEE 109,605
Derivative financial instruments TSR THE 10,233
Financial assets at fair value through &R AR EBEETEAEEE)
profit or loss FABRRSREE 131,951
Loan receivables FEIETR 400,000
Prepaid current income tax B EHmEH 38,128
Total assets per balance shest BEBBRANBEE 22,363,723
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5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SHEERIBER(E)
(o)  Segment information (continued) (b) DEBEE(E)
Iron and steel Real estate  Elimination Total
ik EE ik &t
Total liabilities HEE 9,017,013 1,359,369 (438,179) 9,938,203
Segment liabilties for BEDBEHE
reportable segments =l 9,938,203
Unallocated: KRoHE
Current income tax liabilities EHMERas 102,795
Current borrowings mEE 2,658,484
Non-current borrowings JERE e 743,891
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMIA 3,616
Dividends payable ERRE 4,572
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEBRRANESR 13,451,561
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RZZE—WFE+=ZA=+—H
2014 were as follows: Mo HEERBELT ¢
Ironand steel ~ Real estate  Elimination Total
B FEitE i B
Total assets HEE 21,891,949 1,546,903 (453,024) 22,985,828
Segment assets for HED D EEE
reportable segments 22,985,828
Unallocated: KRoHE
Deferred income tax assets BREFETARE 342,238
Available-for-sale financial assets AELESRERE 121,243
Loan receivables EWED 290,000
Prepaid current income tax BT EHAMEH 4,009
Total assets per balance sheet AEABERANBEE 23,743,408
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(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RFT-A=T—BLEE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

(b)  Segment information (continued)

HEERDIBER (E)

b) AEER(E)

Ironand steel  Real estate Elimination Total
e EHE At
Total liabilities asE 4,759,438 1,316,474 (453,024) 5,622,888
Segment liabilties for BEDEHEHE
reportable segments aE 5,622,888
Unallocated: ROE :
Current income tax liabilities SHEHaE 170,142
Current borrowings meENfEm 6,658,752
Non-current borrowings EREER 1,510,519
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 4,689
Dividends payable FERAR S 4572
Total liabilities per balance sheet BEBBRANERRE 13,971,562
6. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6. HELHWE IiERE

AREBAERE 0 K+ E AR
SEREMERNFE - REREF

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent the prepayment for the operating lease, the net book

value of which is analysed as follows: BT T:
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—F
At 1 January R—A—H 136,386 130,318
Additions INE - 9,553
Transfer from property plant Y% - BB KA
and equipment (Note 7) A (FFET7) 7,614 -
Amortisation of leasehold land S Kkt
and land use rights (Note 32) {55 FAAERE S (P9RES2) (3,578) (3,485)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 140,422 136,386

AREBEHHE T30 K + i E AED L
KRB - R TN F28F E50%F -

The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are all located
in the PRC and the remaining lease period is between 28 years
to 50 years.

160 China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 Bl B A FR A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

Year ended 31 December 2014

Opening net book amount

Aaditions

Transfer from CIP

Transfer from investment
properties (Note 8)

Transfer from properties under
development and held for sale

Disposals (Note 40)

Depreciation (Note 32)

Impairment (Note 30)

Closing net book Amount

At 31 December 2014
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2015

Opening net book amount
Aaditions

Transfer from CIP

Transfer from inventory

Transfer to land use right (Note 6)
Disposals (Note 40)

Depreciation (Note 32)
Impairment (Note 30)

Closing net book Amount

At 31 December 2015
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Impairment

Net book amount

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRA A -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE-R-METR
St-ALEE

ENRETE

HE

EEIEEA

RENFEA(HiEs)

BTSN

& (FiiE40)
& (fEse)
B (Hf90)

EREHHE
R-§-BETA=t-A
A

ZifE

Bl

REHE

HE-Z-1F1CR
Zt-RLLEE
FAEEFE

e

fRIREA

FEEA

2 iR (Fio)
A R)

mE(Ms)

(K 30)

FREAFE

R=B-1%Ft=fA=1-A

A

ZiiTE

e

HEFE

FIEERANARE T T REN)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

7. ME-BERRE

Furniture Leasehold

and improve-
Buildings Machinery ~ fixtures  Vehicles  ments Clp Total

LS
BT HERE BORXE  RE k6 #EIR A
2027432 582942 3586 50,457 152 617,353 9,160,405
14433 20583 4822 17625 - 79553 812,998
203646 490512 656 - - (694819 -
6,500 - - - - - 6500
28,366 - - - - - 28366
- (49 (168  (1847) - - 6939
(174646) (889,048)  (8837)  (17.970) (58] - (1,090556)
(17662 (72,282 - - - - (89944
2088069 5374206 32058 48265 97 678075 8820,830
3881966 11426434 117,230 188,117 1,337 678,075 16,263,159
(1,145211) (5,859954) (83739 (109,767)  (1,240) - (7,199911)
(48680 (192214) (1433 (89) - - (49
2088069 5374206 32058 48265 97 678075 8820,830
2,688,069 5374266 32,058 48,265 97 678,075 8,820,830
6,313 69,689 8114 11,857 - 834425 980,398
110,796 837,266 2,083 - - (950,145) -
- 153% - - - - T758%
- - - - - (1614 (7614
(2,624) (81) (324)  (1,339) - - (433
(176,116) (883,230)  (7,950)  (16,447) (55) - (1,083,79)
(65,689) (433013)  (2121) (196) - - (621,019
2540749 5040823 31860 42,141 42 604,741 8,260,356
3,867,524 11,532,866 126,645 166,707 1,337 604,741 16,299,820
(1,192,399) (5,866,815)  (91,231) (124,287)  (1,295) - (7,276,027)
(134,2376)  (625228)  (3,954) (279) - - (763437)
2540749 5040823 31860 42,141 42 604,741 8,260,356
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7.

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
income statement as follows:

Cost of sales SHERA
Administrative expenses 1THER

For the year ended 31 December 2015, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 35 million (2014: RMB 24
million) were capitalised in the cost of property, plant and
equipment at an annual average capitalisation rate of 7.60%
(2014 7.64%) approximately.

China Oriental Group Company Limited [ # iy 4 Fl % B A FR A 7

3 - BERRE(E)

EREaHAERPIBROITER M
T

2015 2014
—E-RF T

1,057,578 1,063,366
26,220 27,190

1,083,798 1,090,556

HE_ZT-—AFE+_A=+—HLHF
B BERAHARKE35008m (=
T—PUF : AR¥E2,400870) BIRFE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. YE BERREGE)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, provision for BE TR+ _A=1+—HItF
impairment of approximately RMB 521 million (2014: RMB 90 B AR 7o KA ERE RIS Ak
million) was made for two production lines of a subsidiary for MFEZL  EF—HHEARRNR
the manufacturing of galvanised and cold rolled sheets as a RAEEFFIR RREIR A EEZE
result of not fully utilised production capacity and continued HHOARES 21 (B THRERE(—
deterioration of the market (Note 30).The impairment provision T—PF : AR¥9,00087T) (FsE
amount was determined based on the recoverable amount 30) - BERESREIIZREFERE
of CGUs determined based on value-in-use calculations and BErtENReEEBM 2 kbS5
use post-tax discounted cash flow projections based on five- BT WERTHEAFTRIRSREE

year financial budgets approved by management and being B BERIEREIREEILERN R FEE
extrapolated by using the estimated growth rate. The growth BIEE N ERGETERRES - B R
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for R SHBARSEEBMCE N
the galvanised sheets and cold rolled sheets business with REAREIREBHRIAFIIERE o
which the CGUs operate. The key assumptions used for the RZZB—hAF+ZA=+T—HBARE
value-in-use calculations as at 31 December 2015 of each ReEEBMFERABEFEZEER
CGU were as follows: B UNNE

Production line 1 & 3 Production line 2

EER1KS EER2

Gross margin EH -2.1%~3.3% -27.1%~-20.0%

Growth rate BRx 0%~2.0% 0%~2.0%

Discount rate HTIR R 11.5% 11.5%
Buildings and machinery includes the following amounts where BFRHEEREEIEATRIE - K&
the Group is a lessee under a finance lease arrangement BEAELAEREE HERELTIEN

arising from a sale and leaseback: AN

2015 2014

—B-HfF —ZE-mEF

Cost — capitalised finance leases RA—-BERtRERE 1,200,000 -

Accumulated depreciation RETHEGH (13,995) -

Net book amount BREFE 1,186,005 -
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(BRBEHERAN  FEEEHUARETTREN)

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net
book value are analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount
Transfer to property, plant

and equipment (Note 7)
Depreciation (Note 32)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2014
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount
Depreciation (Note 32)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2015
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment

properties included:

Rental income (Note 31)

Direct operating expenses from
properties that generated
rental income

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RFT-A=T—BLEE

8. WBEYX

REMEMRTE - REREFES
MTEAT:

BZ—Z—NF+-A=+—HILEE

FYERMEFE 14,372
HEWE  BEK

& (BRET) (6,500)
e (H:E32) (441)
FREEFE 7,431
R-E—NFE+=-A=+—H
RS 12,042
RETinE (4,611)
EREDFE 7,431
BE-_Z—AF5+-A=+—HILEFE

FHEREFE 7,431
& (B93E32) (441)
FRERMEFE 6,990
R-B-HFE+=-A=+—H
XA 12,042
RitinE (5,052)

FREFE 6,990

RESZXARRENEEANSHEE

&
2015 2014
—B-HfF —ZE-mEF
eI A (F17E31) 2,616 1,797
EERS WA
HEEERY
(441) (441)
2,175 1,356

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had no
significant contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance of the investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

&
!

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8. BEWMEE)
As at 31 December 2015, the Directors estimated that the fair R-ZEBE—RFE+-_A=+—H ==
value of the investment properties was approximately RMB BB IR BTSN ERMGTHRE
49.9 million (2014: RMB 49.9 million) based on the prices in the MERNRNRLBEHARE 49908 T
active market. —E—OF : AR 4,90087T) °
9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. HEEE
Unpatented
technology Software Goodwill Total
FERB M i mE a5t
(Note 10(ii))

(BfF3E 10i))

Year ended 31 BE-_ZE—NN&E

December 2014 +=—A=t+—BLEE
Opening net book amount FEHEREEFE - 262 8,498 8,760
Additions NE = 21 - 21
Amortisation (Note 32) #45 (F13E32) - (108) - (108)
Closing net book amount FEREEEFE - 175 8,498 8,673
At 31 December 2014 R-EE—MEF

+=HA=+—8

Cost RN - 417 16,165 16,582
Accumulated amortisation KT KORE

and impairment - (242) (7,667) (7,909)
Net book amount BREFE - 175 8,498 8,673
Year ended 31 BE-—ZE—1&

December 2015 +ZA=1t—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE - 175 8,498 8,673
Additions NG 80,608 423 - 81,031
Amortisation (Note 32) s (M3 32) (10,076) (164) - (10,240)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 70,532 434 8,498 79,464
At 31 December 2015 R-E—1F

+=HA=+—8H

Cost P A 80,608 840 16,165 97,613
Accumulated amortisation KT NORE

and impairment (10,076) (406) (7,667) (18,149)
Net book amount BREFE 70,532 434 8,498 79,464
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10. SUBSIDIARIES

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

BE-F Rt -A=t-ALEE

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had direct and indirect

interests in the following subsidiaries:

Name

tH

Gold Genesis Development
Limited (“Gold Genesis”)

Gold Genesis Development
Limited ([ Gold Genesis )

Good Lucky Enterprises
Limited (‘Good Lucky”)

Good Lucky Enterprises
Limited ([ Goodl Lucky] )

First Glory Services
Limited (‘First Glory’)

First Glory Services Limited
([First Glory)

Accordpower Investments
Limited (“Accordpower’)

YHRERRAT
(E::0)

Fulhero Investments
Limited (‘Fullhero”)

ERRERRAT
([£8))

Place and date
of incorporation

EUEAREVEE

Brtish Virgin Islands
(‘BVI)

21 February 2008

ER4RRIS
([£B#ERES])

s

BVI

21 February 2008
EBEARES
ZEEECACT-R

BVI

16 October 2003
AB4ERES
ZZR=ETATAA

BVI

30 November 2004
ER4RRIS
ZZIMET-A=TH

BVI

3 May 2006
AB4ERES
“EERERA=A

Legal status

EETRER

Limited liabilfty
company

Limited liability
company
EREMAA

Limited liability
company

BREFAR

Limited liability
company
BREEAR

Limited fiabilty
company

BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
atributable

to the Group
FRERES
[ZF:i:1

100%
(Directly held)

100%
(E&H5)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(ERRR)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(E%HE)

100%
Drecty hel)

100%
(E%EE)

100%
(Directly held)
100%
(E%HE)

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [F 42 B A FR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2015

R-E—AF+_A=+—H &Q

S

B

Issued

and fully

paid capital
BEARARRA

USS1

USS1

157

USs2

ESH

Uss2

ESH

Uss2

ESH

Authorised
capital

EERK

US$50,000

50,000%7

US$50,000

50,000%7

US$50,000

500007

US$50,000

50,000%7

US$50,000

500007

BN TEIM B A R B A

Principal activities

TERE

Investment holoing

REER

Investment holdling

REER

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

Investment holding

RAZR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

¢

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

’' 3
v

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

10. KMIBATE (&)

Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR

£ AMRLLERAH EEERER Al EERAREERA EERE  TERH

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel PRC Joint stock company 97.6%  RMB228,640,000 RMB228,640,000  Manufacture and sales
Group Company Limited 24 December 1999 with imited liabifty ~ (Indirectly helo) of steel products
(‘Jinxi Limited’)

MEEEHEEERNERAR R RAERELAR 97.6% NG ARE  EEREEREER
(MemE ) —E (BiA) 2286400007 228,640,000

TZAZTEA

Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold PRC Limited liability 80.28% US855,150,000  US$55,150,000  Manufacture and sales
Rolled Sheet Company 26 December 2003 company (Indlrectly held) of steel products
Limited (*Jinxi Jinlan’)

BlzReRLAR e BREMRA 8028%  S5150000%T 95150000%% AERBEEEER
ARAR -23= (FHH)

-Sika ) TZAZ17H

Oriental Fullhero Leasing Co. ~ PRC Limited liabilty 100% 1S$65,000,000  US865,000,000  Leasing and financialleasing
Ltd. (‘Fullhero Leasing’) 23 September 2005 company (Indirectly held)

HHELREARAR i AREFAT 100%  6500000%7 6500000%% HERBARE
([#EHE]) “ETREAACTER (FERH)

Hebei Jinxi Section Steel PRC Limited liability 97.6%  RMB350,000,000 RMB350,000,000  Manufacture and sales
Company Limited 30 May 2008 company (Indirectly held) of steel products
("Jinxi Section Steef’)

MEEERERRAA Gl EREFAT 97.6% N ARE  EEREEREER
) “ETN\FRA=TA (B@A) 3500000007 350,000,007

Jinxi Hong Kong Tradling Hong Kong Limited liabilty 97.6% HK$38,750,001  HK$80,000,000  Import and export of goods
Company Limited 27 October 2008 company (Indirectly held)

(‘HK Trading’)

REERELOARAA B BREFAR 976%  3B750001AL 80000000%T  EHOEN

([2E%EE]) “ER\ETACTLA (FEHH)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEEFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

¢

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)

168

Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR

£ ARKLLERAH EEETRER BAl  EEARARRA EERE  TEXH

Suifenhe City Jinyin Trading PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000  Import and export of
Co. Ltd. (Jinyin Tracing’) 24 September 2008 company (Indirectly held) goods and technology

BAmRSERERAR  1E EREEAT 97.6% NG AR%  EHREMREE
((2HE5) “EE\FNAZTRA (REHA) 10,000,0007 100000007

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel PRC Limited liability 69.3% RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000  Manufacture and sales
Group Zhengda lron 19 December 2008 company (Indlrectly held) of steel products
and Steel Co. Lid.

(‘Zhengda Iron and Stee’)

MEEEHEEErERE  hE BREMAR 69.3% AR® ARE  EERBE
BRAF ZEE0E (FEHE) 50,000,0007c 50,000,007t HiEER
([TEE]) TZAThA

Tangshan Fengrun PRC Limited liabilty 69.3% RMB5,000,000  RMB5,000,000  Purchase and sale of
Qu Tong Yuan Trading 22 May 2009 company (Indirectly held) ferrous metal and coke
Company Limited
(Tong Yuan Trading’)

BUTERERERE el EREEAT 69.3% NG AR¥  BEZELE
BRAT ZEENE (REHA) 50000000 5000007  REiR
([EEHE]) EA-t-R

Hebei Jinxi Boyuan Real PRC Limited liabilfty 5856%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Development and sales
Estate Co. Ltd. 17 December 2009 company (Indlrectly held) of real estate
(‘Boyuan Real Estate’)

MtEERERE i BREAR 58.56% AEE AR®  REREE
REBRAA ZETNE (REHA) 100,000,007 100000000  BitE
([EEREE)) TZATtA

Clear Precision Limited BVI Limited liability 100% US$2 US850,000  Investment holding
(‘Clear Precision”) 22 July 2010 company (Directly held)

HEBRAR AREARES BREFAR 100% 25T S000ET  RERRK
(Lii=3) 2 (ERHE)

tA=tZH

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [F 42 B A FR 2 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place and date
Name of incorporation
&8 HME LR B
Bejing Jinxi Investment PRC
Holding Co. Ltd. 26 August 2010

(‘Befing Jinxi Investment’)
TrERRERRARAR  hE
(MEREERE]) . 3

—< %

NAZTRA

Oriental Evertrust Finance PRC
Leasing Co. Ltd. 27 September 2010
(‘Oriental Evertrust’)

ROFEREREERAT  fH

(T&AhkE) I 2
AA=tLR
Origntal Green Energy- PRC
Saving Environmental 20 October 2010
Protection Engineering

Co. Ltd. (“Orental Green’)
ROBRGARRIE hE

BRAR (A58 5%
TA=TA
Hebei Jinshun Energy- PRC
Saving Technology 17 November 2010

Development Co. Ltd.
(*Jinshun Energy-Saving’)
b2 BER RS i
=) 2
T=ATtA

(BRA A -

Legal status

EETRER

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited fiabilty
company

BREEAR

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable
to the Group
AREELRR
Al

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(RirA)

98.20%
(Indirectly held)

98.20%
(R&HH)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(RiRA)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

10. KMIBATE (&)

Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital
BETRERRA EERA

RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000

ARE AEE
100,000,000 100,000,0007C

US$200,000,000  US$200,000,000

200000000 200,000,000
X ESp

RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000

AEE AEE

100,000,000 100,000,000 7C

RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000

ARK ARR
1000000007 100,000,007

&
!

Principal activities

IERE

Investment holding

RAZR

Financial leasing and leasing

BEMEREE

Environmental Protection
Engineering

Research and development
on recycling and energy-
saving technology and
other recycling busingss

T ER kel
REERRH
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEEFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. B E (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR

£ ARKLLERAH EEETRER Bt BEARERRE EERE  TEXH

Beiing Jinxi Boyuan PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000000 RMB100,000,000  Development and sales
Real Estate Co. Ltd. 18 November 2010 company (Indirectly held) of real estate
(‘Beiing Real Estate)

IREREREFARAR h EREFAT 97.6% AR% ARE  RERHERE
(Tt REHE]) 5% (REHA) 1000000007 100,000,007

t=ATNB

China Oriental Singapore Singapore Limited liability 100% US$10,000,000 Nt applicable ~ Trading of ron ore and
Pte. Ltd. ‘China Oriental 29 November 2010 company (Indirectly held) related products
Singapore’)

Ghina Oriental Singapore il EREMAA 100%  10,000,000%7 TR EEERAREWER
Pe.Ltd. ([ChinaOriental ~ —F—%% (FEHE)

Singapore]) +-B=tNR

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel PRC Limited liability 45.75% RMBU93,098,162  RMB93,098,162  Manufacture and sales of
Group Dafang Heavy 27 November 2003 company (Indlrectly held) casting products and
Industry Science and equipment maintenance
Technology Co. Ltd.

(*Jinxi Dafang’) ()

MEERAEEEANEL 1 EREMAA 45.75% ARE ARE  HERBESEER
HEERAR ZERSE+-AT4A (BEHA) 03008162 930981627  RiBRE
(TEERADD

Jinxi Intemational Trade PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  International trading
Co. Ltd. (“Jinxi 23 March 2011 company (Indlrectly held)

International Trade”)

EREREHRRAA i BREMAR 97.6% ANEE AE%  ERES
((RERES)) “5——F=f1=R (REHA) 100,000,000 100,000,007

Heloei Gaofeidian Jinxing PRC Limited liabilty 97.6% RMBG6,000,000  RMB6,000,000  Motor vehicle scrap and
Resource Development 1 July 2011 company (Indlrectly held) crush demolition solution
Co. Ltd. (‘Caofeidian
Jinxing’)

AL ELARRARRY el EREMAA 97.6% AR ARE  HEBEREEN
ERAR([EL®2R)) “Z——£t+A-A (FEHE) 6,000,000 70 60000007  BHEERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

R

Beijing Jinxi LongXiang
Cutture Development
Co. Ltd. (‘LongXiang
Cutture”)

PrEmRAU R
BRAR
 54d)

Tianjin Oriental Huitong
Microcredit Co. Ltd.
(‘Oriental Huitong’)

RERAEREEHR
BRAT
(RHER)

Tianjin Jinxi Logistics Go. Ltd.

(‘Jinxi Logistics”)
AEEERARAA
(At ])

Qianxi Xinhalyuan Trade
Co. Ltd. (‘Xinhaiyuan’)
BREEERHEARAT

(&iR))

Tianjin Juli Trade Co. Ltd.
("Juli Trade)

RERHERRRAA
([EHES))

Suzhou Jinxi Boyuan
Real Estate Co. Lid.
(*Suzhou Boyuan’)

FMZERERHERE
BRAR (50N EE )

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBER RS

PRC
£ May 2012

hE
“Z-_F7/AmA

PRC
29 June 2012

HE
“2-%~A-T/R

PRC

31 July 2012

i
“2-"%tA=1-R

PRC

24 October 2012

B
“2-“#+A-fEA

PRC

25 October 2012

B
“2-"#tA-f1R

PRC
23 January 2013

B
“5-=%-f-1=H

(BRA A -

Legal status
EEERER
Limited liability

company

EREEAA

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company
BREEAT

Limited liability
company
BRELAT

Limited liability
company
BRELAT

Limited liability
company

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AREELRR
Al

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(R&H%)

97.8%
(Indirectly held)

97.8%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

58.56%
(Indlrectly held)

68.56%
(&%)

10. KMIBATE (&)

Issued
and fully Authorised
paid capital capital
BETRERRA EERAK
RMB 10,000,000  RMB 10,000,000
ARE ARE
10,000,000 10,000,007
RMB100,000,000 - RMB100,000,000
NG N
100,000,007 100,000,0007%
RMB 20,000,000  RMB 20,000,000
N N
200000007z 20,000,007
RMB 2,000,000  RMB 2,000,000
N N
2,000,00070 2,000,000

RMB 100,000,000 RMB 100,000,000

AEH
100,000,007

ARR
100,000,007

RMB130,000,000 RMB130,000,000

ARE
130,000,000 7

AEE
130,000,000

Annual Report 2015 —F—AAE4EH
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Principal activities

IERE

Publication

hil7E

Provision of loans

RIER

Provision of agency services
for import/export

REELORERE

Sales of mining machinery
accessories

RERBRARS

International Trading

BRES

Development and sales
of real estate

FHERZRHE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEEFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR

£ ARKLLERAH EEETRER Bt BEARERRE EERE  TEXH

Beijing Jinxi Boyuan Project PRC Limited liability 97.6% RMB 1,000,000  RMB 1,000,000  Construction Project
Management Co. Ltd. 12 July 2013 company (Indirectly held) management
(‘Beiing Boyuan Project
Management’)

IrERBREREEERAR HE EREFAT 97.6% A% ARE  THREREER
(tRERERER)) “E-CFLATCA (REHA) 1000000 1,000,007

Well Balanced Global Limited BV Limited liability 100% USS1 US850,000  Investment holding
("Well Balance”) 2 January 2014 company (Directly held)

Wel Balanced Global Limited ~~ RE4BRES BREAF 100% 157 500005 HKEER
(TWel Balance]) “E-mE-A-R (EEHA)

Finest Sino International Limited ~ BVI Limited liability 100% USS1 US850,000  Investment holding
(‘Fingst Sino”) 2 January 2014 company (Indlrectly held)

Finest Sino Intemational Limted ~ XB%EREE EREAF 100% 137 50000%w  KEER
(TFinest Sino ) “Z-mE-AZA (FEHE)

XTAL Inc. (‘XTAL’) US Limited liability 67.1% US$17,100 US82,500  Technalogy and import

27 January 2014 company (Indlrectly held) and export of goods

XTALInc. (TXTAL)) %8 BREFAR 67.1% 17,100%7 25005 RfREMELD

“2-ME-A-TtA (FERE)

Origntal Jingyuan Science PRC Limited liability 49.8%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Technology and import
Technology (Beiing) Co. Ltd. 18 February 2014 company (Indirectly held) and export of goods
(‘Oriental Jingyuan”) (i)

RIEEMBTHR(ER)  PE AREFAT 49.8% ARE ARE  BREWELO
ARAA(FA&RDN  —F-BE-ATIR (B#EE) 1000000007 1000000007

Tianjin Haingjin International PRC Limited liability 976%  RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  Intemational trading
Trade Co. Ltd. 20 February 2014 company (Indirectly held)

(Tianjin Haingjin’)

REGHEEREHERAT  1E EREFAT 97.6% AR® N

((Rzhhe)) ZE-MEZAZTR (FEHE) 100,000,0007c  100,000,0007C
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_T-RFE+-_A=1T—HIFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

R

Tianjin Hengyuanda Coal
Trade Co. Ltd.
(‘Tianjin Hengyuanda’)
REEREERESERAT
(TREEgEE])

Tianjin Haichangsheng
Steel Trade Co. Lid.
(Tianjin Haichangsheng)
REEEINESERAR
(TR=8EH])

Tianjin Longshunxiang
Environmental Protection
Engineering Co. Ltd.
(Tianjin Longshunxiang’)

REREMRR TRERAA
(TR )

Suzhou Jinxi Boyun Real
Estate Co. Ltd.
(*Suzhou Boyun”)

EMzREERERY
ERAR (B0 EE])

Place and date
of incorporation

AMALBER RS

PRC
26 March 2014

B
“E-ME=A=15A

PRC
26 March 2014

B
“E2-ME=A-15A

PRC
26 March 2014

hE

“E2-ME=A-15A

PRC
26 April 2014

hE
“E-MEMA-TIA

(BRA A -

Legal status

EETREH

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited fiabilty
company

EREEAA

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AREELRR
Al

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(RiERA)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%

(RiHA)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(R&HH)

10. KMIBATE (&)

Issued
and fully
paid capital

ERTRARER
RMBO
AEH

T

<

RMBO
ARK
N

RMBO

AR%
I

RMB30,000,000

ARE
30,000,0007C

Authorised
capital

EERK

RMB10,000,000

AE%

10,000,000

RMB10,000,000

i

10,000,007t

RMB30,000,000

AER
30,000,0007

RMB30,000,000

ARE
30,000,007

Annual Report 2015 —F—AAE4EH
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Principal activities

IERE

Wholesale and Retall Trade

HERTERS

Wholesale and Retail Trade

HYREEES

Environmental Protection
Engineering

BRIE

Development and sales
of real estate

FHERZRHE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

¢

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)

Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR

£ ARKLLERAH EEETRER Bt BEARERRE EERE  TEXH

Qianx Xian Dafang Pengcheng ~ PRC Limited liability 45.75% RMB6,000,000  RMB6,000,000  Development of energy
Science and Technology 21 July 2014 company (Indirectly held) saving technology
Co. Ltd. (‘Dafang and freight transport
Pengcheng’) ()

BEEAARENEERAE  hE EREMAA 45.75% ARE ARE  FRERREREE
(TRAEED) Z3-mE (BEHA) 60000007 6,000,000

tA=t+-B

Hebei Jinxi Iron and PRC Limited liability 97.6%  RMB1,570,000,000 RMB2,150,000,000  Manufacture and seles
Steel Group Special Steel 16 October 2014 company (Indlrectly held) of steel products
Co. Ltd. (*Jini Special Steel’)

EplA=Fifil 3] el EREEAT 97.6% NG ARE  EEREEREED
RABRAA ZE-RETATRA (BERE) 1570000000  2,150,000,0007
(TREH )

Tangshan Jini PRC Limited liability 97.6% RVB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000  Transport agency of import
Logistics Co. Ltd. 7 April 2015 company (Indirectly held) and export goods
(‘Tangshan Logistics’)

EILZERERA E BREAR 97.6% ARHE ARE  ERDEmERRE
([ELHmz]) ZE-REMALA (FEHE) 10,000,000z 10,000,000

Qianxi Boshun PRC Limited fiabilty 97.6% RMB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000  Logistics
Logistics Co. Ltd. 9 April 2015 company (Indirectly held)

(‘Boshun Logistics’)

ERERIENRARAA el EREMAA 97.6% ARE ARE Wik

([EIEmii ) “2-REMANA (REHA) 10,000,000 100000007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place and date

Name of incorporation
£ ARALBEE RS
New Asia Prosperity PRC

Intemational Trade Co. Ltd. 10 June 2015

(‘New Asia Prosperity”)
AENCEERESERAR  HE

([HEEE5)) Z2-RE5ATH
Tianjin Ansai Assefs PRC

Management Co. Lid. 30 September 2015

(‘Ansal Asset Management’)
REZEREERARAR  %E
([z2EE) ZZ-RENAZTA

Heboei Jinxi Kaixin Energy-Saving  PRC

Technology Development 20 November 2015

Co. Ltd.

(*Kaixin Energy-Saving’) ()

ALRBRESENRRG  PE
ERAA(EESE))  —F-AFt-A=fR

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

Legal status

EETRER

Limited liability
company

BREEAR

Limited liability

company

BREEAR

Limited liability
company

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

to the Group
AEEELESR
Al

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEER)

97.6%
(Indirectly held)

97.6%
(BEHE)

23.3%

(Indirectly held)

2.3%
(BEHE)

The English name of certain companies referred in this financial

statements represent management’s best effort at translating

the Chinese names of these companies as no English names

have been registered.

(i) Although the equity holdings of the Group in Jinxi
Dafang, Dafang Pengcheng and Kaixin Energy-Saving

are below 51%, the Directors are of the review that the

Group has control over these subsidiaries given that

majority of the directors of the companies are appointed

by the Group by virtue of the article of association of the

respective companies.

BE-_Z-R&E+-A=1—RBItFE

’' 3
v

10. KMIBATE (&)

Issued
and fully
paid capital

BRTRAERE

RMBO

N e

RMB2,000,000

ARH2,000,0007

RMB1,050,000

I\
1,00,0007C

Authorised
capital  Principal activities

TERE  EIERE

RMB100,000,000  International trading

N
100,000,007

RMB100,000,000  Assets management

AEE  REER
100,000,007

RMB20,000,000  Environmental protection
engineering

ARE  BRIE
200000007

AR AP T AR5
X4 T8 A E B R RIS H P X4
BREEEAG 1D m R
EARYMERANE TR
£78 o

) BEXAEEFBEEAK
o R MER & R EEngE
HIPEIER A 51% @ tEE S
RAE - BRZFRRIAE
NEFHASEREZS
NRABERABNEF
REBHZENBARA
VESIHE o
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‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEEFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. MIEATE (&)
(i) On 6 January 2015, an independent third party acquired iy MHZZE—AHF—HA~H —%

176

49% equity interest in Oriental Jingyuan, whose original
paid-in capital was RMB 24 million, at a consideration
of unpatented technology with fair value of RMB 80.6
million. The difference between the Group’s share of
carrying value of net assets in Oriental Jingyuan and the
Group’s investment cost is recorded in equity.

After the above capital injection, Oriental Jingyuan
become an indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company in which Jinxi Limited, an indirectly 97.6%
owned subsidiary of the Company, indirectly own 51% of
Oriental Jingyuan.

(@ Material non-controlling interests
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015, there

were no significant non-controlling interests of the
subsidiaries in the Group.

BUBE=FURABEARE
8,060 & T Z IEFEMEMER/RK
BURERS SR (EREHAR
NEARE24008TT) H149%
f&#E - REBZHRRT &R
LEBEFERREERENKA
L ERART AR ©

R EEFER - R RIRKA
RARHEEIFEZEMB AR
i 2 78 8§ VB R AN 1 R El B
BI7.6%MHBAR] - HERE
B SR 51% HiR#E -

R FEIEHI A
REEZE-_ZT—AF+_H4

=T BLEFE AEEH
B AT BB A IR G

11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 11. A—REBEATKRE
2015 2014
—E2-HF T
At 1 January R—H—H - =
Acquisition of an associate (i) W % — Bt = 2 A (i) 9,581 -
Share of loss of an associate FE(h—EEE & A Rl ES1E (745) -
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 8,836 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

R—EBEARRE (&)

11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 11.

RZZE—AF+=-A=+—H £#
FELETEERRNEREIIT

The information of the unlisted associated company at 31
December 2015 is as follows:

Percentage
of equity
Place and interest
date of attributable
Name incorporation to the Group Assets Liabilities Revenues  Netloss
KEEE
£ TR K A ERERD BE af 0N S
Paima Ceia SemiDesign, USA 30% 6,243 9,939 14,040 (3,037)
Inc. (‘PCS’) 5 November 2012 (indirectly held)
Palma Ceia SemiDesign, %E 30%
Inc. ([PCSJ) —Z——F+—AAH (FERA)

Pursuant to a capital contribution agreement between
Oriental Jingyuan and the existing shareholders of PCS
dated 10 July 2015, Oriental Jingyuan agreed to acquire
4,656,298 shares of the Series A Preferred Stock of PCS
by injecting new capital contribution of US$ 1.5 million
(equivalent to RMB 9.6 million), owning 30% of equity
interest of PCS. Besides, Oriental Jingyuan occupies one
of the three seats in the board of directors of PCS and
has significant influence on this company.

For the period ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
recognised share of loss of an associate amounted to
approximately RMB 0.7 million.

BIER 5 e REPCSHE AR
RZE—RAFEtA+HEIZZ
FEBE - RASRREAE
AEE150BET (HERARKE
960 & 7T ) Wi i 4,656,298 i A &
HIMESTR% - #EH PCS 30% 2 %
B o AN R HIRIGEPCSE
ER={EEMN T/ —FERFEA
WEEAREEEATE -

HE-Z-—HFET-A=+—
B ik SRR - A B 2 R
—EBE R ABROARST0
B -
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‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEFEIUARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. €@ T E (REH)

Financial
assets at fair Available-

value through for-sale
Loans and profit and financial
receivables loss assets Total
RAAEE
FrEAREE
BXRk stABHERZ MRHE
R SHEE SREE &t
Assets as per consolidated AHEERERFTNEE
balance sheet
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z-RF+-A=1+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 15) Rt &S BEE (FizE 15) - - 109,605 109,605
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) [EWE BT REE (f:E17) 3,456,825 - - 3,456,825
Deposits and other receivables (Note 18) &4 R E i EIRER X (MizE18) 715,667 - - 715,667
Derivative financial instruments fTESRBIA - 10,233 - 10,233
Financial assets at fair value through ROABETEREEHA
profit or loss (Note 20) BaxeREE (H20) - 131,951 - 131,951
Amounts due from related FEd e 300 (TRE43(0)
parties (Note 43(c)) 5,828 - - 5,828
Loan receivables (Note 19) JEUETR (FizE19) 400,000 - - 400,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 21) SRR (BE21) 1,773,607 = = 1,773,697
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) BeRBeEEN (FiE21) 2,337,547 = - 2,337,547
Total gt 8,689,564 142,184 109,605 8,941,353
As at 31 December 2014 R=ZE-W&+-A=1—H
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 15)  AI{EHELFEAE (K 15) - = 121,243 121,243
Trade and notes receivables (Note 17) EWE ZEEZRER (fiizE17) 4,870,688 - - 4,870,688
Deposits and other receivables (Note 18) 124 R E- e uBR 37 (Hizt 18) 730,731 = - 730,731
Amounts due from related Fel s 7 2B (MR 43(c))
parties (Note 43(c)) 178,743 - - 178,743
Loan receivables (Note 19) FednEsn (i3 19) 290,000 - - 290,000
Long-term bank deposits due —FREE
within one year (Note 21) REFTEA(FE21) 52,000 - - 52,000
Restricted bank balances (Note 21) RBHIRITRER (M 21) 1626978 - - 1626978
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) BeRAeSEN(WiE21) 849,063 - - 849,063
Total gt 8,598,203 - 121,243 8,719,446

178 China Oriental Group Company Limited B # iy 4 % B A PR A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 3 & Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T-AF+-_A=t—HLEE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. €I A (RER)(E)
(continued)
Financial liabilities Financial
measured at liabilities
fair value through measured at
profit or loss  amortised cost Total
RAREE RE#
FTEEEZEHTA AT
BERZ AR SRERE At
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet ~ AHEEEBRMRNER
As at 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=t—H
Trade payables (Note 24) JERTE 2% (FiaE24) = 5,641,030 5,641,030
Other payables (Note 25) H i TR (FitsE25) - 644,466 644,466
Borrowings (Note 26) &3k (fitiE26) - 3,402,375 3,402,375
Other long-term payables (Note 27) At B AR (M 27) - 1,220,784 1,229,784
Amounts due to related parties (Note 43(c)) (SRR 7 708 (M7 43(0)) = 134,903 134,908
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 3,616 - 3,616
Total &t 3,616 11,052,558 11,056,174
As at 31 December 2014 R=EB-WF+-A=1—H
Trade payables (Note 24) R E Z%E (FiiE24) - 2,719,253 2,719,253
Other payables (Note 25) E AR (M3t 25) - 390,205 390,205
Borrowings (Note 26) &3k (FizE26) - 8,169,271 8,169,271
Other long-term payables (Note 27) Eth i BRI (M 27) = 26,129 26,129
Amounts due to related parties (Note 43(c)) JERT AR 7 5008 (MR 43(0) - 351,715 351,715
Derivative financial instruments fTEERIA 4,689 - 4,689
Total st 4,689 11,666,573 11,661,262
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‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 13. ERMEENEENRR
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due mABHINEERENSHEENE
nor impaired can be assessed by types of the financial assets ERT RS EERR - WAE
and by reference to historical information about counterparty BREAE T H R LR E L ERETTT
default rates. The Group categorised the trade, notes o REBEKRIWE SRR - ERE
receivables and loan receivables as follows: B RERERDENT
e Group 1 - Bank acceptance notes e ZFH-RITERHEZR
e Group 2 - Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables s FIBE-BUBEEHRLH
due from customers with no defaults in the past NEFHEKRE SRR - EBU
ERREWER
e Group 3 - Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables s FE-H-RYBEBHIBHERXR
due from customers with some defaults in the past AENEFHNEWE SRR

FEM R I R E K

Trade, notes receivables and loan receivables JEUE SR - RINEE K EKE R
2015 2014
“E-EF —ZT—mE
Group 1 E—H 2,452,299 3,909,346
Group 2 F-fF 1,004,526 851,342
Group 3 E=48 400,000 400,000
3,856,825 5,160,688
The credit quality of ‘Available-for-sale financial assets’, AEB [HELHESRHEE| [
‘Deposits and other receivables’ and ‘Amounts due from T H b e U BR R ] K [ Uk BABS: 75 5k
related parties’ of the Group is disclosed in Notes 15, 18 and H] MEERRDFIRHES ~ 18 &
43(c) respectively. 43(c) #iFE -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
The Group categorises cash in banks as follows:
° Group 1 — Major international banks
° Group 2 - Listed banks in the PRC

o Group 3 — Subsidiary of listed banks and other banks in
the PRC

The Directors considered the credit risks in respect of cash in
banks and bank deposits with financial institution are relatively
minimum as each counter party either bears a high credit rating
or is state-owned bank and large local banks in the PRC.

Cash in banks and bank deposits

Group 1 F—%g
Group 2 v}
Group 3 F=48

13. TREENEEMRR (&)
AREBEREFITRESBMOT ¢
s FE-IEBERRT
o FEH-—PELEMRT

s F-R-PELWRITHEH
B REMIRTT

BRENBREERENEH AT
BRITRPEEMARRT  MEF
RRTFHREMEBNRITRE LR
THEHREERRRE -

RITHE MRTTER

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-mF
970,619 180,365
2,654,984 2,136,727
465,150 195,781

4,090,753 2,512,873
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND HELD

FOR SALE

Properties under development comprise:

— Construction costs
— Land use rights
— Interests capitalised

Completed properties held for sale

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RFT-A=T—BLEE

14.

BRPRSELHENR

The properties under development and held for sale are all
located in the PRC. The related land use rights are on lease of
40 to 70 years.

As at 31 December 2015, land use rights with the carrying
amount of approximately RMB 146 million (2014: RMB
314 million) were pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, borrowing costs
amounted to approximately RMB 45 million (2014: RMB 54
million) were capitalised into the cost of properties under
development at an annual average capitalisation rate of 7.57%

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-F

BREAPYEBIE
— R AN 459,017 454,356
— T F e 492,156 656,869
—BEREFE 92,225 72,108
1,043,398 1,183,333
FIEHEE TR 270,314 134,630
1,313,712 1,317,963

ERPERFELENDEAURF
o EEE T (E A A 40ET70
ﬁzo

RZZE-—RAF+_A=+—H " KA
BEHNARKE146EBT(ZT—0OF:
ARBE314ETT) L ERE /R
S EEIRITRERIEEIR o

HE—_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILF
B BERAHARE 45008t (=
=—OF : AR¥5,400&7T) BEIRF
EVFHEREEEERL7.57%(=ZF—M

(2014: 9.34%) approximately.

F :9.34%) ERME BB RPWEHIK

2015 2014
—E-HF —T e
Properties under development comprised: 2 E R YZERIE ¢
Expected to be completed and TEHAR 128 A AEL
available for sale within 12 months RAalftHeE 1,043,398 258,203
Expected to be completed and available TEHAAS R 12 {8 A LAT&
for sale after more than 12 months ELNAHEHEE - 925,130
1,043,398 1,183,333
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15, AIHEHESREE

2015 2014
—E-RF T
Unlisted equity interests (a) JE ETHER () 297,705 297,705
Less: provision for impairment B B E R (188,100) (188,100)
Net FE 109,605 109,605
Listed equity interests (b) R (b) 11,638 40,096
Add: fair value gains credited ARz AREE
to equity (Note 23) Wezs (Pt 23) 3,979 20,708
Less: disposal e (15,617) (49,166)
Net FE - 11,638
Total 55t 109,605 121,243

(@)

The Group’s unlisted equity interests mainly comprised
an investment amounted to RMB 188 million in a
51% equity interest in Qianxi County Jinjin Mine Co.
Ltd. (“Jinjin Mine”), and an investment amounted to
RMB 95 million in a 10% equity interest in Caofeidian
Port Company Limited. The investee companies are
both operating in the PRC. During the year ended 31
December 2015, The Group received cash dividend
from Caofeidian Port Company Limited amounted RMB
10 million (2014 nil) (Note 31).

As the above investments do not have any quoted
market price in an active market, the range of reasonable
fair value estimate is so significant and the probabilities
of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, the Directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be reliably measured. Therefore, these
investments are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

AEEMFELTREEZEDRE
UAR®A188ETHENGE
AGREeEXEERAR(E:
) B51% MR RIAARE
9,500 B LIk EESE L& 12
SO B R R A 10% IR -
ZEELENRARHRPEE
BoHE_ZT—RAF+=A
=+—HIEFE  AEEEK
BRBEELELZAEOERA
AIARK1,0008T (=T
F o R)WIRSE (FIFEST) ©

AR Ll i B A E BB T 5 3
EATERE 2AEESRE
BENBEREER  mEE
BEF AR EES BED
A HEERREAAEE
BAAISAE - At ZER
BREABRERESR(AE) -
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(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. AEHESREE(E)

184

(continued)

(@)

(continued)

Regarding the investment in Jinjin Mine, the major asset
of Jinjin Mine is the unlicensed mining rights of an iron
mine in Qianxi County. Since December 2008, Jinxi
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group holding the 51%
equity interest in Jinjin Mine, entered into cooperation
agreements (the “Cooperation Agreements”) with other
parties, pursuant to which Jinxi Limited leased the mining
rights to the contracting parties and conveyed to the
contracting parties all the voting rights on the financial
and operating policies of Jinjin Mine. The contracting
parties were exclusively entitled to the profit or loss
and net assets accumulated during the lease periods
in return for paying lease fees to Jinxi Limited. The
contracting parties were also responsible for preserving
and increasing the value of the net assets of Jinjin Mine at
the end of lease periods. The lease fees were determined
based on the local iron powder market price and are
subject to adjustments quarterly. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group is not able to exercise any control,
jointly control or significant influence over Jinjin Mine
and therefore the investment in Jinjin Mine has been
recognised as available-for-sale financial assets.

The investment in Jinjin Mine has been fully provided for
impairment by the Directors given that the collectability
of the future lease fee income is uncertain, and the
recoverability of investment from the mining rights is also
uncertain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15.

16.

B Ot IR R

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

(b) The Group’s listed equity interest comprised an
investment in 143,220,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 1.07% shareholding of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
disposed all the ordinary shares, resulted in a gain of
RMB 9 million (2014 nil) approximately (Note 30).

The fair value of the listed equity interest was determined
on the basis of its quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials and materials in-transit
Work-in-progress &
Finished goods I

As at 31 December 2015, inventories with a net book value
of RMB 62 million (2014: RMB 112 million) were pledged
as security for the Group’s notes payable (Note 24), and
no inventory (2014: RMB 17 million) was withheld by and in
custody of a court.

The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB 20,307 million
(2014: RMB 26,940 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recognised
a loss of RMB 105 million (2014: RMB 60 million), in respect
of the write-down of inventories to their net realisable values
(Note 32).

R S Y

15. AIHHESREE ()

b) AKEHLTEZEERE
143,220,000 % @ A% + (522N
RSB ARAR (—HE
ERBMERIMBR AR ER
ETERR) #91.07%RRHE - &

—Z—HRF+-_A=+—8H
EFERN AEBHEMEE
AR EEHARBKI0E T
ZE—MF ) Ak (R
30) °

EMESEAREBENRIEBEER
HEHNTSEREETE °

16. 78

2015 2014
—E-RF T —HF

1,652,243 1,975,497
171,445 251,923
670,336 941,833

2,494,024 3,169,253

R-E—RE+=—A=+—HB 24
REBEMESEE (FisE24) mikHg
Tf%%@%ﬁ%AEMG%&%ﬁ
—UFE : AR®E112187T) kil
ﬁﬁ 2 (ZZT—F - AREEA1,7008
E)Eﬁxﬂgfﬁﬂa EQE"

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HLHF
g - a%m%%%&¢mﬁ SR A
ARE 203,07 T (=T —MF : A
R#269.40187T) °

HE-_Z—AF+=-_A=+—HLHF
= $%@Eﬁ%AEML%E*
(ZZ—WF : AR¥6,00087T) A
EEMRFEEEA IR FENEIE
(MfzE32) »
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEWE S IR
Long-term trade receivables RHFEWE 5 8RR
— current portion — mENER D

Less: impairment provision for
trade receivables (Note 32)

Trade receivables — net

eSS

Notes receivable

Total trade and notes receivables,

kR R

net of provision

The long-term trade receivables-current portion represents
the receivables for the provision of construction services in the
previous years, and bear interest at a rate of 6.3% per annum.
As at 31 December 2015, the receivables were overdue but
not impaired since they were fully secured by the pledge of
property, plant and equipment of the customer.

The notes receivable are all bank acceptance notes. The
settlement of the notes receivable were guaranteed by banks
with maturity dates within six months and the credit risks of
the notes receivable are considered low. As at 31 December
2015, approximately RMB 582 million (2014: RMB 5 million)
and RMB 844 million (2014: RMB 799 million) were pledged
as security for the Group’s notes payable (Note 24) and
borrowings (Note 26) respectively.

The fair values of trade and notes receivables approximated
their carrying amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]

o EUCE B AR
R (E A (BTRE32)

FEWE 5 iR K — 8

FEWE ZIRR N FIRAERR -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2015

17. BREZRIAERE

2015 2014
—E-FF —ZE—HF

614,405 574,875
400,000 400,000
(9,879) (13,533)
1,004,526 961,342
2,452,299 3,909,346
3,456,825 4,870,688

REIEWE BN —RE B /.2 A
FRERTRRRSG ZBEFE - Wik
FHNEB3%:TE - R-TB—HF+—
A=1—8  ERURERCABERE
BEHREATFPHOME - BFEM&HE
TEZ BRI

EWE R RIRITARES - EIlfE
BREBBEARNEANUNA - REER
BITEREEERRHEREAR - K=
T-FFE+-_A=+—H0 HARKE
58218 (ZZ—MF : ARKS5008
TL) R ARKE844 BT (ZE —04F -
AR T7.9918T) Rl AREAEED
FERTEEIR (FteE24) K& (FfaE26) 1
IR o

RFRPETEA - ERESERR
BENEE AN A EETHAET
&
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Except for the long-term trade receivables — current portion,
the credit policy usually adopted by the Group for the sales of
products to customers is to deliver goods either upon receipt
in cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with the
maturity dates within six months.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the ageing analysis of the
gross amount of trade and notes receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3MEAR
4-6 months 4ZE61EA
7-12 months 7E=1218 A
Over 1 year —FEM F

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables amounting to RMB
239 million (2014: RMB 151 million) were secured by letters of
credit issued by third party customers and those amounting to
RMB 479 million (2014: RMB 479 million) were secured by the
pledge of property, plant and equipment of customers.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of RMB 433 million
(2014: RMB 498 million) were past due, of which amounting
to RMB 10 million (2014: RMB 14 million) were fully impaired.
The remaining balances of these receivables were past due but
not impaired which related to a number of customers with no
recent history of default or were fully secured by the pledge of
property, plant and equipment of customers.

17.

FEE 5 R R RE (&)

BB E 2 8RR —RB DI -
AEERTHERHEEEBR B
T RPRUER & 5B H B E S E A A
AR TE L ERBRATPRMNEY)

R-ZE—AFR-_ZFT-—HNF+=H
=t+—H RUEEZEALEEEE
MRRER DTN ¢

2015 2014
=F-1F —FT0OF
1,215,906 3,350,567
1,717,523 1,066,262

44,396 53,859
488,879 413,533
3,466,704 4,884,221

R-ZB—AE+-A=+—8 UE
ZHEFPHRAMNGERABERTNE
WBSERBARE239EBIL(ZE
—EFE: ARB15187) ' MAER
FoWE  BERZEEEROE
KWESERBAREATIEL(ZF
—F : ARBEATIETT) ©

RZZE—RAF+—_A=+—H"' A
READBEIT(ZE—RF : ARK
4981870 ) RIEIE SRR E B Hf -
HEfh ARK1,0008 L (= —H4F :
ARHEA,4008 7T) W E I E 5 B8R
EARFME - ZZRBRFHERED
BMEMERRE - W REEARTLE
HREFDENEF  HABEFHY
¥ BEREEEDRER -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. BHRESERRRERE (&)
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows: ZERWE ZERFARR AT
2015 2014
—E-fF —EF—F
Within 3 months 3MEAN 22,626 84,578
Over 1 year —F AL 409,879 413,533
432,505 498,111
The gross amounts of the Group’s trade and notes receivables AREBEWE SERNEERBETETY
are denominated in the following currencies: DAY E¥E A B8 AT -
2015 2014

—E-RF —E—F

RMB AREE 3,227,915 4,725,812
uss$ ETT 238,789 158,409

3,466,704 4,884,221

Movements on the Group’s allowance for impairment of trade REFEWS FEZRAREES M
receivables are as follow: T
2015 2014
—F-HFf C—T-MmF
At 1 January R—A—H 13,533 9,807
Provision for impairment (Note 32) B (M 32) 4,186 3,726
Derecognition of receivables R R IEGRIR (7,840) -
At 31 December Nt+-=HA=+—H 9,879 13,533

188 China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 Bl B A FR A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

&
!

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. FEMNEE - e RE AR
RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mEF
Non-current IERE
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEYE  MEMK
plant and equipment (a) HITEAT ZRIH (a) 234,235 234,235
Deposits and other receivables e R E A EUER TR 23,000 33,000
Less: impairment provision B ORERE (234,235) (234,235)
23,000 33,000
Current TED
Prepayments for purchase of inventories (o) 88 E 17 & H T8 7UE (b) 780,275 1,058,033
Deposits and other receivables e REMEWERRK 692,667 697,731
Prepaid expenses TEE A 8,497 216,066
Less: impairment provision B ORERE (86,283) (57,010)

1,395,156 1,914,820

1,418,156 1,947,820
The fair values of prepayments, deposits and other receivables RAITBEFENEKN  REER - BN
were within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and approximated HIE - B REMBEBERZTH AR E
their carrying amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the BEARBEBRE AR » WL
impact of discounting is not significant. HARE(E -
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(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. R RIE - &R HEMEWRERER

RECEIVABLES (continued) (%)

Detalils of certain prepayment, deposits and other receivables EFIENEIE RS & H M E U BE 2

are set out below: HIFFIBEFI AT

(@  This prepayment was fully impaired in year 2013 due to (@ EENFKEER-_Z—=F%%
the supplier was in significant financial difficulty and had B - TR EER RN E AR
defaulted the payment of the remaining balance. TSR B HER SR8 o

(b)  Among the prepayments for purchasing of inventories at by R-ZE—RF+_-_A=+—H
31 December 2015, RMB 227 million (2014: RMB 401 MREFEBENZS - AR
million) were overdue but not impaired, which were fully 2271 BT (ZE—4F : ARK
secured by the pledge of property, plant and equipment 4.011870) EBAERBE ©
of the suppliers. HEENYE  BERZEE

R o
Movement on the Group’s impairment provision of ANEBFENMNFIE - Ha ME M EWER
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as follows: SR EREZEZHOT
2015 2014

—E-RF —E—F

At 1 January R—A—H (291,245) (276,132)
Provision for impairment (Note 32) AR (i3 32) (29,273) (15,500)
Derecognition of receivables 1% I TR FE LR IE = 387
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H (320,518) (291,245)
As at 31 December 2015, the impairment provision for RZZE—RAF+-_A=+—H " B&f
prepayments, deposits and other receivables comprised of the FRIE - R I FAth FE AR R 2 R (E 1
impairment provision of RMB 66 million (2014: RMB 36 million) HEEE B RM RS TR RE
for certain advance payments for purchase of raw materials, AR G6,6008L(ZF—WF : A
RMB 21 million (2014: RMB 21 million) for certain advance R¥360087T) R BEREE 3B
payments for mining rights of iron ore and RMB 234 million BREBEREENE TRERIEEAR
(2014: RMB 234 million) for certain advance payments for 21008 (=2 —MF : AR
acquisition of property, plant and equipment. 21008 7T) KR ERE R ED

% - B RRIENE TRIRIER A
R 20487 (=2 W% : ARM
2.3487T) FORIBIRH -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES

Non-current FERE
Long-term loan receivable (a) JEWREAE X (a)
Current RE

Loan receivables (b) JEWE TR (b)
Less: impairment provision (c) B ORBREHE ()
Total loan receivables JEW E R 4R%E

The Group provided loans to third parties. The details of the
loans are set out below:

(@ Asat 31 December 2015, a loan receivable of RMB 400
million was secured by the pledge of certain property,
plant and equipment of borrower, bearing interest at a
rate of 12% per annum and repayable in full in December
2017.

19. EKRER

2015 2014
—E-RF T

400,000 =
57,000 347,000
(57,000) (567,000)
- 290,000
400,000 290,000

REBMAS=ZFIREER - EFGES
B;yaT

@ R-ZE—RAF+-_A=1+—
H - ARB4ETHEKERH
BRANE THE  BEKFK
BIERER - BFMNEA12%5T
B YERZZE—tF+T=H
ZRRELR -
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(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. EWER(Z)

192

(b)

As at 31 December 2014, an entrusted long-term loan
receivable of RMB 290 million was secured by the
pledge of certain property, plant and equipment of the
borrower, bore interest at a rate of 12% per annum and
had been repaid in full in July 2015. The remaining RMB
57 million (2014: RMB 57 million) comprised various
loans of individual amount ranging from RMB 7 million to
RMB 20 million (2014: RMB 7 million to RMB 20 million),
which were secured by the pledged of property, plant
and equipment of the borrowers or guarantees of the
borrowers or other parties, and interest bearing at rates
ranging from 19.8% to 24% (2014: 19.8% to 24%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2015, provisions amounting to RMB
57 million (2014: RMB 57 million) were made on the loan
receivables given that the borrowers were in significant
financial difficulty and had defaulted in scheduled
payments and there was significant uncertainty of
recovering the loan receivables by the enforcement of
mortgage rights.

The fair values of loan receivables approximated their carrying

amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the impact of

discounting is not significant.

The fair values of loan receivables were within level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy.
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20.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

(BRA BB -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Money market funds BEmEES

Financial investment products SRR EEMm

According to certain contracts entered into between the Group
and certain financial institutions, the Group acquired money
market fund and financial investment products amounting to
RMB 130.8 million in the intent to enhance short-term gain,
and resulted an fair value gain of RMB 1.2 million (Notes 3, 30).

20.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

RAREBEFEEHEZHTARR
RZEWMEE

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —F—UF
38,392 =
93,559 -
131,951 —

BIEAEEEETERMEEIT VNS
TEa# AEEEEARK1.3081F
THEETMSEESRERIEEER
LADNeg s Bk ss - SWEA AR 120
B An EERE (IS~ 30) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

21.

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-F A5t -A=t-ALEE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 21.
BANK BALANCES AND LONG-TERM BANK

DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted bank balances

Long-term bank deposits due
within one year

Total cash and bank balances

Re MREEHEY
R BRI TR

—FARRNH 2 RERITFER

BE MIRITHE

sast

As at 31 December 2015, restricted bank balances comprised

the following:

(@  Approximately RMB 1,066.3 million (2014: RMB 400.0
million) were pledged as security for issuing notes

payable of the Group (Note 24);

(o)  Approximately US$ 6.91 million (equivalent to RMB 44.9
million) (2014: US$ 6.05 million (equivalent to RMB 37.0
million)) and RMB 12.6 million (2014: RMB 14.0 million)
were pledged as security for issuing letters of credit of

the Group;

(c) Approximately RMB 649.9 million (2014: RMB 1,174.0
million) were pledged as security for current borrowings

of the Group (Note 26);

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]

RERRSEEY  ZTRHEBITHE

SRk RHBRITER
2015 2014
—E-fF —ZF—JOF
2,337,547 849,063
1,773,697 1,626,978
- 52,000
4,111,244 2,528,041

n=
HilER

(@

T-HF+=A=+—8 ER
BB TS

HAREE10.663 18T (= —M
F: ARBAET)EARAR
SEEENZE (24 ) (B

e EET(HERARE
4,490&70) (ZZE—H4F : 605
SET(HERARKI 7008
L)) MARKE12008TT(=F
—POE : AR¥1,40087T) B
ARAAREEEAEERR

PARBEBA9ETT(=ZZF—M
F: AR T74ET)E AR
SEREEF(MIFTE26) (B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

21.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 21.

BANK BALANCES AND LONG-TERM BANK
DEPOSITS (continued)

(d)  No cash in bank (2014: RMB 2.0 million) were withheld
by and in custody of the courts.

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank balances and long-term bank deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

Long-term bank deposits REBRITIER

RMB AR

Cash and cash equivalents and RERBSEEYUR
restricted bank balances ZIREIRITAEER

RMB AR

uss$ T

HK$ PETT

EURO€ BT

Total Ba&t

RERRSEEY  SRHEBITHE
BRRARTER(E)

O BERGER(ZT-MmE: A

R# : 2008 70) BoEB MR
ReRRESEY  FRHBITER
REMRITERNREELATIE
WREN

2015 2014
—2-HF ZF@0OF
- 52,000

3,538,465 2,010,514

571,274 463,738
1,505 1,740
= 49

4,111,244 2,476,041

4,111,244 2,528,041
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEERAN  MEEEIUARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 22, BARKRMEE
Amount
&8
Number of
shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
REG#E
(TR) LB R EE @t

As at 1 January 2014 and 2015, and R=Z-MER-Z-FTF-A—-0 ' KR

at 31 December 2014 and 2015 “E-MER-E-RFE+-A=1t-H 2,931,425 311,853 2,192,131 2,503,984
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the total number of R-ZE—RHER_ZFT—NE+_H
authorised ordinary shares of the Company is 5,000,000,000 =+—H KARaVEELTBEREH A
shares with a par value of HK$ 0.1 per share. 5,000,000,000 ix A& EIE 0.1 B T2

Ax{5 °
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23. OTHER RESERVES

Balance at 1 January 2014

Profit appropriation
Employee share option scheme

- Value of employee service (Note 33)

Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 15)
Transfer of fair value gains previously

taken to reserve to income statement

upon disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Balance at 31 December 2014

Profit appropriation

Changes in ownership interests
in a subsidiary without change of
control (Note 10 (i)

Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 15)

Transfer of fair value gains previously
credited to reserve to income
statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

Balance at 31 December 2015

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINRARBETTRER)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=t—HILEE

23. HfhfEE
Available-
for-sale
Merger  Capital Statutory financial
reserve  surplus  reserve  Options  assets Total
AHLE
EffffE ERDR iERE  BRE SHEE i
(a) (b) (c)
R=Z-M%E-A- A& (99 6696 1155742 413011 12374 1587224
Yl Rl - - 43644 - - 4364
[EERRETE
-EERBHER(FESR) - - - 6797 - 677
AR ESHERN AL BE
W (FfsE15) - - - - 20708 20,708
R E SR EEN ERBLA
STARENAL BENGEZR
i8R
- - - - (28307 (28307)
RZZ-RE+-A=+-ANER (99 6696 1199386 419748 4775 1,630,006
RHAE - - 16422 - - 16422
EPHEARIENERT
EENBARNAEEER
(FrzE100) - 28649 - - - 28649
MR EEYE (3 15) - - - - 39719 3979
R HESHEERNER
R ARBENALER
SresfEx
- - - - @73 875
RZZ-EE+-A=t-ANER (99 35345 1215808 419748 - 1,670,302
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

23. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(@)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the

difference between the nominal value of the shares of

the subsidiaries that had been acquired and the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange

therefore pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

(i)

(i)

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
of the Group registered in the PRC, before
distributing the net profit of each year, these PRC
subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting any
prior year’s losses as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations to the statutory surplus
reserve fund. When the balance of such reserve
reaches 50% of the share capital, any further
appropriation is optional.

The statutory surplus reserve fund can be utilised
to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, such statutory surplus reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the entity’s share capital after such issuance.

Discretionary reserves

The appropriation of discretionary reserve fund
is proposed by Board of the PRC subsidiaries,
and approved by the shareholder’'s meeting. The
discretionary reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or increase share capital.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_ZT-—RF+-_A=+—HLEE

23. HftufkE (&)

(@)

AR

AEBEWE GHEBIED WEMH
BRrREOOEERREES
RARBBAEEMETHARRRRK
E{ERYEHE

RTEREE

(i)

(i)

EERBREE

RIBFBDER R AR E A
EREEME THEA
RIMABERRAR - BF
oI F i AR - % E
f B A RIRET B &%
AR EEHEEFNER
& ABRHEFEAT ¥
HE10% 25 TE B ERFEE
B HEEAWEERH
PRAH)50% A 1E - ATEE
BENEE TR -

EEBRERESAIRE
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B o SR - RXORTE BERIH
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

&
!

23. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 23. HitifEE (&)
(©)  Employee share option scheme ) (EEREREE
As approved by the Company’s Board meeting, certain REANREER@HIER
share options were granted to selected directors TH &R ENEEREBCE
and employees as follows. The Group has no legal BYAETHERKE - AEBTE
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the LATR & B8 [0l ok 45 B BB AR I R &
options in cash. ERHEEEE
Number
of share
options in an Exercises Exercisable
Date of grant aggregate price period
®¥H BREAAE THEE AT
HK$/share
BRET
24 February 2009 —EENF_A-1+WAH 21,200,000 1.39 Note 1
Bt 1
11 May 2009 “TTNFRAT—H 6,600,000 1.50 Note 1
BiEE 1
29 December 2009 —EENF+=-RA=thH 148,780,000 2.84 Note 1
P&t 1
26 November 2010 —E—EFt+—A=-1+xH 6,000,000 3.00 Note 1
Bt 1
24 December 2010 —E-FF+—A-+H 47,100,000 3.182 Note 1
BiFEE 1
14 January 2011 —Z——F—A+WmA 800,000 3.20 Note 1
P&t 1
28 March 2011 —Z—F=ZA=+/\H 9,800,000 3.08 Note 1
BE 1
30 March 2012 —E——_H=FA=+H 75,370,000 2.03 Note 1
BiEE 1
30 March 2012 —E——_F=FA=+1H 9,800,000 2.03 Note 1
P&t 1

Note 1: The share options are exercisable in different
periods from February 2009 to December 2020,
and with different vesting requirements.

Hrit1: REBBEENR_ZTNF_A=E

—ECRE+ - ATRAEAR
FATEE - (THEERER -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

23. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 23. HttifEE (&)

(¢)  Employee share option scheme (continued) € IEERERETS(E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding HE-_ZT—RFEER-_ZFT—NF
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and +ZA=+—HILFEAN ' &
their related weighted average exercise prices were as AITENBERESE NEEE
follows: IEFHEITEENE ST

2015 2014
—B-HfF —ZT-mEF
Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price per of options price per of options
share in HK$ (thousands) sharein HK$ (thousands)
BREMH FRRAR N EY

FHTEE BREHE FHOTRE BREHE
(&) (F4) (E7T) (F13)

At 1 January w—A—H 2.59 293,020 2.59 298,620
Lapsed 2R3 2.59 (50,350) 2.59 (5,600)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 2.59 242,670 2.59 293,020
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

23. OTHER RESERVES (continued) 23. HitifEE (&)
(c)  Employee share option scheme (continued) ) (EEERESIE)
Share options outstanding at 31 December 2015 and RZE—HRAFR_ZT—NNF
2014 have the expiry dates and exercise prices as T A=+ —HHERTENE
follows: ARy fEm B B R A TE BT ¢

Number of options

Exercise price (thousands)
TEE BREHE (T4)

Expiry date HKS$ per share 2015 2014
= SREBT —E-HF —E= e
23 February 2019 —E-AF-A=+=H 1.39 13,900 16,500
10 May 2019 —E-NFRATH 1.50 - 2,000
28 December 2019 —E-hAF+=-A=+/N\H 2.84 116,650 141,650
16 May 2016 —E—RFERA+H 3.00 6,000 6,000
19 December 2020 —E_FEF+_F+AH 3.182 28,700 38,100
13 January 2021 —E-—4%—H+=H 3.20 - 800
27 March 2021 — - —®=A—-++H 3.08 9,800 9,800
19 December 2020 —E-FEF+=-H+AH 2.03 57,820 68,370
19 December 2020 —E-FF+ A+ H 2.03 9,800 9,800

242,670 293,020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24.
Account payables FERTBRFR
Notes payable RS

As at 31 December 2015, all notes payable represented bank
acceptance notes, of which RMB 575 million (2014: RMB 5
million) were secured by certain notes receivable (Note 17),
RMB 2,312 million (2014: RMB 628 million) were secured
by certain restricted bank balances (Note 21), and RMB
102 million (2014: RMB 169 million) were secured by certain
inventories (Note 16) and certain restricted bank balances
(Note 21).

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAR
4-6 months AZE6MEA
7-9 months 7E9EA
10-12 months 102 121@ A
Over 1 year —FLA L
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FEAY B 2 BRX

2015 2014
—E-FF —ZE—HF

2,651,537 1,916,982
2,989,493 802,271

5,641,030 2,719,253

R-Z—RF+-_A=+—08 Ak
NEBHAIRITRRIES - ERaFEA
RES7518T(ZF—4 - ARKS500
&) B TRIREE(MisE17) (EK
- ARK2312(Em(ZE—lF - A
R¥6.28187T) LB TXRAIRITAEH
(FisE21) IEER R AR 1.02(87T (=
T—F : ARKE1.691BTL) AETTF
B (FizE16) kAT XR IR 745 (P
FE21) IR o

RZE—RAFR_ZFT—NF+_A
=+—HB ' ENEZEFNERE DT
—F :

2015 2014
—E-HF —= e
3,319,454 1,877,319
1,921,146 480,793
125,444 90,585
48,059 55,223
226,927 215,333

5,641,030 2,719,253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz ‘

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HLFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 24. ENEBZERR(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are REERNESRFNEEEI AT
denominated in the following currencies: 5| EHE ARG
2015 2014

—E-RF —EF—UF

RMB AR 5,588,227 2,426,189
uss$ ETT 52,803 293,064

5,641,030 2,719,253

25. ACCRUALS, ADVANCES AND OTHER CURRENT 25, ERER  ARFERAEMREBE
LIABILITIES &
2015 2014
—E-RF —Z= e
Advances from customers TR R = FRIE 1,665,095 1,210,312
Payables for purchase of property, BEVHE  BEX
plant and equipment RAEH N BRIR 488,828 207,652
Deposits from customers BREE 126,203 151,042
Value-added tax payable and FERHIEER R B Atb
other taxes payables FER TR 40,364 195,437
Accrual of interest expense TEIRFEER 37,572 135,913
Salary, pension and other social EHE « BRE R
welfare payables Hibrt =@ F| 118,062 130,672
Provisions for legal claims (a) EERERE @) 20,000 81,278
Accrual for iron ore importing expenses TEIREE O E OB A 51,404 54,941
Employee deposits EEZE 29,435 31,511
Others Hifh 269,206 267,749

2,846,169 2,466,507

(@) As at 31 December 2014, certain third party customers @ RZE—mE+_A=+—
filed lawsuits against the Group, alleging that the H  ETE=ZAFFPHAE
subsidiaries of the Group has breached certain terms ERHFR  ERAKBENE
of sale and purchase agreement, after taking into ARAIEREBEMENSG T K
consideration the appropriate legal advice, provisions Mo REEBBEEERERE
of RMB 81 million has been provided at 31 December RZZE—WFE+=RA=+—8H
2014, of which RMB 61 million had been reversed in B {EH AR ¥8,100 & T /) #
2015 according to the final court judgements. & Eh AREB,100BTLER

ZE - AFRBEREER AR
B o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RFT-A=T—BLEE

26. BORROWINGS 26.

Non-current IERED
Bank borrowings (a) IRITIER ()
Secured AHEA
Senior Notes (b) BRI (b)
Current RED
Bank borrowings (a) RITIER ()
Secured B
Unsecured AR

Other borrowings, unsecured (c)
Senior Notes (b)

HABfEFR - EEH ()
BITRE (o)

Total borrowings R

(@  The secured bank borrowings as at 31 December 2015
totalling RMB 1,540 million (2014: RMB 2,124 million)
were secured by certain restricted bank balances (Note
21), notes receivable (Note 17) and properties under
development (Note 14) of the Group and guaranteed by
a subsidiary of the Group.

204 China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 Bl B A FR A 7]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

2015 2014
—E-FF —EF—UF
24,000 246,000
719,891 1,264,519
743,891 1,510,519
1,515,654 1,877,524
1,077,830 1,723,758
2,593,484 3,601,282
65,000 65,000
= 2,992,470
2,658,484 6,658,752
3,402,375 8,169,271

RZTE—RAF+ZA=+—
H  ERRTERERARE
154 BT (ZE—MF : AR
2124 BT0) L AEEE T 2R
HlER1TAE B (BIRE21) « BIREE
B (FIeE17) REBEEH D E (KT
14) 1B - RASE—HHE
AR EER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR R

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

26. BORROWINGS (continued)

(b)

On 18 August 2010, the Group issued US$ 550 million
senior notes (the “2015 Senior Notes”), which bears
interest at 8% per annum and payable semi-annually,
to finance its potential acquisitions and investments,
capital expenditure projects and working capital
requirements. The principal amount and interest of the
then outstanding 2015 Senior Notes was wholly repaid
on 18 August 2015.

On 17 November 2010, the Group issued US$ 300
million senior notes (the “2017 Senior Notes”), which
bears interest at 7% per annum and payable semi-
annually, to refinance its outstanding short-term
debts. The principal of the 2017 Senior Notes is wholly
repayable on 17 November 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
repurchased US$ 160 million of the 2015 Senior Notes
and US$ 97 million of the 2017 Senior Notes, resulted a
gain of approximately RMB 106 million (Note 30).

For the period from November 2012 to December 2015,
the Group had repurchased a total of principal amount of
US$ 220 million and US$ 189 million of the 2015 Senior
Notes and the 2017 Senior Notes, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Han
Jingyuan (“Mr. Han”), the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, bought US$ 8 million and sold
US$ 19 million Senior Notes.

BE-_Z-—R&E+-A=1—RBItFE

26. fEF (&)

(b)

RZZE—ZFN\ATN\B - K&
B 175508 ETHEERE
((ZZ—1FEBEEE] I
FMEBRFTEREGFFHELE
B DWEBHEBEWEREE
BAYHBEREEESHRRK
AEB T —AFELEEHARN
ERAMEER=ZZE—HFENA
+N\BZEEER

e AR
7 5% B % 173.0018 % 72 0
SRE(-T—LTEAE
1) LAERIE 7% B RS

FEiEAEE UEBEEM N
5'{1@}&#]%4&@{5%&0 *:=it
FREZBNAGEAR T

—tFt+—A+LtBEE2HER -

RBEE-_ZT—HRF+_A
=+—BHIEFER  ~EEE
E16BET_E—AFELE
BERO7T00BETL-_T—LFE
FERE BEBOARK1.06E
ToHIMER (FTEE30) °

—F—f+—RAEZ-F-A
FTZAHK - AKEE S5
%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁzmiin&
18EXT T —AFEER
%&_iftiﬁ%ﬁﬁo

REE-ZT—AF+-A=+—
HIEFERN  NAREERERE
REENITERAUR A ([FRE
& DEEE800E Xt k51,900
BETMHELRE -
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‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

' (Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

26. BORROWINGS (continued)

() The other unsecured borrowings of RMB 65 million
(2014: RMB 65 million) represented a borrowing
from a local county government without fixed term of
repayment. Interest is charged at the RMB bank deposit
rate for one year fixed deposit.

(d) As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s
borrowings were repayable as follows:

26. &

()

Bank borrowings

(%)

H b SR E KA R 6,600 8
T(ZF—mMF : AR¥6,500
BT BEMERFRMHANE
R ZEBREEEEED-
MEBFRXIRBITARE —FH
R RGTE o

RZE— ﬂi&:; /g
+-A=+—8 AEBEHE
%ﬁ%%@mT

Other borrowings
and Senior Notes

RITE HiifER R EERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —TWF ZE-—HF —TNUF
Within 1 year 1FR 2,593,484 3,601,282 65,000 3,057,470
Between 1 and 2 years 1 & 24 24,000 100,000 719,891 -
Between 2 and 5 years 2 & 54 - 146,000 - 1,264,519

2,617,484

3,847,282 784,891 4,321,989

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
were as follows:

2015
—E-1E
RMB
AR¥
Bank borrowings SRITIE 5.09%-7.69%
Other borrowings A 3.60%
Senior Notes BERE -

The carrying amounts of current borrowings
approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet
date as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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us$
ES

1.41%-3.81%

7.00%

REFEBRNERMEMT

2014
e Sk
RMB US$
AR e

4.00%-7.69% 1.05%-4.30%
3.60% =
= 7.00%-8.00%

HRTBEZEIK - RBEK
REEENRAEIUERAR
BfE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERANARE T T REN)

(BRA BB -

26. BORROWINGS (continued)
(d)

(continued)

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

26. fBFK (&)

d (&)

FERBRITEAREBERED

bank borrowings and Senior Notes are as follows: FREERAABENET :

Carrying amount Fair value

RREE NREE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-1F —FT-MF =T-IHF —T0OF
Bank borrowings RITENK 24,000 246,000 23,085 243,841
Senior Notes BEEE 719,891 4,256,989 692,389 4,110,393
743,891 4,502,989 716,374 4,354,234

The fair values of non-current bank borrowings are
based on discounted cash flow approach using the
prevailing market rates of interest available to the Group
for financial institution with substantially the same terms
and characteristics at the respective balance sheet
dates. The fair values of Senior Notes are based on
quoted market price.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the
borrowings amounting to RMB 1,799 million (2014: RMB
7,631 million) and RMB 1,603 million (2014: RMB 538 million)
were denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to interest-rate

changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

6fEAR
6= 121EA

6 months or less
6-12 months

FHERBIRITERH AR EEE
RAKER S EE B GRR5E
BREBHARNSBEBENIRT
MEMERZRR S REEXZFTRE
B BLEBENAABERE
MmHREFIER o

R-ZE-—RE+-A=+—08 " EHE
BEAARE17.99EITL(ZE—W4EF :
AR 76.31187L) R AR 16.0318
T(ZZE—MF : AR5.38187m) 8
BRI BIAETRARKEE

REBIRTTHE FASER EEE R K

BRENEERBRAT -
2015 2014
—E-HF — T4
2,181,203 2,511,147
436,281 1,336,135
2,617,484 3,847,282
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‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

27. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES 27. HitREFESERRR

2015 2014
—E-FF —ZE—HF

Non-current IEF B
Finance lease obligations (i) Rl FE & AE () 1,155,214 —
Other payable Hib e 26,129 26,129
1,181,343 26,129
Current wE
Finance lease obligations (i) BB EAE () 48,441 -
Total other long-term payables HitEHAE R 1,229,784 26,129
() InNovember 2015, the Group entered into certain asset ) RZZTE—RFE+—H K&
sale and leaseback agreements (the “Sale and Lease e mgiETy T EE
Agreement”) with one financial institution. The sales ExBARZ((ERERER
proceeds of the relevant property, plant and equipment =)o LEMBEYE  BMER
were RMB 1,200 million with a notional disposal loss of NEMEHEAARKI2(E
RMB 10 million which was amortised over the lease term T HEBEAARKE1,0008
of 36 months. The Group was entitled to purchase the TR TR S HIS6 {8 B Y o A&
related asset at a cost of RMB 3 at the end of the lease. BN SR AREUARE 3T
MR A FE B AR RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

¢

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

’' 3
v

27. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES (continued) 27. HttRHIEMERR(E)
(i) Asat 31 December 2015, total minimum lease payments iy RZE—RF+_A=+—

under the finance lease based on the PBOC interest rate

B RPBEARRITREEHR

as at the balance sheet date and their present values MEFEZHERE 2 KM

were as follows:

ENFEERERENT

Present Interest
value of expenses Total
minimum relating to minimum
lease future lease
payments periods payments
BEAENR FERRBEZ REHEE
ZBE NEEH NRBE
Within 1 year 1R 48,441 75,549 123,990
Between 1 and 5 years 1Z&5%4F 1,155,214 137,208 1,292,422
1,203,655 212,757 1,416,412

The range of effective interest rates of the finance lease

AEERERERENBERFXNF
obligations of the Group is 6.21% to 6.39% per annum. FEB.21% £ 6.39% ©

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the finance R-—FE—FEF+—_HA=+—H " @&
BHEAEZAARBEHARARY
1266187 - AR BEINERA=FH
MIGEBEFNEGF475% KR RE
TEITIRERIR o

lease obligations approximated RMB 1,256 million. The
fair values were based on discounted cash flow using
three-year borrowing market rates of 4.75% per annum.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEEFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED REVENUE 28. EZEWA

Deferred government grant

IEE BN B
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—ME—H—H 57,674
Addition INE 8,772
Credited to the consolidated REHFIERAZER
income statement (7,162)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+=-_A=+—H 59,284
Addition NS 44,403
Credited to the consolidated REMHFER ALK
income statement (17,370)
At 31 December 2015 N-_E—hF+=-_HA=1+—H 86,317
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29.

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

29.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there

is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to income taxed levied by the same taxation authority on either

the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is

an interaction to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset

amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered
after more than 12 months
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered
within 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities:
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
after more than 12 months
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
within 12 months

Deferred tax assets — net

EETRREE -
— R 12 E A &Y E
HYIRIER TR E B
— R 12 @A AYE
HEIETR TR E B

RIERIEBE ¢
— R 12 @ A% EH
BRI IS &
— R 12E B "X
HEEET A &

EETREE — 55

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:

At 1 January
Credited to the consolidated
income statement (Note 35)

At 31 December

n—A—8
REHFER
SCBR (FffzE35)

R+—A=+—H

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

EEFTE

EERRBHAEERRSRARAR
EHZ BIRBBINITHE - UREIRT
PSR SR — B AR & ERIRE
BRTRAERNERBBZAEHRE
B - A Ry m R R A AR
A - REASEHREERAGSSE
i o MIHE LT

2015 2014
—Z2-EHF —T—mF
348,392 277,336
83,038 115,162
431,430 392,498
(48,737) (45,113)
(4,744) (56,147)
(53,481) (50,260)
377,949 342,238
EEFTISTRAR B AT
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z=—mE
342,238 285,894
35,711 56,344
377,949 342,238
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEEFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 29. EFEFTIER (&)
Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under BERIEFAAEEINEREERE
the liability method using the tax rate and the tax base that is HEE—_ET—RF+-_A=1+—HIt
consistent with the expected manner of recovery or settlement FETEEAU O A E 7T — BRI =R
for the year ended 31 December 2015. RFETHE o
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FRNELEFREREERBECRAR
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting AFER— AR A S ) By &
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows: AR :
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTSTREE ¢
Impairment
Temporary provision
difference arising  of assets and
Tax  from expense provision of Unrealised
losses recognition legal claims gains Total
ERRAN EENEBRER HAZR
HEES ERHER  LEZERG )¢ h
At1 January 2014 R=Z-mE-A-A 1,586 94,782 189,042 49,872 335,282
(Cherged)/Credited to the consolidated  RABHRIER (%) /2%
income statement 22,886 (29,248) 36,59 26,983 57,216
At 31 December 2014 RZF-mET-A=1-H 24,472 65,534 205,637 76,855 392,498
(Cherged)/Credited to the consolidated  RABHRIER (%) /2%
income statement 220579 4,382 (206,955) 20,926 38,932
At 31 December 2015 RZF-RE+-A=1-H 245,051 69,916 18,682 97,781 431,430
The Directors are of opinion that accumulated tax losses of EERE —AF+=H
RMB 291 million as at 31 December 2015 (31 December =+—H /\Eﬁsz.m 1%71(:%-@
2014: RMB 471 million) were unlikely to be utilised before the F+ZA=+—8: ARB4T1E
losses expired, therefore no deferred income tax assets were 7T ) B R 511 18 B 18 5 B 18 iE W Bl A
recognised in this regard. 7127(7“?)32@?@ - A - WER IR

RELEPSHEE °
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

20, RIEFTIEH (&)

EEFSHARE

Fair value Capitalised

gains interest Total

MREENE BER{HE A3t

At 1 January 2014 R-E—mF—A—H (6,083) (43,305) (49,388)
Credit/(Charged) to the REHRERDER /(M)

consolidated income statement 358 (1,230) 872)

At 31 December 2014 RZE—NFE+-A=+—H (5,725) (44,535) (50,260
Credit/(Charged) to the REHRERDER /(M)

consolidated income statement 358 (3,579 (3,221)

At 31 December 2015 RZZE-AF+-A=1—H (5,367) (48,114) (53,481)

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB 324 million (2014: RMB
445 million) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries in PRC amounting to RMB
3,243 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB 4,442
million). The Directors are of the view that the Group will not
distribute the unremitted earnings in the foreseeable future.

R-E—RE+=-—A=+—8 " I&E
AP EETFHBERAARE32.431E
TL(ZE—WF : AR 44.42187T

B o BB {5 Ui 25 A FE AR TR AN I E At
HEERARE324ET(ZE—N
F: ARBEA445ETT) NELEMEH
BB - EFRE  AEEKTERA
R IR AR FE AT Mz o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

¢

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

214

(BREEEBN FTELEIUARBTLAREN) BE-T—AFT_A=T—HILEE
30. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET 30. Hfth(&18) W& — B
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E—MmEF
Government grants BT e Bh 106,622 91,826
Gain on repurchase of Senior BEEEEE W
Notes (Note 26) (MI7£26) 105,677 2,096
Reversal/(Provision) for legal SRERERRB,(BE)
claims (Note 25) (FfizE25) 61,278 (7,746)
Gain on disposal of mining rights S BRI 2 W e 10,150 =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHREESHEE 2 s
financial assets (Note 15) (F45E15) 8,754 28,307
Investment income from financial assets BAREE =B EEEHET
at fair value through profit or loss ABRRZEREE
(Note 20) ZIEBEWA (FIFE20) 1,195 -
Gains/(Losses) on disposal of property, LEDZE - BEREZEZ
plant and equipment (Notes 7, 40) Wezs,/ (518 (BHEE7 ~ 40) 563 (2,396)
(Losses)/Gains of raw materials R EREIER(B18) W
and by-products (260) 18,235
Other foreign exchange losses — net E b€ 5 ESE — 558
(Note 36) (MI7E36) (68,718) (2,623)
Impairment of property, plant and Y2 - RE REERE
equipment (Note 7) (Mtzx7) (521,019) (89,944)
Others, net Hfth - JFEE (3,288) (657)
Total other (losses)/gains — net HAh (E5i8) /W B 5 A st (299,046) 37,098
31. OTHER INCOME 31. Hflg A
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E—MmEF
Investment income from available-for-sale ~ AJ{EHE SRS E I E A
financial assets (Note 15) (KtzE15) 9,981 -
Income from other operating leases HaflE 2 A 9,838 22,250
Rental income from investment wEMZE 2 HEIA
properties (Note 8) (PfFZES) 2,616 1,797
Others HAh 120 2,305
Total =i 22,555 26,352
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

32. EXPENSES BY NATURE 32. EMEEINEX
2015 2014
—B-AfF —T—MF
Employee benefit expense (Note 33) & E AR (fEE33) 870,882 918,266
Changes in inventories of finished SR M N ER RN TFEEE S
goods and work in progress (245,669) (173,160)
Raw materials used Fir R IR~ 4t 17,463,429 23,742,745
Cost of properties sold SHEMEM A 408,323 188,114
Utilities BER 1,083,028 1,358,787
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WEMRETS
equipment (Note 7) (P E7) 1,083,798 1,090,556
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) & E# 45 (F13E9) 10,240 108
Amortisation of leasehold land and land FHE 1 3h N+ b PR A 8
use rights (Note 6) (fI7E6) 3,578 3,485
Depreciation of investment TEMFENE (FE8)
properties (Note 8) 441 441
Operating lease expenses in respect AR ERRENRE
of land use rights HEZER 2,592 3,704
Provision for impairment of trade FEWE 5 BR FURE 2 S
receivables (Note 17) (BI7E17) 4,186 3,726
Impairment provision of prepayments, TENFRIE ~ e REAMEIR
deposits and other receivables (Note 18) BRI 2R E R (FE18) 29,273 15,500
Impairment provision of loan receivables JEWE R 2R E# - 15,732
Provision for write-down of inventories FEEEMRZ IR
to net realisable value (Note 16) FE 2 Bt (fisE16) 105,373 60,306
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREN N &
— Audit services — 2R 4,131 5,400
— Non-audit services — e B RS 142 140
Rental fee o' 177,993 144,695
Others Hb 255,354 317,808
Total A&f 21,257,094 27,696,353
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

St

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

aff costs (including directors’ EERA (BIEESHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries and welfare — e kER

— Pension costs — defined
contribution plans (a)

— Share options granted to
directors, eligible persons
and employees (Note 23)

BE-F Rt -A=t-ALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

33. EEEAMAX

—RIRERA — E R

#tEl(a)

—-RTE=Z aBERBAL

K fe BRE g
(FaE23)

2015
—E-RF T

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group that
are incorporated in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organised by the
relevant provincial government. For the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group is required to
make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates from 10% to 20%, with the base of their total salary
subject to a certain ceiling.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees or retirees other than the payments disclosed
in the above note.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [F 42 B A FR 2 7]

704,584 739,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz ‘

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 33. EEEAMAX(E)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals () ABE=FMMALT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest AREEAREBE AN ZSHHA
in the Group for the year include four (2014: four) +TEFNA(ZE—O4E : [
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis N)EE EMESE R E46
of Note 46. The emoluments of the remaining one (2014: AR E25 o REER - X
one) highest paid individual for the year are as follows: NFEH—(L(ZZT—0F : —

i) &EEFALTHMESIT

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—gF

Salaries and allowances e KER 850 1,193
Fair value of employee share B R R
options granted WAR(BE = 97
850 1,290
The remuneration fell within the following bands: B F AT EE -

Number of individuals

A
2015 2014
—Z-%f R
RMB 500,000 to RMB 1,000,000 (approximately AR®500,0007c2 AR 1,000,000
HK$ 614,760 to HK$ 1,229,521) (#1614,760 /8L 5 1,229,521 BT 1 -
RMB 1,000,001 to RMB 3,000,000 (approximately — AR#1,000,001 72 A R4 3,000,0007C
HKS 1,229,522 to HK$ 3,688,562) (#71,229,522 L% 3,688,562 57T = 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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¢

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

v
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34. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 34, BMBWBAREAE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—mE

Interest expenses FESEH

— borrowings —f&5K (389,622) (460,211)

— amounts due to related parties — [ RARS 7 0B (5,447) (21,671)

— discounting interest —BEER A8 (25,332) (606)

— finance lease liabilities —-BERERE (3,655) -
Net foreign exchange losses on fE N HINE HF B

borrowings (Note 36) (Pf=E£36) (199,631) (18,022)
Finance costs B TSR AN (623,687) (600,410)
Less: amounts capitalised as qualifying assets i : @ BREEER L% 79,722 77,515
Total finance costs (Note 40) B AR A 4258 (P 5 40) (543,965) (422,895)
Interest income FEUA

— bank deposits —RITTE 48,446 34,944

— trade receivables —FEIE SR 23,667 27,821

— prepayments, deposits and —BNFIE - Ze Rk

other receivables H Al I BR 5K 28,630 17,341

— amounts due from related parties — PR R 5 FUR - 13,893

— loan receivables —EWER 21,386 44,537
Total finance income (Note 40) B IS A 4258 (FF5E 40) 122,129 138,536
Finance costs — net BRI R AR — 558 (421,836) (284,359)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

35. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 35. FiiSBiEH

2015 2014
—E-RF —EF—UF

Current income tax EHMBH
— PRC enterprise income tax (the “EIT”) — R ETEH

(TeEmEH]) 82,060 234,944

Deferred income tax (Note 29) EIEFTIS R (FYFE29) (35,711) (56,344)
46,349 178,600

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted RRARBEBEAERE—NN\—FRaE
company with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 FEREIMRLAEREEREE
of Bermuda and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of NE] - BERREN BREST
Bermuda income tax.
The subsidiaries directly held by the Company were AAREEFANNEQRBREBRER
incorporated in BVI with limited liability under the International PEERBNEF 291 EEEB MR R E
Business Companies Act Chapter 291 and, accordingly, are Sk ABEREMEAT - BER
exempted from payment of BVI income tax. RN RBHERRESFTEN
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided since the AREESARHIEEERE RE8
Company and the subsidiaries traded or incorporated in HETE S GEMAR S AR B KK B
Hong Kong do not have assessable taxable profits during the NaREE-_ZT—RF+_-_A=1+—
year ended 31 December 2015 after utilising accumulated HIEFEWEERTIE - hi8s
tax losses (2014: nil). The Directors are of opinion that the SRBEAMNEH (2T —WNE - &) -
accumulated tax losses of the Company and the subsidiaries EERA  ARFAIRHWEBRRINARRER
are unlikely to be utilised in the future. No deferred tax assets FARHIABEZARETK « i
were recognised. W EFEREIET B EE ©
China Oriental Singapore has been awarded the “Global FERFHMEEESE S ——F
Trader Programme” status for 2 years 9 months with effect MA—BHRESHNREZNEARR
from 1 April 2011 and continued to be awarded from 1 January [IREKE 5518l ] i - WEEESS
2014 for 5 years. Income from qualifying transactions will —E-NFE—A—HRBREKEF R
be taxed at the concessionary corporate tax rate of 10%, ¥ R B BR 5 6T D3R 2 B b0 B B 4
subject to China Oriental Singapore meeting certain terms XEEBE LA RN E T 5
and conditions as stated in the letter issued by International RRNEH - GEBHR S 2 WA R
Enterprise Singapore. BRI SRR 10% HFR ©
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

P ERIGUARE T ITREA)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

No profits tax has been provided for XTAL in United States
since it did not have assessable profits during the year.

The PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory profit of
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the
PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments on certain
income and expense items which are not assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes. The EIT rate applicable to
the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC is 25% (2014: 25%).

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average applicable tax rate of 29.58% (2014: 41.26%) to
respective profits of the consolidated entities for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 as follows:

(Loss)/Profit before taxation

Taxation calculated at statutory tax rate

Tax losses for which no deferred income
tax asset was recognised

Effect of change in the tax rate

Write-off of deferred income tax asset
recognised in prior year

Withholding tax of interest
income

Effect of non-taxable income

Effect of non-deductible expenses

BrBiAn (B1R), s A

35.

BEEMREFTEANTIA

RERBRLEMSHEE

HOBER A
BESBHYE

M BEFEER BT

PISIHEE
RIORBFEHA

Z PSR
BERBRWAZZE
TR E R E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RFT-A=T—BLEE

FRiSBiER (&)
HAXTALRF R EERTAE - 8§

WRBFTIERBFAEH -

B E TSR T ERE R B A
MR A RAEAE RF - RIEPEH
M AR RGN - RARETTER
Rt sk A AT HIR P15 B B U A % B 2 18
B#EE - mANEP MR A
MEARKMSEMERHREA25%
ZE—JUF : 25%) o

AEBBRBAIRNOHIBEREE=Z
—hAFERZT—NE+ZA=+—
HIEFEEHERNEFNELRS N
TEF R R2058% (= F — U4 :
41.26%) ST E R IERAENEZ D 5
U

2015 2014
—E-fF —ZF—F
(889,668) 245,080
(263,305) 101,116
125,369 60,353
- 615)
186,946 =
6,987 5,321
(29,303) (11,547)
19,655 23,972
46,349 178,600
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

¢

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

36. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES 36. ENEIEFHE

The exchange differences credited in the consolidated income RAGHERE R N EEEE 2 B 5 = B 55

statement included the followings: T
2015 2014
—EB-HF —Z=—mEF
Other losses — net (Note 30) H b &8 — 558 (52 380) (68,718) (2,623)
Finance costs — net (Note 34) RS R AS — 58 (f95E34) (199,631) (18,022)
(268,349) (20,645)
37. LOSSES FROM DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 37 fTEEmIAEZER
INSTRUMENTS
2015 2014
—Z—RF —T—mF
Investment gain from foreign INESIRBRE K 2
currency forward contracts (a) B WS @) 4,292 =
Investment losses from iron ore HEARESREL 2
swap contracts (b) B EE (b) (215) (330,186)
Investment losses from rebar REEHEEA 2
future contracts (c) REEBE () (9,117) (2,970)
Total BFr (5,040) (333,156)

(@)

As at 31 December 2015, realised gains amounted to
RMB 1.0 million and unrealised gains amounted to RMB
3.3 million were derived from foreign currency forward
contracts. A derivative financial asset of RMB 3.3 million
was recognised on balance sheet as at 31 December
2015 accordingly.

As at 31 December 2015, realised losses amounted to
RMB 6.8 million (2014: realised losses of RMB 330.2
million) and unrealised gains amounted to RMB 6.6
million were derived from iron ore swap contracts.
A derivative financial asset of RMB 6.6 million was
recognised on balance sheet as at 31 December 2015
accordingly.

RZZE—RFE+ZA=+—
HNERHIEHNEEARE
1008 T E R m kA RE
330 BLARMERME « At - B
—T—RF+ZA=+—8"
AREIROETHNITEEREE
REEBERTER -

R-FB-—RF+-_HA=+—
B #BEAEHEHEEAR
Bes0BE TEEREE(—-F
—mF - AR 3.302BTEHE
REE) kAR 660 & T AME
B HK RZF—HF
TZA=+—H ' AR¥660&%
THTEERMEENEEAR
RAPHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

37.

38.

LOSSES FROM DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) As at 31 December 2015, realised losses amounted to
RMB 5.8 million (2014: realised gains of RMB 1.7 million),
unrealised losses amounted to RMB 3.3 million (2014:
unrealised losses of RMB 4.7 million) were derived from
rebar future contracts. A derivative financial asset of
RMB 0.3 million and a derivative financial liability of RMB
3.6 million were recognised on balance sheet as at 31
December 2015 accordingly.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of
the Company (E18), &5l
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands) (FR%)
Basic (losses)/earnings per share

(RMB per share)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [F 42 B A FR 2 7]
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38.

AArESR A BRI

SRER(ER), W
(BRAR%TT)

TTEEMTIAZEE(#)

© RZEBE—RFE+-_A=F+—H"
BAGHHE & HELE AR 580
ErEREREBE(ZE—NEF
AREAT0B LB R ) &
ARBI0ETAEREER(Z
T—OF : ARBATOBETTARE
REE) - At R=F—RF
+=—A=+—H ' AR¥30&TT
MITESBEERARKE 3608
THTESMBEREEARR
HRRER ©

R WS

BN
BRERNRETIRBEAR B EDH
EREG MR AFARHTTE BB
I BMATHE -

2015
—E-RF —ZE—F

EHTE BRI

(766,503) 66,715
2,931,425 2,931,425
(0.26) 0.02

MiE

R ERSTIERRE A B
BEL BB LIREK - BBRHERE
TEBROIEFIREBTE - AR
AEA—BARENECE RN - B
Pt - SLEBRRIEM S - ARBERITEE
BRAEMMMRBEENERER &
EEAABEEERANRRRDH
FHEEME) ABANKRODEAE -
R LT A BB BB TR RR
BRETEMES RITHRMEE 1F
HEEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt #& 8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN  MESEANRARET TR

38. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 38.

Diluted (continued)

(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of NARERFFEEEN
the Company (E18),/ &7

Weighted average number of ordinary AR EFRER KD
shares in issue used in calculating BRI TE B INET I
basic earnings per share (thousands) (Fh%)

Weighted average number of ordinary SrESRmENRRES
shares and potential ordinary shares DEBEEITEER
issued as the denominator in calculating KB TE L B IIRE &
diluted earnings per share (thousands) (Fr)

Diluted (losses)/earnings per share TRmRE (B8R), W
(RMB per share) (BIRARETT)

39.

The diluted earnings per shares is the same as the basic
earnings per shares since the employee share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 would have an
anti-dilutive effect on the earnings per share.

DIVIDENDS 39.
At a meeting held on 31 March 2016, the Board did not

recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: nil).

BI) BE-_T-AFt_A=t—RILFE

RS (E)
WiE ()
2015 2014
—E-RF —EF—UF
(766,503) 66,715

2,931,425 2,931,425

2,931,425 2,931,425

(0.26) 0.02

AR—ZE—hFR-_FT—WNF+_A
=tT—BRRIEZEEBERELS
REFSBEEENTE  HERHE
BFAGRERRFEE -

’RE
RZBE-—RF=ZA=+T—HETHNE
&L BEERTEINBE—T T

F+-A=t+—BILFERMNEMRKR
RS (ZE—mEFE:T) o

Annual Report 2015 —F—AAE4EH

223



‘ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 & R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(BRBEEAN  FEEFEINARBTLREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40. EEELENESE
(@)  Recondiliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to cash @ BRETEHAI(ER) wHEg
generated from operations is as follows: BEANRSMNFALHRAT :
2015 2014
~%-1f “E-mF
(Loss)/Profit before income tax WenERiA (Bi8) /&R (889,668) 245,080
Adjustments for: e
Amortisation of leasehold land and land RETHRIIFRESS
use rights (Notes 6, 32) (K6 32) 3,578 3,485
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % BERRENE
Depreciation of investment properties (Notes 8, 32) REAMERE (8- 32) 441 441
Amortisation of intangiole assets (Notes 9, 32) B AERSE(F9 - 32) 10,240 108
(Gains)/losses on disposal for property, plant and LEVE  BREREEZ
equipment (Note 30) (&) /i8 (FzE0) (563) 2,336
Impairment of property, plant and equipment % BEREZERE
(Notes 7, 30) (RzE7 ~ 30) 521,019 89,944
Provision for write-down of inventories to net FREBHAZEIERFHE
realisable value (Notes 16, 32) (316 32) 105,373 60,306
Provision for impaiment of trale receivables e E SR B Bt
(Notes 17, 32) (K17 32) 4,186 3,726
Impairment provision of prepayments, deposits and BNHE - REREAMERERS .
other receivables (Notes 18, 32) HERE (318 - 32) 29273 15,500
Impairment provision of loan receivables (Note 32) e e 2 miERE (FiEs2) - 15,732
Share of loss of an associate i —EHEAABE 745 -
Gain on disposal of mining rights HEFRIE Y (10,150) -
Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale financial HETHHESREE G
assets (Note 30) (FizE30) (8,754) (28,307)
Investment loss from derivative financial ESBIEZREER (F37)
instruments (Note 37) 5,040 333,156
Investment income from available-for-sale S SBEE JRERA (FizE1)
financial assets (Note 31) (9,981) -
Investment income from financial assets at fair value BRAEEEAEETHABRR EHEE
through profit or loss (Note 30) LB (FrzE0) (1,195) -
Other foreign exchange losses (Notes 30, 36) HfulE 5 B (30 - 36) 68,718 2,623
Finance income (Note 34) FIRUA (Hi7E34) (122,129) (138,536)
Finance costs (Note 34) ARk (HizE34) 543,965 422,8%
Share-based payment (Notes 23, 33) Bl i (Fir7E23 + 83) = 6,737
Gain on repurchase of Senior Notes (Note 30) ROEEZE W (i 30) (105,677) (2,096)
(Reversal/Provision for legal claims (Notes 25, 30) ERR(E (BE) /Ffs (W55 50) (61,278) 7,746
Decrease in inventories and properties under FERERDRBELENERD
development and held for sale 543,363 48,942
Decrease/{increase) in trade and notes receivables, EUEFERREE - BATE - e R
prepayments, depostts and other receivables TR/ (4 0) 982,442 (774,100
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from related parties  EMEEE A VRS / (3E10) 172,915 (173,747
(Increase)/decrease in resricted hank balances SRR () /FD (670,810) 389,139
Increase in deferred revenue (Note 28) BB (fizE28) 27,033 1610
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, accruals, EREZEN  BRER  BUEPHER
advances from customers and other current iabilties s s/ (ad) 3,386,208 (759,918)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade balance due to related parties AR T2 546 (RiD) /IE11 (169,935) 175,740
Cash generated from operation EEELNES 5,438,287 1,039,158
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINRARBETTRER)

40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions:

Except the major non-cash transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group endorsed bank acceptance notes to suppliers for
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB 544 million (2014: approximately
RMB 477 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of
property, plant and equipment comprised:

40.

Net book amount of property, plant
and equipment disposed (Note 7)
Gains/(losses) on disposals of property,

plant and equipment (Note 30)
Non-cash assets received

Cash proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

FHENE - BE &
REBHOBREFE (HE7)
HEWE - BifE Rk
Wezs/(B518) (FfzE30)
BACEREEE

HEME - BiE X
REMERE

Non-cash assets received mainly represented bank

acceptance notes and other receivables received from

deductions of property, plant and equipment.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RhF+-_A=1T—HILFE

LCEEENRE (E)

ERHRERS

g

BR & (F B 75 ¥ 3% H Ath 3019 P #2
BOEEFBRERZHI  BHE
—E-hF+ZHA=1+—HL
FE AEEREEWE - K
B R R MR S S RITR
HEZHARBS4ET(ZE
—OF : HARK4.778TT) -

© RETREXRA LHEWE-
BB KR PS5 IR B -

2015 2014
—E-AF —T—mF
4,337 6,939
563 (2,396)
(4,719) (3,542)
181 1,001

WHHIFREEETERERY
£ BB MR MR
77 5 B SR e LAt FE U AR K
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' (Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

¢

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 41. BIEEREYN
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E—MmEF
Guarantee for bank borrowings RE =TT RIRTIT
of third parties B EER 10,960 12,960
As at 31 December 2015, Jinxi Limited provided guarantee RZZFE—RAFE+ZA=+—8 ' EHF
for bank borrowings in favour of a third party amounted to A —RE = HRRITERDERE
approximately RMB 11 million. (2014: RMB 13 million). The fair R KHARE11008L(ZZ2—N
value of the financial guarantee is not significant. F: AR1,30087T) ° ZEHI5HE
ROARBELTEK -
The Directors are of the view that such obligation will not cause EERAZEEREABTSERELSE
an outflow of the Group’s resources embodying economic Ees&BEN=nE R
benefits.
42. COMMITMENTS 42, RiE
(@  Capital commitments (@) BAESE
2015 2014
—E-HF T
Purchase of property, plant EEMZE - BE R&HE
and equipment
— Contracted but not provided for — B RTAE KRB 266,387 412,844
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — B S E{ERET4Y 149,873 171,123
416,260 583,967
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BAEEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

42. COMMITMENTS (continued) 42. EIE(E)
(b)  Commitments to properties under development (o) EEREAYIZEZFIE
2015 2014
—B-AF —ZE—mEF
Purchase of properties under BERERYF
development 291,524 352,042
(©) Operating lease commitments ) KEHEFAE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses in BT REHK 2 HEE T
respect of land use rights, property, plant and equipment T ERRRE - E - B &R
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as BHENARKEEER L
follows: XHEAT :
2015 2014

—F-HF ZT-mF

No later than one year 1FR 10,188 10,103

Later than one year and no 1FLALE - 5FUR
later than five years 31,732 31,910
Later than five years 59 LAE 112,889 120,337
154,809 162,350
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(BABHEAN  ESEINARBETTREN)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

228

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the (a)
Directors are of the view that the following companies

and persons are related parties of the Group:

Name

=L

Foshan Jin Lan Aluminium Company Limited (“Foshan
Jin Lan”)

Bl FBRHmAR AR
([IL&m )

Foshan Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals Product Co. Ltd.
(“Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals”)

HlLeHEEeBEnARAR
([eHERSE])

Tangshan Fengnan Qu Jinxi Fenggang Iron and Steel Co.

Ltd. (“dinxi Fenggang”)
5 1L 2 e T 2 R
BRAR(DEEZHE])

Beijing Jingtang Guangzhi Investment Management Co.
Ltd. ("Jingtang Guangzhi Investment”)
IERRERSREERARAF
((REESRE ]

Mr. Li Hejun

FHERE

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 4 B A FR 2 7]
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-RFT-A=T—BLEE

43. FEBLIXZ

HEZZT—RAFE=-_F—NF
+_A=+—HLFE E=
RENTRAARATAEREE
HRAEsE 5

Relationship with the Group
HEASENBE

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan

e it 00 (e

Foshan Jin Lan’s subsidiary

A Lol NG

Chairman of the board of Jinxi Fenggang is Mr Shen
Xiaoling, a director of the Company

ANSHESREFER/ARAETLEL TE

Controlled by Mr. Wang Zhihong, a director of Boyuan
Real Estate

REEFEMENES T HA LR

Minority shareholder of Jinxi Dafang, a subsidiary of the
Group
AEE BB RARREAATNDHRE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEIRARBETTRER)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the (a)
Directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group: (continued)

Name

=L

Mr. Han Li
Bh%E

Mudanjiang Ruiyuan Investment Co. Ltd. (“Ruiyuan
Investment”)

HA TR EBRAF]
(MHRRRE D)

Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd. and it’s subsidiaries
(“Oriental Sheet Piling”)

Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd.
K EFTE AR
([ Oriental Sheet Piling |)

Arcelor Mittal Singapore PTE (“Arcelor Mittal Singapore”)

Arcelor Mittal Singapore PTE ([ Arcelor Mittal Singapore J)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=1T—HILEFE

43. BEAERZ (&)

BE_Z—AFE-_Z—NF
+_A=+—HLFE =
RENTRAARATAAEE
HEEHE S« (4B)

Relationship with the Group
HASENBEZ

Director of the company

AARESE
Minority shareholder of Suzhou Boyuan

FMERODHIRR

Controlled by the same ultimate parent company of
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG, an entity holds over 20%
equity interests in the Company

A AR AIEE20% 5 K B B2 ArcelorMittal Holdings
AG VBRI R AR BE A A

Controlled by the same ultimate parent company of
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG, an entity holds over 20%
equity interests in the Company

AR AR AR E20%# 2 H) & B8 ArcelorMittal Holdings
AG BV ABRI B A B AR
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43. BIBA RS (&)

(@  For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the @ #BEZZ—AFE_ZT—NF

Directors are of the view that the following companies
and persons are related parties of the Group: (continued)

The English name of certain companies referred in this
financial statements represent management’s best effort
at translating the Chinese names of these companies as
no English names have been registered.

T-A=+—HILFE E=F
BREATRRRALRAEE
HEREE T - (&)

AR BREFRET AR ETE
RERRIRE D LB
8 W ERRE AT WBRET
B HS AT -

BRAEHBBREAFERE
G RBE-ZE—HFR_-ZT
—mWE+=—A=1+—BItFE
A BERBATHE AR
ARG TIRAEEH B EEB

(o) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (b)
financial statements, the Directors were of the view that
the following significant related party transactions were
carried out in the normal course of business of the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014:

RHETT
2015 2014
—E-fF —E—F
Sales of goods HEEY
— Oriental Sheet Piling —Oriental Sheet Piling 105,563 48,178
Sales of utilities SHEBEIR
— Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals —cHEAECESE 28,588 23,160
Purchase of raw materials BB EME
— Arcelor Mittal Singapore — Arcelor Mittal Singapore 23,555 =
— Jinxi Fenggang — T = 4,133
23,555 4,133
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43. BBAERB (&)

(o) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated b)) BRAEHTBHREFEHE
financial statements, the Directors were of the view that I RBEZE—RFR_-_ZT
the following significant related party transactions were —NE+-—_A=+—HItFE
carried out in the normal course of business of the Group A EEREATHEKNBEE
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014: ARGTIRAEERTEXBB
(continued) BT - (&)

() Key management compensation i) EEEBEAEHE
Key management includes executive and non- FTEEBASBERNTR
executive directors. The compensation paid or EMITEE - shiE B R
payable to key management for employee services e EZERA
= iy
is shown below: BEMEIT :
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—mEF

Salaries and other short-term &4 R H fih 55 HA(E B 12 7

employee benefits 10,147 9,128
Post-employment benefits RIRSHR 75 64
Share-based payments BB - 504

10,222 9,696
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43.

)

232

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

' (Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(

BE-2-nft-A=t-ALTE

The following were the related party balances of the
Group as at 31December 2015 and 2014:

Amounts due from related parties

Non-Current
— Foshan Jin Lan (j)

Current
— Oriental Sheet Piling
(trade balance)
—Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals
(trade balance)
—Mr. Han Li

JfE Y B RS 5 FR0R

e
— Il ()
P
—Oriental Sheet Piling
(BH#ER)
—cHAEER
(B #EHR)
—BAEE

As at 31 December 2015, the ageing of trade balances

due from related parties were within three months.

China Oriental Group Company Limited B3y 4 Bl B A FR A 7]

B OB RRME

BB AERS (&)
© R-E—RHFEN_ZFT—NF

+=-A=+—8 "&EEHE
BT 4B ERIN T ¢

2015 2014
=F-HE —FTWF
- 171,749

5,216 -
612 4,994

- 2,000

5,828 6,994
5,828 178,743

RZFB-—HF+-_A=+—
B - REWKEIR T E 5 A R0 AR
RR=EAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz ‘

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HLFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43. BHMAERZ (&)
() The following were the related party balances of the © RZZBE—EHFR_ZT—NF

TZA=+t—B x&EENHH
BTSSRI ¢ (A8)

Group as at 31December 2015 and 2014: (continued)

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mEF
Amounts due to related parties JE 1t REES: 5 508
Non-Current FEE)
Borrowing from related parties RASE 7 B X
— Li Hejun (i) —EEE (j) 51,859 51,859
— Foshan Jin Lan (i) — 58115 B () - 195,260
51,859 247,119
Current Vi
Borrowing from related parties st £k
- Jingtang Guangzhi Investment (i)  — REEEKE (i) 53,341 51,118
— Foshan Jin Lan (i) —3B1LE 5 () 23,931 -
— Ruiyuan Investment (iv) —ImRIE A& (iv) = 49,100
77,272 100,218
Others HAh
— Oriental Sheet Piling —Oriental Sheet Piling 3,394 2,000
— Foshan Jin Lan — L& Rs 383 383
— Jinxi Fenggang — 2 7 2 ] 1,995 1,995
5,772 4,378
83,044 104,596
134,903 351,715

Except for the related party balances disclosed in (i) to (iv)

below, others were unsecured, interest-free and without

fixed terms of repayments.

BRI () Z (iv) B R BERE T RS R D -
Hip g mmiEm e AEEEEE

5 o
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE-T-AF+-_A=t—HILFE

¢

234

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43. BMHERS (&)
(c) The following were the related party balances of the © R-ZZBE—HFR_ZT—NF

Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2014: (continued) +-—A=+—8 AXEEHNH

Bt 4RI - (2)

()  Pursuant to certain agreements, Foshan Jin Lan’s () WREETHZE BLESERE
loan to Jinxi Jinlan amounted to approximately AeERENARE195ET
RMB 195 million had been offset against the HNEXREWAEEWE QAL
loan from Beijing Jinxi Investment, a subsidiary ROEARE R ILSERED
of the Group, to Foshan Jin Lan amounted to ARBEAT2E T W E KT K
approximately RMB 172 million, the remaining H o EREE LSS AR 2,400
balance due to Foshan Jin Lan’s amounted to ETHESHRERAERKMAR
RMB 24 million was unsecured and repayable in R-ZT—RF—HEE -

2016.

(i) The borrowing from Mr. Li Hejun was unsecured iy Z=BFLEREZERESEIR
and interest-free. HRBE -

(i)  The loan from Jingtang Guangzhi Investment was (i) REBRERERHNERAE
unsecured and bore interest at a rate of 6.31% per A IR R 6.31% 5T 5 o
annum.

(iv)  The loan from Ruiyuan Investment bore interest (v) ImBRREREHNEFUIZER X
at a rate of 15% per annum and had been repaid 5%t EERBE_ZT—HF
during the year ended 31 December 2015. +TZRA=T—HLEFEREE

44. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 44. #EHEEE

On 25 January 2016, the Company commenced the offer to
repurchase for cash and consent solicitation relating to any
and all of its outstanding 2017 Senior Notes.

The offer expired on 22 February 2016. A principal amount
of US$ 32,212,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes had been
repurchased and cancelled by the Company. Consents from
holders with respect to principal amount of US$ 68,107,000
of the 2017 Senior Notes had been obtained. As such, the
Company entered into a supplemental indenture embodying
the proposed amendments (“Supplemental Indenture”) on
24 February 2016 and the Supplemental Indenture becomes
effective on 26 February 2016.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 J7 5 [ 32 B A FR 2 7]

R-B—XRE—A=-+HH ' AQF
EREETEHERRIEREE=S
—+tFRAEBRZRSELRZEL KM
BECK

ZEHONRZE—R"F_A=Z+=HEF|
Hloe RARIEHBE RFHALEAS
§32,212,000 €L 2 =T — L F Bk
FiE - B 15 A & 568,107,000
T _E—tEBAZEREEANR
oAl ARRARZE—RF_A
ity phi = RV B O N B Ol D)
HegfbiEasgs]  BERRRZEBEN=-F
—NEZAZ+TRBER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz ‘

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEEAN  FERBINARBTIREMN) HE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HLFE

44. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued) 44. HEEH®REBHE(E)
Following the completion of the repurchase, the outstanding RERKEERE  — T+ FELEE
aggregate principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is US$ REBASBEE A 79,156,000 7T °
79,156,000.

45. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 45. AAREEEBRRHEERD
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2015 2014

—E-HF —E—mEF

ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRR 596 626
Investments in subsidiaries B ATIEE 574,873 608,168
Loans to subsidiaries HEBARER 1,930,379 2,529,807
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE - 11,638
2,505,848 3,150,239
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables TEUNE SRR 86,529 2,052,837
Prepayments, deposits and JEREIE B R
other receivables E b pEURBR SR 7,398 23,424
Loans to subsidiaries B ARER - 1,710,180
Restricted bank balances PR FIERTTAERR - 24,755
Cash and cash equivalents WENIRSEEY 334,979 117,062
428,906 3,928,258
Total assets BMEE 2,934,754 7,078,497
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

45. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 45, ARFEEABRREEEE (Z)
THE COMPANY (continued)

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2015 2014

—E-FF —ZE—HF

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners ] YNNI
of the Company FEENER
Share capital ik 311,853 311,853
Share premium & (a8 2,192,131 2,192,131
Other reserves HibEE 419,748 424,523
Accumulated losses ZEtE1E (812,201) (922,683)
Total equity EReE 2,111,531 2,005,824
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Borrowings =N 719,891 1,264,519
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables e B PR 85,365 78,752
Accruals and other current liabilities EREAREMREEE 17,835 109,045
Borrowings EEN - 3,620,225
Dividends payable FERTAR S 132 132
103,332 3,808,154
Total liabilities FoR=Fi 823,223 5,072,673
Total equity and liabilities EzRkEEET 2,934,754 7,078,497
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the ARRBEBBEREN_ZT—XRF=
Board of Directors on 31 March 2016 and were signed on its A=+—HB&EEERIETHUTE
behalf. ERAERE o
Han Jingyuan Zhu Hao
BaE K&
Chairman Director
ES EBZE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015

(BABEPN MESEINARBTIREN) BE_T—AF+-_A=tT—HLEE

45. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 45, KARFEEABRREEEE (Z)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Available-
for-sale financial Accumulated

Options assets losses Total
UHeE
BRE SREE RitER &t
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-E-mE-A-Az&H 413,011 12,374 (792,354) (366,969)
Loss for the year FEER = = (130,329) (130,329)
Employee share option scheme BEBIETE
~Value of employee service ~EERBRNEE 6,737 - - 6,737
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AL ES AR BEkS
financial assets - 20,708 - 20,708
Transfer of fair value gains previously R ESREENER
credited to reserve to income BRATE ABEN AL EE
statement upon disposal of YaEEER
avallable-for-sale financial assets - (28,307) - (28,307)
Balance at 31 December 2014 RoE-mE+-A=+-Azis 419,748 4775 (922,683) (498,160)
Profit for the year ERRA = - 110,482 110,482
Fair value gains on available-for- At ESREEAL BEKE
sale financial assets - 3979 - 3979
Transfer of fair value gains R HESHEELER
previously credited to B ABEN AL EE
reserve to income statement YaEEER
upon disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets - (8,754) - (8,754)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RIB-RE+ZA=T-HZEH 419,748 - (812,201) (392,453)
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2015
(FRBEERAN  MEEBEIUARBTIREN) BE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILFE

46. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 46. EEEMRER
The emoluments received/receivable by individual directors BAAEERETETHAEC R B
and the chief executive is set out below: SRS T
()  For the year ended 31 December 2015: ) BHEZZFE—AF+=-—A=+—
HIEFE :
Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
share defined
Salaries and options  contribution
Name of director Fees allowances Bonus granted plans Total

ERILES £
RRERE:  HA-EE

g e HeREH 4 MfER EHE it
2015 ik
Mr. Han Jingyuan () EWETE() 24 3,465 - - 15 4,204
M. Zhu Jun RELE 602 595 - - 15 1,212
Mr. Shen Xiaoling MERTE 418 522 - - 15 955
Mr. Han Li [yl 821 982 - - 15 1,818
Mr. Znu Hao RERE 325 406 - - 15 746
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec £ 312 - - - - 312
(te-appointed on S el
16 January 2015) BEEES)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, aNREE 325 - - - - 325
Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi IRERE 325 - - - - 325
Mr. Zhou Guoping RETRE 325 - - - - 325

(fesignedon 1 Apri 2016)  (R=F-AEBA—HEH)

4177 5970 - - 75 10,222
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(continued)

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2014 (restated):

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRER)

46. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 81 #& 8 R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

46. EEEAKER(E)

) BE-FT-mF+-A=+-

HILFE (&Z)) :
Fair value Pension
of employee costs -
share defined
Salaries and options  contribution
Name of director Fees allowances Bonus granted plans Total
ERiES il %
BREHEz  AE-EE
2 it HEREH A AEE fEatel ait
2014 —ZT-MF
Mr. Han Jingyuan () BRI () 713 2,754 - 246 13 3,726
Mr. Zhu Jun RELE 594 590 - 40 13 1,287
Mr. Shen Xiaoling BRI e 408 652 - 40 13 1113
Mr, Han Li BNk 468 975 - 40 13 1496
Mr. Zhu Hao RERE 316 394 - 40 12 762
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar Vijay Kumar Bhatnagar 7 316 = = 31 = 347
(resigned on 1 January 2015) (R=F—-74F—F—HEHF)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BEXRLE 316 - - 36 - 352
Mr. Wang Tianyi ITRERE 316 - - 31 - 347
Mr. Zhou Guoping FEBTLAE 316 - - - - 316
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=E—7 R f—AFHT)
3,763 5,365 - 504 64 9,69

(i) Mr. Han Jingyuan is also the Chief Executive Officer of the

Company.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014. The emoluments of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company during the year are approximately
RMB1.0 million (2014: RMB1.0 million).

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

() BHEELENRRARBEFRH

78 -

HE-ZT—AFR=-ZT—NF+=A
=+—HIFE  SESEEMEXFA
EHEEAMNES - FR - I TAEAR
AIMB IR ITEFTHHEOARE
1008 T (ZF—HF : AR 1008
TT) °

RBE-_T-AFE-_FT-OFt+=
A=+—HLEFE  XRRHFERE
SEEXBIUEARRETERLME
BRBEARGCEERS - TH
B84 -
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Five-year Financial Information & & # & %l

QP

A summary of the consolidated income statement and of the AEEEZA L EMBREENEHFER
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the FEHEE BERIFZEFIEEDHEZE
Group for the last five financial years is as set out below: FIEAR

Consolidated Income Statement & A ER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HILEE

Audited

REY
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-0E —TmF —T-=F —T——F —2——F
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(AR®TR) (AR¥TT) (AR®TRT) (AR¥TT) (AR%TR)

Revenue A 21,071,538 28,495,498 32,516,937 36,122,358 38,596,633
(Loss)/Profit before BRPATSHLA (889,668) 245,080 249,341 326,056 1,931,812
income tax (E18),/ & H
Income tax expense FrisiER (46,349) (178,600) (186,313) (179,579) (614,028)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(FB)/af (936,017) 66,480 63,028 146,477 1,417,789
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: ~ (&518), /B FISSER
Owners of AQNrER
the Company BE%E (766,503) 66,715 101,609 126,062 1,241,893
Non-controlling interests FEE MR (169,514) (235) (38,581) 20,415 175,896
(936,017) 66,480 63,028 146,477 1,417,789
Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests AHEE - AEEIEEHEER
As at 31 December
R+=RA=1+-H
Audited
REK
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1% i3 —E-=F —E--F —2——F
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AE¥Tn) (AR%Trx) (AR%Trn) (ARETn) (ARETR)
Total assets BEE 22,363,723 23,743,408 23,750,600 24,751,983 22,929,993
Total liabilities BEE (13,451,561) (13,971,562) (14,039,698) (15,196,967) (13,418,643)
Non-controlling interests JEPRH RS (397,734) (514,789) (519,698) (513,247 (647,730)

8,514,428 9,257,057 9,191,204 9,041,769 8,863,620
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